
 

Meeting contact Dianne Scambler on 01257 515034 or email dianneb.scambler@chorley.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY, 9TH DECEMBER 2014, 2.00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, CHORLEY 
 

AGENDA 
  

APOLOGIES 
 

1 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS   
 

 

2 PROCEDURE NOTICE 
 

 

 The procedure notice (enclosed).  
 

 

3 THE GAMBLING ACT 2005 - APPLICATIONS FOR A GAMING 
MACHINE PERMIT FOR MORE THAN 2 GAMING MACHINES 

 

 

 Three reports from the Director of Public Protection, Streetscene and 
Community enclosed: 
 

 

 3A HUNGRY HORSE, BUCKSHAW VILLAGE, CHORLEY 
 

(Pages 3 - 74) 

 3B TRADER JACKS, HOLLINSHEAD STREET, CHORLEY 
 

(Pages 75 - 
172) 

 3C THE HIGHFIELD RESTAURANT, SOUTHPORT ROAD, 
LEYLAND 

 

(Pages 173 - 
246) 

4 ANY URGENT BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY AGREED WITH THE CHAIR   
 

 

 
GARY HALL  

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee Councillor 
Marion Lowe (Chair), and Councillors Matthew Lynch and Mick Muncaster.  
 

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or 
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Director of Public 
Protection, Street Scene and 

Community 

 Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee   9 December 2014 

 

 THE GAMBLING ACT 2005; APPLICATION FOR A GAMING 

MACHINE PERMIT FOR MORE THAN 2 GAMING MACHINES. 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To bring to the attention of Members an application received from John Gaunt & Partners of 
Omega Court Sheffield on behalf of Green King Brewing & Retailing Ltd in respect of an 
application for a Gaming Machine Permit for more than 2 gaming machines for a premise 
licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 known as The Hungry Horse, Buckshaw Village  
Chorley. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. Members are recommended to consider the contents of the report and any representations 
made by the representative of Green King Brewing & Retailing Ltd and determine whether 
or not to grant the application. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. John Gaunt & Partners made application under Schedule 13, of the Gambling Act 2005 for a 
Gaming Machine Permit for 2 or more gaming machines on behalf Green King Brewing & 
Retailing Ltd being the premises licence holder for The Hungry Horse Buckshaw Village 
Chorley. The application is attached as Appendix 1. The Council’s Statement of Gambling 
Policy states that each application will be determined on a case by case basis, the Council’s 
scheme of delegation does not authorise officers to determine the application where the 
application is for more than 2 gaming machines. 

 

Confidential report 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
4. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Involving residents in improving their local 
area and equality of access for all 

 A strong local economy  

Clean, safe and healthy communities X An ambitious council that does more 
to meet the needs of residents and 
the local area 

 

 

BACKGROUND. 
 
The Council has received an application made under Schedule 13 of the Gambling Act 2005 for 
more than 2 gaming machines for the public house  The Hungry Horse, Buckshaw Village  

 

Agenda Page 3 Agenda Item 3a



Chorley.  The premises benefits from a Premises licence issued under Section 17 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 authorising the sale of alcohol, this authorisation is a pre-requisite to enable 
the above application.  The Premises Licence PLA 0430 and Plan are attached as Appendix 2.  
 

Where a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then it needs to apply for a Gaming 
machine permit and the Authority will consider that application based upon the licensing 
objectives, the Guidance, and such matters as they think relevant.  Members should be satisfied 
that the granting of the said permit will not undermine the licensing objectives and that the 
applicant is aware of the positive steps required to promote the licensing objectives.  This 
Authority considers that such applications will be decided on a case-by-case basis, but generally 
there will be regard for the need to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being 
exploited by gambling.  The Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to satisfy it that there 
will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult 
only gaming machines. Such measures may include the adult machines being in sight of the 
bar, or in the sight of staff who will monitor that the machines are not being used by those under 
18.  Additionally, Notices and signage may also be of assistance.  With regard to the protection 
of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of information leaflets/helpline 
numbers for organisations such as Gam Care.  It is important that staff are able to see if the 
machines are being played by any adults with a gambling problem. 

 

Officers will attend the premises on 2 December 2014 to assess the suitability of the premises to 
accommodate additional gaming machines in line with the application received.  Officers will give 
a verbal report to Members in relation to the suitability of the premises at the hearing. 
 
In determining this matter Members shall have consideration for the following provisions; 
 
Chorley Council’s Statement of Gambling Policy.  Attached as Appendix 3. 
 

Members are reminded of the Gambling Act 2005 licensing objectives which are; 
 
(a)  Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime 

or disorder or being used to support crime, 
(b)  Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and 
(c)  Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling. 
 

The Gambling Commission’s published Code of Practice provides the requirements that must be 
complied with by the Gambling Machine Permit Holder.  The document is attached at Appendix 4. 
The guidance is applicable to all licensed premises in relation to any number of gaming machines 
that are provided.   

 
Member’s attention is drawn to the Committee’s discretion in determining this matter which is 
prescribed within Schedule 13 Section 283 of the Gambling Act 2005 which states they may; 
 
a) Grant the application, 
b) Refuse the application, 
c)   Grant it in respect of; 
 1)  A smaller number of machines than that specified in the application, 
 2)  A different category of machines from that specified in the application, or  
 3)  Both. 
 
d) Members may not attach conditions to a permit. 

 

The applicant in respect of this application has been invited to attend the hearing and make 
representation. 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 

Agenda Page 4 Agenda Item 3a



5. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are 
included: 

 

Finance  Customer Services   

Human Resources  Equality and Diversity   

Legal X Integrated Impact Assessment 
required? 

 

No significant implications in this 
area 

 Policy and Communications  

 
COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER  
 
Under Schedule 13 of the Gambling Act 2005 members must have regard to the licensing 
objectives contained in the Gambling Act 2005, national guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission and such other matters as they think are relevant.  It would be reasonable for 
members to have regard to the Council’s own statement of gambling policy.  
 
Other relevant considerations would be the location of the proposed machines so that staff could 
clearly see minors or problem gamblers attempting to play the machines and intervene.  Also the 
location is a relevant consideration for fire safety. 
 
Provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 are relevant to the application, including but not limited 
to Article 1, Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of possessions) and Article 6 (right to a fair hearing). 
In the event that the application is granted in whole or in part then under section 282 of the 
Gambling Act 2005 the location and operation of the machines must be in accordance with any 
relevant Code of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission. 
 
The applicant has a right of appeal to the magistrates’ court within 21 days of receiving notice of 
the decision to (i) reject the application or (ii) grant an application for a smaller number of 
machines than that specified in the application or a different category of machines from that 
specified in the application (or both) 
 
 
JAMIE CARSON 
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROTECTION STREETSCENE AND COMMUNITY 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

S Culleton 5665 26 November  

 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 3a



This page is intentionally left blank



Once Transfer and DPS done
remember to amend Premises
name before granting this and

Licensing Section
Chorley Council
Civic Offices
Union Street
Choriey
Lancashire
PR7 lAL

Dear Sirs

John Gaunt
L. ~ ~~~~, ~ Parfiners

. ~~~~

Our Ref: CG/HUN143/1
Contact: Chris Grunert

03 November 2014

PREMISES —WAR HORSE, BUCKSHAW AVENUE, BUCKSHAW VILLAGE,

CHORLEY, LANCASHIRE, PR7 7.7D

PREMISES LICENSEE: GREENE KING BREWING 8~ RETAILING LTD

GAMING MACHINE PERMIT APPLICATION

We act for Greene King Brewing &Retailing Ltd, the premises licensee of the War

Horse (subject to recent application).

On our client's behalf, we enclose by way of service on you, application for a

Gaming Machine Permit under the Gambling Ad 2005 in respect of 3 category C

machines and 1 category D machine.

Attached is our cheque in your favour in the sum of £150.00 being the fee

payable. Kindly acknowledge safe receipt.

Should you have any queries, please telephone John Gaunt on 0114 266 8664.

We look forward to receiving the new Gaming Machine Permit.

Thank you for your assistance.

Yours faithfully,

Christopher Grunert
]ohn Gaunt ~ Partners
Email: cgrunert~iohn-gaunt.co.uk

Partners: John Gaunt c~~~,~
Katharine Redford ~s~~,2~

Tel: 0114 266 8664 Tim Shield ~sss~,s~ John Gaunt ~ Partners

Helpline: 01 1 4 266 3400 Michelle Hazlewood csss~+a~ Omega Court

Fax: 01 14 267 9613 Associates: Christopher Grunert 372 - 374 Cemetery Road

Email: info@john-gaunt.co.uk Jonathan Hyldon Sheffield

www.john-gaunt.co.uk Practice Manager: Jonathan Pupius S11 8FT

,bhn Gaunt a Partners auttarleeC entl regdrtsd Dy the Saici~as Repuietiun Auchonty - SiL4 No. t 13383. Sollutore o
f Enplend a wales. We uee tt~e word •pervier to rater efther to e P~~~ot John Qeun18 Pertr~ere (the'firtn ):en ofl'~ce

kidder In a Pte: a n aniplo~s~ d 1M fkm wIM puAeNrM MerWkp and quaNfictltona.

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 3a



NOTIFICATION OF 2 OR LESS GAMING MACHINES or
GAMING MACHINE PERMIT APPLICATIONS (i.e. for greater than 2 machines) for:

GBNI-V€R-SIBN /NEW t

(FOR USE BY PREMISES LICENSED TO SUPPLY ALCOHOL FOR CONSUMPTION ON THE PREMISES)

Please refer to guidance notes of the back of this form beinre completing

To:
Chorley Council,
Civic Offices, ~~ Cam? ~ JOhtl G{~UCIt
Union Street, ~~( ~ ~~~~,rs
Choeiey,
Lancashire, Licensing Solicitors
PR7 tA~ 0114 2F~6 8664

SECTION A — What do you want to do?

1. Please indicate what you would like to do

a) Notify licensing authority that you intend to provide up to a maximum total of 2 gaming machines
category Gand / or D

{if you choose this option then please compete sections Q and E)

b) Apply to convert an existing Section 34 permit issued under the Gaming Act 1968, into a
licensed premises gaming machine permit (i.e. for more than 2 gaming machines)

(if}rou choose this option then please complete sections B, D and E)

c) Apply for a new licensed premises gaming machine permit
((i~ yeu chase this e~tion thsn please ~mp/ste s~tions 9, Q and ~?

d) Apply to vary an existing licensed premises gaming machine permit
(if you choose this option then please complete sections B, D and E~

e) Apply to transfer an ezis6ng licensed premises gaming machine permit
(if you choose this option then please complete sections C, D and E~

SECTION B -Application for grant (includes conversion, new and variation
applications)

2. How many gaming machines are you currently authorised to provide and if this is a new or
variation application, how many do you wish to provide? (please complete the boxes in the table)

Category machine Number currently authorised to
rovide

Number wish to provide
new or variation

C 0 3
D 1

Total , 0 4

3. If you are currently authorised to provide more than 2 machines, please provide your existing
Section 34 Gaming Act 1968 permit, or provide reasons stating why it cannot be provided.

Existing permit provided*
(reasons why existing permit canrrot be provided) ......................................................................

*Please keen ~ coov of v~ur existing nr~rmit nn the nrPmisPS to which it ralatPc

❑~

Agenda Page 8 Agenda Item 3a



NOTIFICATION OF 2 OR LESS GAMING MACHINES or
GAMING MACHINE PERMIT APPLICATIONS (i.e. for greater than 2 machines) for:

GANa/€~SIBW J NEW 1

(FOR USE BY PREMISES LICENSED TO SUPPLY ALCQHOL FOR CONSUMPTION ON THE PREMISES)

Section C — Application for permit transfer (i.e. where a transfer has been requested for
the Licensing Acf 2003 premises licence)

4. Name of person requesting the transfer

5. Confirmation that an application to transfer the relevant Licensing Act 2003 Premises Licence
has been:

Requested ❑

Granted ❑

6. Please provide your existing permit, or provide reasons stating why it cannot be provided

Existing permit provided ❑

Reasons why existing peRnit cannot be provided

Section D — General Information

7. Name of Premises: War Horse .........................................................................................................

8. Address of Premises: Buckshaw Avenue, Buckshaw Village, Chorley, Lancashire, PR7 7JD .......

9. Telephone number of Premises - ......................................................................................................

10. Name of existing Premises Licence holder. Greene King Brewing &Retailing Ltd .........................

11. Address of Premises Licence holder (rf different from 8 above): Westgate Brewery, Bury St

Edmonds, Suffolk, IP331QT

12. Telephone number (daytime) of Premises Licence holder:

c/o John Gaunt 8~ Partners (Solicitors) 0114 266 8664 ....................................................................

13. E-r~a~! ~drsss ~f Premises Licence holder (~xhere ava;table) :....................................................

14. Name, address, telephone and e-mail of agent (e.g. solicitor) ff submitted on behalf of the applicant: ~

John Gaunt and Partners Solicitors, Omega Court, 372Cemetery Road, Sheffield, S11 BFT .........................

Tel: 0114 266 8664 ..........................................................................................................................................

15. Licensing Act 2043 Premises Licence Reference (i.e. number): PLA0430 ..............................

2

Agenda Page 9 Agenda Item 3a



NOTIFICATION OF 2 OR LESS GAMING MACHINES or

GAMING MACHINE PERMIT APPLICATIONS (i.e. for greater than 2 machines) for:
68N~F€R~SIAN /NEW

(FOR USE BY PREMISES LICENSED Td SUPPLY ALCOHOL FOR CONSUMPTION ON THE PREMISES)

Section E —Fee and Signatures)

1 enclose a sum off 100

(cheques should be made payable fo Chorley Council,)

l understand that 1 must comply with the Gaming Machine Code of Practice for Alcohol

Licensed Premise Permits and Permissions issued by the Gambling Commission. (see

guidance note 8)

'~ Please note: it is an offence under section 342 of the Gambling Act 2QQ5 if a person, withouf

reasonable excuse, gives to a licensing authority for a purpose connected with that Act information

which is false or misleading.

Dated
03 November 2014 ...........................................................................................................................................

Signed (by or on beha ' ensin ct 2003 Premises L. e ce holder)

Print Name: John Gaunt &Partners Solicitors .................................................................................................

• If you wish to have a maximum of 2 gaming machines then the fee payable is £50.00

• If you wish to have more than 2 gaming machines then the fee payable is £100.00 (if it is made by an

existing operator or £150.00 in all other cases.

• The fee for a vary is £1 Q0.00
• The fee for a transfer is £25.00

Official Use Only

Dateof receipt :........................................................................

Signature and name of staff who received :.................................

Date of receipt of fee :......................................................

Signature and name of staff who received fee :.......................................

Application accepted 1 returned (please delete as appropriate)

Date of premises licence (Licensing Act 2003) transfer (if applicable) :..............................

Agenda Page 10 Agenda Item 3a



NOTIFICATION OF 2 OR LESS GAMING MACHINES or

GAMING MACHINE PERMIT APPLICATIONS (i.e. for greater than 2 machines) for:

GBAN/€~SIAN /NEW /

Guidance notes:
1. This form is to be used for the notification of up to 2 gaming machines of categories C and I or D under

Section 282 of the Gambling Act 2005, or for the conversion of an existing Section 34 gaming machine

permit under the Gaming Act 1968, or for a new application, variation or transfer of a alcohol licensed

premises gaming machine peRnit under the Gambling Act 2005.

2. The premises must be licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 to sell a~ohol for consumption on the

premises, without the requirement that alcohol is served only with food and there must be a bar for seNing

alcohol to customers on the premises.

3. The gaming machines must be located on these licensed premises.

4. A 'Premises Licence holder' is a person holding a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

5. There is no statutory limit to the number of machines which may be applied for although the licensing

authority has some discretion in this regard. It should also be noted that the licensing authority can cancel

the permit or vary the number of machines should the premises be mainly used for making gaming

machines available for use on the premises (Schedule 13 paragraph 16 Gambling Act 2005). You may

therefore wish to contact the licensing authority to ask whether there is a local policy as regards applications

and whether application for certain numbers of machines are decided via a hearing of local councillors.

6. The permits duration is indefinite as it is linked to the Licensing Act 2603 Premises licence. There is a first

annual fee payable 30 days after the issue date and an annual fee payable after that before each

anniversary of the date of issue of the permit. Failure to pay the annual fee may result in the cancellation of

the permit. The annual fee is £50.00. There are no annual fees payable for 2 machines or less.

7. Sections 282 and 283, as well as SI 2007 / 1833 of the Gambling Act 2005 provide for two types of

gaming machines which can be located in alcohol licensed premises. These are:

• Category C: Maximum stake = 50p /Maximum prize = £35

• Category D: Maximum stake = 10p or 30p non-monetary /Maximum prize = £5 cash

or £8 non-monetary

8. All alcohol licensed premises which provide gaming machines for use on the premises must

comply with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission under Section

24 of the Gambling Act ?005. ?he Gaming Mach;ne Code of Practice for Alcohol licensed premises

permits and permissions is available via the Gambling Commission's website at:

httQ:/Iwww.Qamblingcommission.qov.uk/ Should you be unclear as to the provisions of the code of

practice please contact the Gambling Commission or your local Council licensing service.

9. This licensing authority must notify the applicant of its grant /refusal of the application for a peRnit as

soon as is reasonable practicable after that decision to grant /refuse has been made.

10. Where you are notifying the local licensing authority of 2 machines or less, you may wish to request an

acknowledgement of receipt of the notification. The form attached to this application can be utilised for

this purpose.

Agenda Page 11 Agenda Item 3a



~~arl~~ Cv~ncil
~f f i c i a~ R~c~ i pt

~~►t ~ ~~~ ~ ~ ~~01 ~ r; ~~ o~ ; ~ ~ : ~ ~~
~'erm 07 cashier a1~

~m~ 1 i ng P rim i e~ 1. ~ ~c n~~

Reef e rence
Fund
Audit Num
Amount
Paytyp►~

41~0~60~17
r~ ~ sc Incame
CHCA4l~6G951
~ i~u.uu
Postai Cheque

>~> THANK YOU FOR YOUR PAYMENT «<

P 1 ease ~hec~ t~ i s rec~ i pt and k~~p i t i r~ a
safe p 1 ace , Th ~ s ~ s your proof of payr~~r~t

Chv r 1 ~e y C~unc i 1
Customer Services

PO Box ~a~
Char 1 ~y
~R~ 1~a

~~~, . +cho r 1 ~ . g~v . uk

Agenda Page 12 Agenda Item 3a



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0430 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:47 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 1 of 9 

 

 

 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 

Hungry Horse Pub Restaurant 
Buckshaw Avenue  Buckshaw Village  Chorley       

 
 
 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES 

 
Not applicable 

 
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE 

 
- Exhibition of Film 

 
- Indoor Sporting Event 

 
- Performance of Live Music 

 
- Performance of Recorded Music 

 
- Performance of Dance 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Making Music 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Dancing 

 
- Late Night Refreshment 

 
- The sale by Retail of Alcohol 

 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 

Activity (and area if applicable) Days and times 

 

Exhibition of Film (Indoors) 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 
Exhibition of a film principally video entertainment and / or non-live television on screens 
and t.v. screens. 

 

Indoor Sporting Event (Indoors) 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 
An occasional sporting event in the presence of an audience 

 

Performance of Live Music (Indoors) 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 

Agenda Page 13 Agenda Item 3a



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0430 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:47 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 2 of 9 

 

 

 

When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 
Live music will not be provided as standard operating procedure.  The application to 
include live music is to allow occasional events and will be an ancillary activity provided. 
Any such provision will be controlled by management systems and will comply with any 
Environmental Health Officer's requirements. This may be amplified or un-amplified. 

 

Performance of Recorded Music (Indoors) 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 
Background music will normally only be provided by a managed music system. 

 

Performance of Dance (Indoors) 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 
Dancing will not be a standard operating activity.  The application to include performance 
of dance and dancing so to allow occasional events and will be an ancillary activity 
provided.  Any such provision will be controlled by management systems and will comply 
with any Environmental Health Officer requirements. 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Making Music 
(Indoors) 

 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Dancing (Indoors) 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 

 

Late Night Refreshment 
 
Monday to Sunday   23:00 - 00:00    
 

 

The sale by Retail of Alcohol (Indoors & 
Outdoors) (On and off the premises) 

 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00   Indoors 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 22:00   Outdoors 
 
To permit the sale of alcohol and such regulated entertainment as authorised hereunder 
until 00.30 (if not otherwise granted pursuant to this application) on Friday, Saturday, 
Sunday and Monday at bank holiday weekends, Christmas Eve, Boxing Day, New Years 
Day and all major Saints days. 
New Years Eve: 10:00 to New Years Day - terminal hour as proposed. 
 

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES 

 

Monday to Sunday   07:00-01:00 

 

The Premises shall close for service to the public 30 minutes after the end of non standard timings identified in box J 
above 

 

 

Agenda Page 14 Agenda Item 3a



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0430 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:47 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 3 of 9 

 

 

 

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES 

 

The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption both ON and OFF the premises. 

 

 

Part 2 

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE 

  

Greene King Developments Ltd Westgate Brewery  Bury St Edmunds  Suffolk  IP33 1QT   
 

 

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE) 

  

Greene King Developments Ltd 7425525 
 

 

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES 
THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

  

Mr Robert Ian Lawton 4 Saddletree View  Mastin Moor  Chesterfield  S43 3FB   
 

 
PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR 
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

 
Licence Number: PA/VF/0162 
 

 
Issuing Authority: Chesterfield Borough Council 

 

 
ANNEXES 

 
ANNEX 1 – MANDATORY CONDITIONS 

 
 
MANDATORY DRINKS CODE 
Section 19: 
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that no supply of alcohol is made under the premises licence - (a) at a 
time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence; or (b) at a time when 
the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended 
(section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003). 
 
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made 
or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence (section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003). 
 
AGE VERIFICATION 
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification policy 
applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or 

Agenda Page 15 Agenda Item 3a



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0430 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:47 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 4 of 9 

 

 

 

such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark. 
 
SCHEDULE Mandatory Licensing Condition 
 
1.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a 
price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
2.  For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1- 
 
(a)"duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(1); . 
 
(b)"permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula- . 
 
where- 
  
(i) P is the permitted price,  
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the 
sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged 
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
 
(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence 
 
(i) the holder of the premises licence,  
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence; 
 
(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 
 
(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994(2). 
 
3.  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be a 
whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by 
that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 
 
4.  (1)  Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day 
("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 
 
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place 
before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 
 

 
ANNEX 2 – CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE 
 
 
Note – Some conditions may apply to one or more of the objectives 
 

Agenda Page 16 Agenda Item 3a



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0430 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:47 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 5 of 9 

 

 

 

General 
 

We have undertaken our own risk assessment to propose the following steps: The steps which we have 
identified in relation to the four licensing objectives are listed below 

 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 

No further risks have been identified which need to be addressed, save as below 
  
1  The use of doorstaff will be risk assessed on an ongoing basis by the premises licence holder or designated 
premises supervisor.  Where      engaged, door staff shall be licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 
2.  Alcoholic and other drinks may not be removed from the premises in open containers save for consumption in 
any external area provided for that      purpose. 
3.  Staff will receive training on matters concerning underage sales, drugs policies and operating procedures. 
4.  There shall be a zero tolerance policy in relation to drugs at the premises and there shall be regular checks 
by management to prevent the use         of drugs by patrons.  Drugs seized shall be stored securely and handed 
to the police. 
5.  The premises shall operate a proof of age scheme and will require photographic identification from any 
person who appears to be under the age       of 21 years. 
6.  The management of the premises will liaise with police on issues of local concern or disorder. 
7.  CCTV will be installed with recording facilities such recordings shall be retained for a period of 31 days and 
made available within a reasonable            time upon request by the police, such as to cover the main entrance 
to the premises. 
8.  There shall be no drinks promotions at the premises which are inconsistent with the need to promote 
responsible drinking. 
 
  
 

 
Public Safety 
 

No further risks have been identified which need to be addressed, save as below 
 
1.  To comply with the reasonable requirements of the fire officer from time to time. 
2.  Staff will be trained on matters of safety, evacuation and use of emergency equipment as required. 
3.  Spillages and breakages will be removed as soon as possible to reduce the risk to patrons and staff. 
4  Toughened glasses will be used in the premises where appropriate. 
5.  Fire Exits and means of escape shall be kept clear and in good operational condition. 
6.  A permanent fixed residual device (RCD) must protect the electrical power serving any amplified music 
equipment when used for the purpose of      live music. 

 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

No further risks have been identified which need to be addressed, save as below 
 
 1.  Where appropriate, prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all exits requesting the public 
respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area quietly. 
 2.  Patrons will be encouraged by staff to leave quietly and respect the interests of the occupiers of any nearby 
noise sensitive premises. Where appropriate the licensee or a suitable staff member will monitor patrons leaving 
at the closing time. 
3.  Noise or vibration shall not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby properties. 

Agenda Page 17 Agenda Item 3a



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0430 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:47 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 6 of 9 

 

 

 

4.  Contact numbers for local taxi firm(s) shall be kept at the premises and made available to patrons requiring a 
taxi. 

 
Protection of Children From Harm 
 

1.  The restrictions set out in the Licensing Act 2003 will apply.  No unusual or additional risks of harm to children 
have been identified. 
2.  No films or videos of any description will be shown as that they can be viewed by persons under the age of 
any applicable BBFC/Local      Authority certification. 
3.  Children under the age of 16 shall not be permitted to enter the premises after 21:00 unless dining with an 
adult or attending a pre booked      function or resident in any adjacent hotel. 
4.  There shall be adequate controls in place including staff training to safeguard against the sale of alcohol to 
persons under 18 years. 
5.  The premises supervisor or appointed staff member shall ensure that when children are admitted to the 
premises their presence is not      inconsistent with the style of operation of the premises at that time and the 
licensable activities that are being carried out. 
6.  Policies in relation to children shall be adequately communicated to patrons by staff or through appropriate 
signage. 
 

ANNEX 3 – CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY 
 
 
None 

 
 
ANNEX 4 – PLANS 

 
 
Plan 1550/01  1550/111   1550/101   1550/240  dated May 2014 these relate to the premises licence 

 
 

 

Agenda Page 18 Agenda Item 3a



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0430 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:47 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 7 of 9 

 

 

 

Summary of Licence 
 

Premises Details 

POSTAL ADDESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 

Hungry Horse Pub Restaurant 
Buckshaw Avenue  Buckshaw Village  Chorley       

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMTED THE DATES 

 
Not applicable 

 
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE 

 
- Exhibition of Film 

 
- Indoor Sporting Event 

 
- Performance of Live Music 

 
- Performance of Recorded Music 

 
- Performance of Dance 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Making Music 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Dancing 

 
- Late Night Refreshment 

 
- The sale by Retail of Alcohol 

 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 

Activity (and area if applicable) Days and times 

 

Exhibition of Film (Indoors) 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 
Exhibition of a film principally video entertainment and / or non-live television on screens 
and t.v. screens. 

 

Indoor Sporting Event (Indoors) 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 
An occasional sporting event in the presence of an audience 

  

Agenda Page 19 Agenda Item 3a



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0430 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:47 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 8 of 9 

 

 

 

Performance of Live Music (Indoors) Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 
Live music will not be provided as standard operating procedure.  The application to 
include live music is to allow occasional events and will be an ancillary activity provided. 
Any such provision will be controlled by management systems and will comply with any 
Environmental Health Officer's requirements. This may be amplified or un-amplified. 

 

Performance of Recorded Music (Indoors) 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 
Background music will normally only be provided by a managed music system. 

 

Performance of Dance (Indoors) 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 
Dancing will not be a standard operating activity.  The application to include performance 
of dance and dancing so to allow occasional events and will be an ancillary activity 
provided.  Any such provision will be controlled by management systems and will comply 
with any Environmental Health Officer requirements. 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Making Music 
(Indoors) 

 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Dancing (Indoors) 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
When hours for sale of alcohol are extended hereunder these hours are also extended 
(see box M) 
 

 

Late Night Refreshment 
 
Monday to Sunday   23:00 - 00:00    
 

 

The sale by Retail of Alcohol (Indoors & 
Outdoors) (On and off the premises) 

 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 00:00   Indoors 
 
Monday to Sunday   10:00 - 22:00   Outdoors 
 
To permit the sale of alcohol and such regulated entertainment as authorised hereunder 
until 00.30 (if not otherwise granted pursuant to this application) on Friday, Saturday, 
Sunday and Monday at bank holiday weekends, Christmas Eve, Boxing Day, New Years 
Day and all major Saints days. 
New Years Eve: 10:00 to New Years Day - terminal hour as proposed. 
 

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES 

 

Monday to Sunday   07:00-01:00 

 

The Premises shall close for service to the public 30 minutes after the end of non standard timings identified in box J 
above 

Agenda Page 20 Agenda Item 3a



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0430 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:47 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 9 of 9 

 

 

 

 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES 

 

The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption both ON and OFF the premises. 

 

 

Part 2 

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE 

  

Greene King Developments Ltd 
 

Westgate Brewery  Bury St Edmunds  Suffolk  IP33 1QT   
 

 

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE) 

  

Greene King Developments Ltd 7425525 
 

 

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

Mr Robert Ian Lawton  

 
STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED 

 

 

Agenda Page 21 Agenda Item 3a



APPENDIX 2
A

genda P
age 22

A
genda Item

 3a



Gaming Machine Permits Code of Practice  
- Club Gaming Permits and Club Machine Permits  
- Alcohol Licensed Premises Permits and Permissions and 
  automatic entitlements 

June 2007 

Introduction 

i. This is the Gambling Commission’s Code of Practice issued under section 24 Gambling
Act 2005 (the Act) relating to provision of facilities for gambling in accordance with club
gaming, club machine and licensed premises gaming machine permits. This includes:

registrations under Parts II and III Gaming Act 1968 which, under transitional 
provisions, are treated as club gaming and club machine permits respectively; and 

alcohol licensed premises gaming machine permits (formerly s34 1968 Act 
permits). 

ii. The Code will come into force on 1 September 2007.

iii. Those items marked in bold and shaded are the provisions which are a condition of the
permit and must be complied with.

Section A: Location and operation of machines 

All permit holders 

Compliance with these provisions is a condition of your permit, and failure to do so 
could result in revocation of the permit.1 

1 All gaming machines situated on the premises must be located in a place within the 
premises so that their use can be supervised, either by staff whose duties include 
such supervision (including bar or floor staff) or by other means. 

Permit holders must have in place arrangements for such supervision. 

2 All gaming machines situated on the premises shall be located in a place that 
requires a customer who wishes to use any ATM made available on the premises to 
cease gambling at the gaming machine in order to do so. ‘ATM’ means a machine 
located on the premises, which enables a person using it to obtain cash by use of a 
credit or debit card. 

1
 Compliance with these provisions is a condition of the relevant permit as a result of the Gambling Act 2005: 

section 271 for Club Gaming Permits, section 273 for Club Machine Permits, section 282 for alcohol licensed 
premises using their automatic machine permissions and section 283 for licensed premises Gaming 
Machine Permits and alcohol licensed premises Gaming Machine Permits. 

APPENDIX 3
Agenda Page 23 Agenda Item 3a



Gaming Machine Permits Code of Practice: Issued June 2007 

 

 2 

 
Section B: Access to gambling by children and young persons 
 

All permit holders 
 

This section sets out the best practice which the Gambling Commission considers 
should be implemented by permit-holders, compliance with this provision is not a 
condition of your permit. 
 
3 Permit holders should put into effect procedures intended to prevent underage gambling. 

This should include procedures for:  

 checking the age of apparently underage customers; and  

 refusing access to anyone who appears to be underage, and who tries to use 
category B or C gaming machines and cannot produce an acceptable form of 
identification.  

 
4 Permit holders should take all reasonable steps to ensure that all relevant employees 

understand their responsibilities for preventing underage gambling.  
 
5 Permit holders should only accept identification which:  

 contains a photograph from which the individual can be identified;  

 is valid; and  

 is legible and has no visible signs of tampering or reproduction.  
 

(The Commission considers acceptable forms of identification to include any identification 
carrying the PASS logo (eg Citizencard, Validate and the Government’s own Connexions 
card); driving licence (including a provisional licence) with photocard; and passport).  

 
6 Procedures should be in place for dealing with cases where a child or young person 

repeatedly attempts to gamble on category B or C machines, including oral warnings, 
reporting the offence to the Gambling Commission and the police, and making available 
information on problem gambling.  
 

Section C: Self exclusion 
 

This section sets out the best practice which the Gambling Commission considers 
should be implemented by permit-holders, compliance with this provision is not a 
condition of your permit. 
 

Club gaming permit and club machine permit holders only   
 
7 Permit holders should put in place procedures for self-exclusion and take all reasonable 

steps to refuse service or to otherwise prevent an individual who has entered a self-
exclusion agreement from participating in gambling. 

 
8 Permit holders should implement procedures designed to ensure that an individual who 

has self-excluded cannot gain access to gambling; this includes:  

 a register of those excluded with appropriate records (name, address, other 
details, and any membership or account details that may be held by the 
operator);  

 photo identification (where available and in particular where enforcement of the 
system may depend on photographic ID), and a signature; 

 staff training to ensure that relevant staff are able to enforce the systems; and  

 the removal of those self-excluded persons found in the gambling area or 

Agenda Page 24 Agenda Item 3a



Gaming Machine Permits Code of Practice: Issued June 2007 

 

 3 

attempting to gamble from the premises.  
 

9 Self-exclusion procedures should require individuals to take positive action in order to self-
exclude. This can be a signature on a self-exclusion form.  

 
10 Before an individual self-excludes, permit holders should provide or make available 

sufficient information about what the consequences of self-exclusion are. Customers 
should be given the opportunity to discuss self-exclusion in private, where possible.  

 
11 Permit holders should take all reasonable steps to ensure that: 

 the self-exclusion period is a minimum of six months and give customers the 
option of extending this to a total of at least five years;  

 a customer who has decided to enter a self-exclusion agreement is given the 
opportunity to so do immediately without any cooling off period. However, if the 
customer wishes to consider the self exclusion further (for example to discuss 
with problem gambling groups) the customer may return at a later date to enter 
into self exclusion;  

 at the end of the period chosen by the customer (and at least six months later), 
maintain the self-exclusion in place, unless the customer takes positive action in 
order to gamble again. No marketing material may be sent to the individual 
unless that has taken positive action in order to gamble again, and has agreed 
to accept such material; and 

 where a customer chooses not to renew, and makes a positive request to begin 
gambling again, give the customer 1 day to cool off before being allowed access 
to the gambling facilities.  

 
12 Please note that the Commission does not require the permit-holder to carry out an 

assessment or make any judgement of whether the individual should have access to 
gambling. The requirement to take positive action in person or over the phone is purely to: 

a)  check that the customer has considered the decision to access gambling again 
and allow them to consider the implications; and  

b) implement the 1 day cooling-off period and explain why this has been put in 
place. 

Gambling Commission June 2007 

GUI 07/07 

 

 

The Gambling Commission regulates gambling in the public interest. It does so by keeping crime 

out of gambling, by ensuring that gambling is conducted fairly and openly, and by protecting 

children and vulnerable people from being harmed or exploited by gambling. The Commission also 

provides independent advice to government on gambling in Britain.  

 

For further information or to register your interest in the Commission please visit our website at: 

www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

 

Gambling Commission 

Victoria Square House   

Victoria Square     

Birmingham B2 4BP     

 

T 0121 230 6500 

F 0121 233 1096 

E info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

 

Agenda Page 25 Agenda Item 3a



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 

April 2013 

Gambling Act 2005 

Statement of Licensing Policy 
 

 

APPENDIX 4 

Agenda Page 27 Agenda Item 3a



Contents Page 

Part A: General 

1.0 

2.0 

The Licensing Objectives 

Introduction 

Legal background and rationale 

Development Process and Consultation 

Declaration 

Responsible Authorities 

Interested Parties 

Exchange of Information 

Integration Strategies 

Enforcement 

Licensing Authority functions 

Hearings 

3 

3 

4 

6 

7 

7 

7 

9 

10 

10 

12 

13 
 

14 
 

14 

15 

16 

16 

17 

18 

19 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

26 

27 

27 

27 

27 

29 

30 

31 

31 

2.1 

2.12 

3.0 

4.0 

5.0 

6.0 

7.0 

8.0 

9.0 

10.0 

Part B: Premises Licences 

11.0 General principles 

Definition of “Premises” 

Location 

Duplication with other regulatory regimes 

Licensing objectives 

Conditions 

Default Conditions 

Door Supervisors 

Adult Gaming Centres 

(Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 

Casinos 

Bingo Premises 

Betting premises 

Tracks 

Gaming Machines 

Betting Machines 

Condition on rules being displayed 

Applications and plans 

Travelling Fairs 

Provisional Statements 

Reviews 

Decision to grant application for a review 

11.6 

11.14 

11.15 

11.16 

11.19 

11.21 

11-25 

12.0 

13.0 

14.0 

15.0 

16.0 

17.0 

17.6 

17.7 

17.9 

17.10 

18.0 

19.0 

20.0 

20.2 

1 

 

Agenda Page 28 Agenda Item 3a



Contents Page 

Part C: Permits / Temporary and Occasional Use Notices 32 

21.0 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits 32 

21.13 Renewals 34 

21.15 Maintenance 34 

22.0 (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits 34 

23.0 Prize Gaming Permits 36 

24.0 Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 39 

25.0 Temporary Use Notices 42 

26.0 Occasional Use Notices 44 

27.0 Gaming Machines 45 

Appendix 1 
 

Appendix 2 

Glossary of terminology 47 

Map detailing key locations in the Chorley district 48 

Appendix 3 
Schedule of Consultees 49 

Appendix 4 
List of Responsible Authorities with addresses 54 

Appendix 5 
Useful contacts 55 

2 

 

Agenda Page 29 Agenda Item 3a



PART A:  GENERAL 

1. The Licensing Objectives 

1.1 In exercising most of the functions under the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act), Chorley 
Council is designated the Licensing Authority (the Authority) and must have regard 
to the licensing objectives as set out in Section 1 of the Act. The licensing 
objectives are: 

• Preventing  gambling  from  being  a  source  of  crime  or  disorder,  being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime; 
 

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and 
 

Protecting  children  and  other  vulnerable  persons  from  being  harmed  or 
exploited by gambling. 

• 

 

• 

1.2 The Gambling Commission has specifically stated that the requirement in relation 
to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by gambling, 
to which the Authority will have regard. 

1.3 In accordance with Section 153 of the Act, the Authority shall aim to permit the use 
of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it: 

• In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission under Section 24 of the Act; 
 

In   accordance   with   any   relevant   guidance   issued   by  the   Gambling 
Commission under Section 25 of the Act; 

Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives, and 

In accordance with this Statement of Principles. 

• 

• 

 

• 

1.4 A Glossary of the key terms used in this Statement of Principles is detailed at 
Appendix 1. 

2. Introduction 

Chorley Council is situated in the County of Lancashire, which contains 12 District Councils 
and 2 unitary authorities. The Borough has 23 Parish councils and a population of 
100,449 (National Census 2001), covering an area of 80 square miles. 

The Borough is set in attractive countryside between the West Pennine Moors and the 
Lancashire Plain. 

A map of the Borough is in Appendix 2 

3 

 

Agenda Page 30 Agenda Item 3a



Legal background and rationale 

2.1 This Statement of Principles (the Statement) sets out the manner in which the 
Authority will generally apply to promote the licensing objectives when considering 
and making decisions on applications made under the Act. This Statement has 
been prepared under Section 349 of the Act and in accordance with the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance (the Guidance) for Licensing Authorities issued under 
Section 25 of the Act. The Authority is therefore constrained by the provisions of 
the Act, the Guidance and any Regulations made under the Act. However, the 
Authority may depart from the Guidance if it has reason to do so, but will give full 
justification for such departure. 

The Authority is required by Section 349 of the Act to publish this Statement, which 
it  proposes  to  apply  when  exercising  its  functions. This  Statement  shall  be 
effective  from  the April  2013,  and  shall  remain  in  effect  for  three  years; 
therefore this Statement will be reviewed in January 2016. Following this full 
review of its Statement, and prior to its publication, the Authority will consult fully 
those groups and individuals consulted on this version. 

1st 

2.2 This Statement will also be kept under review during this three year period, and 
accordingly, the Director People and Places will maintain an ‘Issues Log’ in which 
all issues pertaining to this Statement will be recorded.  Therefore the Authority will 
make revisions to the Statement from “time to time” as it considers appropriate. 
For example, where relevant issues have arisen, or where matters recorded in the 
‘Issues Log’ indicate that such a review is required.  A further consultation will be 
carried out on any amendments made to the Statement, and the Statement will be 
re-published. 

2.3 Nothing in this Statement will override the right of any person to apply under the 
Act for a variety of permissions and have that considered on its own merits and 
according to the statutory requirements of the Act. 

2.4 Nothing  in  this  Statement  will  override  the  right  of  any  person  to  make 
representations on any application or seek a review of a licence or certificate 
where they are permitted to do so under the Act. 

2.5 The Council also has a responsibility under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998 to do all that it reasonably can to reduce crime and disorder in its area. 
Accordingly, it is recognised that prevention of crime and disorder is a vital element 
of  ensuring  the  quality  of  life  in  a  community  and  an  important  aspect  of  a 
successful and vibrant economy. 

2.6 Chorley  Council  recognises  that  in  considering  applications  and  taking  of 
enforcement action under the Act, it is subject to the Human Rights Act 1998 and 
in particular: 

� 

� 

� 

� 

Part 1 of the First Protocol - peaceful enjoyment of possessions. 
Part 6 right to a fair hearing. 
Part 8 respect for private and family life. 
Part 10 right to freedom of expression. 

4 

 

Agenda Page 31 Agenda Item 3a



Chorley Council also  acknowledges the rights of businesses in its area to operate, 
but this must be balanced against the rights of residents not to be disturbed by 
unreasonable nuisance caused by licensed premises/activities. Full consideration 
has been given to these issues in formulating this Statement. 

2.7 This Statement recognises the Race Relations Act 1976, as amended by the Race 
Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, which places a legal obligation on public 
authorities to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination and 
to promote equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different 
racial groups. This Statement also recognises that the Council is required to 
produce a race equality scheme assessing the impact of proposed policies on race 
equality and to monitor polices for only adverse impact on the promotion of race 
equality, and this Statement is referenced in this race equality scheme. The 
Authority, in determining applications, will have regard to this legislation so as to 
avoid any possible indirect discriminatory impact on particular ethnic groups. 

2.8 This Statement recognises the Disability Discrimination Act 1995, however no 
condition will be attached to a licence or certificate that conflicts or duplicates this 
requirement. 

2.9 Chorley Council will steer to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes as far 
as   possible   e.g.   health   &   safety   at   work   and   fire   safety   requirements. 

2.10 Unmet demand is not a criteria for the Authority in considering an application for a 
premises licence. 

Development process and consultation. 

2.11 The Council consulted widely upon this Statement before finalising and publishing 
the document.  A list of the persons consulted can be provided on request. 

2.12 The Act requires the Authority to consult the following parties: 

Chief Officer of Police 

One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests 
of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area. 

One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 
persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions 
under the Gambling Act 2005. 

Consultation for this review period takes place between 3rd December 2012 and 1st 

March 2013 and follows the Revised Code of Practice for public consultations 
2.15 

2.16 The full list of comments made, and the consideration by the Council of 
comments, will be available from the Council using the contact details 
below . 

those 
given 

5 

 

Agenda Page 32 Agenda Item 3a



2.17 The  original  Statement  was  approved  at  a  meeting  of  the Council  19 
December  2006  on  and  was  published  on  the  Council’s  website  thereafter. 

2.18 If  you  have  any comments  as  regards  this  Statement,  please  send  them  via 
e-mail or letter to: 
 

Director People and Places 

Email: contact@chorley.gov.uk 

Mail to: Chorley Council 
Civic Offices 
Union Street 
Chorley PR7 1AL 

3.0 Declaration 

In producing the final statement, this Licensing Authority declares that it has had regard to 
the licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission, and any responses from those consulted on the Statement. 

4.0 Responsible Authorities 

These are specified in Section 157 of the Act and are set out in appendix 4. 

4.1 When exercising its powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, 
a body that is competent to advise the Authority about the protection of children 
from harm, the Authority is required to state the principles it will apply. These 
principles are: 

The need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the 
licensing authority’s area; 

The need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, rather 
than any particular vested interest group etc. 

4.2 Therefore, in accordance with the Guidance, the Authority designates Lancashire 
County Council  Child  Services  Directorate  (or  equivalent)  as the  body that  is 
competent to advise the Council about the protection of children from harm. 

4.3 Responsible authorities are public bodies that must be notified of applications and 
are  entitled  to  make  representations  to  the  Authority  for  and,  in  relation  to, 
premises licences. 

5.0 Interested Parties 

Section 158 of the Act defines an Interested Party. An Interested Party can make 
representations about licence applications, or apply for a review of an existing licence. 

5.1 Section 158 of the Act defines an interested party: as any person who: 

6 

 

Agenda Page 33 Agenda Item 3a



• Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 
authorised activities; or 

Has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; or 

Acts as a representative of those persons who satisfy either of the above 
points. 

• 

 

• 

5.2 The Authority will consider whether a person is an interested party with regard to 
particular premises on a case-by-case basis and make a decision upon its merits. 
However, the Authority may have regard to a number of factors when making its 
decision e.g. the size of the premises and the nature of the activities taking place. 

Larger premises may be considered to affect people over a broader geographical 
area compared to smaller premises offering similar facilities. 

The factors that the Licensing Authorities may take into account when determining 
'what sufficiently close to the premises' means, may include: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

size of the premises; 
 

nature of the premises; 
 

distance of premises from the location of the person making the 
representation; 
 

potential impact of the premises (number of customers, routes likely to be 
taken by customers) and; 
 

circumstances of the complainant. The Licensing Authority will not take into 
account the personal characteristics of the complainant but the interests of 
the complainant which may be relevant to the distance from the premises eg 
the Licensing Authority would reasonably conclude that "sufficiently close to 
be likely to be affected" could have a different meaning for a private resident 
or a residential hostel for vulnerable adults. 

� 

� 

5.3 The  Authority  will  consider  the  examples  of  considerations  provided  in  the 
Guidance when making a decision as to whether or not a person is an interested 
party.  If the Authority does not wish to follow the Guidance in any respect, it will 
provide  written reasons as to why this deviation has taken place,  noting  that 
decisions on Premises Licences must be “in accordance” with the Guidance. 
Interested parties may include trade associations,  trade unions,  residents  and 
tenants associations.  However, it will not generally view these bodies as interested 
persons unless they represent a person or body who comes within the definition as 
set out in paragraph 5.2 

5.4 

5.5 Persons  representing  these  interested  parties  may  also  be  persons  who  are 
democratically  elected  such  as  ward  Councillors,  Members  of  Parliament  and 
Parish Councillors. Other than these persons, the Authority will require written 
evidence that a person ‘represents’ someone who either lives sufficiently close to 
the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities and/or business 
interests that might be affected by the authorised activities.  A letter from one of 
these persons, requesting the representation will be deemed as sufficient.   The 

7 

 

Agenda Page 34 Agenda Item 3a



Licensing Authority will have regard to anything an interested party says about his 
status to make representation. 

5.6 Persons with business interests that could be affected: 

The Licensing Authority will have to be satisfied that a relevant business is likely to 
be affected. 

The Licensing Authority is aware that the "demand tests” in previous legislation has 
not been preserved in the 2005 Act. 

The Licensing Authority consider factors likely to be relevant to include: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

size of the premises; 
 

'catchment' area of the premises and; 
 

whether the person making the representation has business interests in the 
area that may be affected. 

5.7 If individuals wish to approach ward Councillors to ask them to represent their 
views, then care should be taken that the Councillors are not part of the Statutory 
Committee that will deal with the licence application. If there are any doubts, 
please contact the Councils Head of Legal Services using the contact details given 
at Appendix 5. 

6.0 Exchange of Information 

Sections 29 and 30 of the Act require the Authority to state the principles to be applied by 
the  Authority  with  respect  to  the  exchange  of  information  between  it  and  the 
Commission.  In addition, Section 350 of the Act also requires the Authority to state the 
principles to be applied with respect to the exchange of information between it and the 
other persons listed in Schedule 6 to the Act. 

6.1 In this regard, the Authority will act in accordance with the provisions of the Act in 
its exchange of information, which includes the provision that the Data Protection 
Act 1998 will not be contravened and conform to the requirements of the Freedom 
of Information Act 2000. The Authority will also have regard to any Guidance 
issued by the Commission to Local Authorities on this matter, as well as any 
relevant regulations, codes of practice etc. 

6.2 Where any protocols are established to facilitate such exchange of information, 
these will be made available. 

6.3 Details  of  those  persons  making  representations  will  be  made  available  to 
applicants to allow for negotiation and, in the event of a hearing being required, will 
form part of a public document. Any person making a representation, or applying 
for review of a premises licence, will be informed that their details will be disclosed. 

8 

 

Agenda Page 35 Agenda Item 3a



7.0 Integration Strategies 

General 

7.1 There are many stakeholders in the gambling industry, covering a wide range of 
disciplines. Many are  involved,  directly or  indirectly,  in the promotion of  the 
licensing  objectives. The  Authority,  therefore,  recognises  that  as  part  of 
implementing local authority cultural strategies, proper account should be taken of 
the  need  to  encourage  such  activities  for  the  wider  cultural  benefit  of  the 
community.  The Authority will aim to monitor the impact of its decisions to ensure 
that this principle is being upheld. 

7.2 Many of these strategies deal in part with the licensing function, and the Authority 
will establish appropriate liaison arrangements to ensure proper integration of local 
crime prevention, planning, local transport, tourism and cultural strategies. 

7.3 Coordination of duties will involve close, and regular, liaison with Responsible 
Authorities.   This shall be carried out through regular local meetings, regarding 
strategic and operational issues raised by the Act. 

7.4 The Authority recognises the need to avoid so far as possible duplication with any 
other regulatory regimes. However, some regulatory regimes do not cover the 
unique circumstances of some entertainment and, where relevant representations 
have been received, the Authority will consider attaching conditions to a licences 
or permission where these are necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and are not already provided for in any other legislation. 

8.0 Enforcement 

The Authority is required by regulation to state the principles to be applied by the 
Authority  in  exercising  the  functions  under  Part  15  of  the  Act  with  respect  to  the 
inspection of premises; and the powers under section 346 of the Act to institute criminal 
proceedings in respect of the offences specified. 

8.1 The Authority’s principles for enforcement are that: 

It will be guided by the Guidance and any code of best practice and aim to be: 

• Proportionate: the Authority will only intervene when necessary:   remedies 
will be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised. 
 

Accountable:  decisions will be justified, and be subject to public scrutiny. 

Consistent: rules and standards will be joined up and implemented fairly. 

Transparent:  regulators should be open, and keep regulations made simple 
and user friendly wherever possible; and 
 

Targeted:   regulation will be focused on the problem, and aim to minimise 
side effects. 

• 
 

• 

 

• 

• 

8.2 In accordance with the Guidance, the Authority will endeavour to avoid duplication 
with  other  regulatory regimes so far  as  possible. The  Authority will  also,  as 

9 

 

Agenda Page 36 Agenda Item 3a



recommended  by  the  Guidance,  adopt  a  risk-based  inspection  programme  of 
premises. This  involves  targeting  high-risk  premises  which  require  greater 
attention whilst operating a lighter touch in respect of low risk premises.   In this 
way,  resources  are  more  effectively concentrated  on  problem  premises. The 
criteria and programme that the Authority is to use to determine the level of risk in 
respect of risk will be made available separately from this statement. 

8.3 The main enforcement and compliance role for the Authority will be to ensure 
compliance with the Premises Licences and other permissions that it authorises. 
The Commission will be the enforcement body for Operator and Personal Licences. 
Any concerns about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be 
dealt with by the Authority, but will be notified to the Commission.  The Commission 
will also be responsible for compliance as regards unlicensed premises. 

8.4 The Authority will also keep itself informed of developments as regards the work of 
the Better Regulation Executive in its consideration of the regulatory functions of 
local authorities and will adopt the principles of better regulation. 

8.5 To ensure transparency in its enforcement action, the Authority maintains an 
enforcement policy to which all staff must comply.  A copy of the enforcement policy 
is  available  upon  request  to  the  Licensing  Service,  using  the  contact  details 
provided at Appendix 5. 

9.0 Licensing Authority functions 

The Act requires the Authority to: 

• Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to 
take place by issuing Premises Licences. 

Issue Provisional Statements. 

• Regulate  members’  clubs  and  miners’  welfare  institutes  who  wish  to 
undertake certain gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or 
Club Machine Permits. 
 

Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs. 
 

Grant  permits  for  the  use  of  certain  lower  stake  gaming  machines  at 
unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres. 
 

Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing Act 
2003) of the use of two or fewer gaming machine. 
 

Grant Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to 
sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises, under  the 
Licensing Act 2003, where more than two machines are required. 
 

Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds. 

Issue Prize Gaming Permits. 

Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices. 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

10 

 

Agenda Page 37 Agenda Item 3a



• 

 

• 

Receive Occasional Use Notices. 
 

Provide  information  to  the  Gambling  Commission  regarding  details  of 
licences issued (see section above on ‘information exchange). 
 

Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these 
functions. 

• 

9.1 It should be noted that the Authority is not involved in licensing remote gambling at 
all.  This is the responsibility of the Commission, which is controlled via Operator 
Licences. 

The Licensing Authority will determine the delegated functions under the Act. 

9.2 The Licensing Authority is aware that the Code of Conduct will apply in their 
decision making and that public confidence in their decision making is paramount. 
The general principles that apply in decision making to underpin the Code of 
Conduct are that members of licensing authorities should: 

9.3 

� serve  only  the  public  interest  and  should  never  improperly  confer  an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person; 
 

not place themselves in situations where their honesty and integrity may be 
questioned and make decisions on merit; 
 

be accountable to the public for their actions; 
 

reach their own conclusions on the issues before them and act in accordance 
with those conclusions; and 
 

uphold the law and, on all occasions, act in accordance with the trust that 
the public is entitled to place in them. 

� 

� 
 

� 

10.0 Hearings 

A hearing will be arranged to deal with any applications, which cannot be dealt with 
under delegated powers or resolved by agreement between applicants and interested 
parties and/or Responsible Authorities. 

10.1 Each case will be determined on its individual merits. 

10.2 Hearings will be held at the earliest possible date having regard to the regulations 
published under the Act and the laws of natural justice. The Licensing Sub- 
Committee   will   conduct   a   quasi-judicial   consideration   of   the  application, 
objections and representations. Members will carefully consider their position 
should they be requested to hear a matter which occurs in their own ward. 

10.3 A legal advisor, advocate or a friend may represent applicants where they do not 
choose  to  represent  themselves. The  Authority  will  endeavour  to  assist 
applicants in preparing for and participating in a hearing. 

10.4 Whilst the Committee and Sub-Committees will usually meet in public they do 
have the power to hear certain applications in private.  A public announcement of 

11 

 

Agenda Page 38 Agenda Item 3a



the decision will be made at the end of the hearing.  The decision determined by 
the Committee or Sub-Committee will be accompanied with clear reasons for the 
decisions, having regard to the Human Rights Act 1998, the three Licensing 
Objectives and all other relevant legislation. 

10.5 Conditions  may  be  attached  to  licences  where  relevant  representations  are 
received.  Any condition attached to a licence will be related to one or more of the 
Licensing Objectives, and conditions will not relate to matters, which are the 
subject of other legislation. 

PART B: PREMISES LICENCES 

11.0 General Principles 

Where an individual or company proposes to offer gambling for which an operating 
licence is required, and which is premises based, that individual or company will also 
need to apply for a premises licence. 

11.1 Premises licences are issued by the Licensing Authority with responsibility for the 
area  in  which  the  premises  are  situated. In  the  Borough  of  Chorley,  the 
Licensing Authority is Chorley Council. 

11.2 Premises licences, under Section 150 of the Act, can authorise the provision of 
facilities on: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

casino premises; 
 

bingo premises; 
 

betting premises; including tracks and premises used by betting 
intermediaries; 

adult gaming centres (for Category B3, C and D machines); and 

family entertainment centres (for Category C and D machines only). 

� 
 

� 

11.3 Premises Licences will be subject to the permissions/restrictions set out in the 
Act  and  associated  regulations,  as  well  as  specific  mandatory  and  default 
conditions.  The Authority is able to exclude default conditions and also attach 
others, where it is believed to be appropriate. 

11.4 The Authority is aware that in making decisions about Premises Licences it 
should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it is: 

• In   accordance   with   any   relevant   code   of   practice   issued   by   the 
Commission. 
 

In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission. 

Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. 

In accordance with this Statement. 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

12 

 

Agenda Page 39 Agenda Item 3a



11.5 The Authority is aware that as per the Gambling Commissions Guidance, moral 
objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications, and also that 
unmet demand is not criterion for a Licensing Authority 

 Def init ion of “ prem 
ises”  
11.6 Premises is defined in the Act as “any place” Section 152 of the Act prevents 

more than one Premises Licence applying to any place. However, it is possible 
for a single building to be subject to more than one Premises Licence, provided 
they are for different parts of the building and the different parts of the building 
can be reasonably regarded as being different premises. Whether different parts 
of a building can be properly regarded as being separate premises will always be 
a question of fact in the circumstances. However, the Authority follows the 
Commission guidance and does not consider that areas of a building that are 
artificially or temporarily separate can be properly regarded as different premises. 

11.7 The Authority will pay particular attention to applications where access to the 
licensed premises is through other premises (which themselves may be licensed 
or unlicensed).   The sort of issues that the Authority will consider before granting 
such applications e.g. whether children can gain access, compatibility of the two 
establishments  and  ability to  comply  with  the  Act. However,  the  overriding 
consideration will be, whether taken as a whole, the co-location of the premises 
with other facilities, has the effect of creating an arrangement that otherwise 
would or should, be prohibited under the Act. 

11.8 When  considering  applications  for  multiple  licences  for  a  building  or  those 
relating to a specific part of a building used for other (non-gambling purposes) the 
Authority will generally require entrances and exits from parts of a building 
covered by one or more licences to be separate and identifiable so that the 
separation of different premises is not compromised and that people do not ‘drift’ 
into a gambling area. 

11.9 With certain exceptions, children will not be permitted to enter licensed gambling 
premises. Therefore  applicants  should  consider  carefully  how  they  wish  to 
configure   their   buildings   if   they   are   seeking   to   develop   multi   purpose 
establishments. 

11.10 The Authority may, where reasonable, require persons operating premises in 
which gambling takes place to take measures such as the supervision of 
entrances,  segregation  of  gambling  from  non-gambling  areas  frequented  by 
children (if their non-gambling areas are compatible with the requirements of the 
Act) and the supervision of gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific 
premises in order to provide the licensing objectives. This will be done by 
attaching licence conditions where appropriate. 

11.11 The Act permits premises licences to be granted for passenger vessels.  A vessel 
is defined by the Act ( Section 353(1) as: 

• Anything  (other  than  a  sea  plane  or  amphibious  vehicle)  designed  or 
adapted for use on water. 
 

A hovercraft; or • 

13 

 

Agenda Page 40 Agenda Item 3a



• Anything, or part of any place, situated on or in water. 

11.12 Structures which are an extension of land are not vessels.  The Act applies in 
relation to a vessel which is not permanently moored or berthed as if it were 
premises situated in a place where it is usually moored or berthed.  The relevant 
Licensing Authority will be the Licensing Authority for the area in which it is 
usually moored or berthed. 

11.13 Where a premises licence is sought for a vessel which will be navigated whilst 
licensable activities take place the Authority will be concerned with the promotion 
of the Licensing Objectives on-board the vessel. The Licensing Authority will not 
focus on matters relating to safe navigation, operation of the vessel, general 
safety or emergency provision. 

Location 

11.14 Demand issues cannot be considered with regard to the location of premises but 
considerations in terms of the licensing objectives can.   The Authority will pay 
particular attention to the protection of children and vulnerable persons from 
being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder. 
For example, the Authority would have regard to the proximity of the premises to 
schools, vulnerable adult centres or residential areas where there may be a high 
concentration of families and children.   If the Authority is mindful to make any 
specific decision that states any area(s) where gambling premises should not be 
located,  this  Statement  will  be  updated. It  should  be  noted  that  any  such 
decision would not preclude any application being made and each application will 
be decided on its merits, with the onus upon the applicant showing how such 
concerns can be overcome. 

Duplication with other regulatory regimes 

11.15   The Authority will not take into account irrelevant matters i.e. those not related to 
gambling and the Licensing Objectives and will seek to avoid any duplication with 
other statutory / regulatory systems.  The Authority will not consider whether a 
licence application is likely to be awarded planning or building consent, in its 
consideration of it.  However, the Authority will listen to, and consider carefully, 
any  concerns  about  conditions,  which  cannot  be  met  by  licensees  due  to 
planning restrictions, should such a situation arise. 

Licensing objectives 

11.16   All Premises Licences granted by the Authority must be reasonably consistent 
with the licensing objectives.  With regard to these objectives, the Authority has 
considered the Guidance and offers the following comments: 

Preventing  gambling  from  being  a  source  of  crime  or  disorder,  being 
associated  with  crime  or  disorder  or  being  used  to  support  crime  - 
Notwithstanding the above paragraphs, the Authority will pay attention to the 
proposed  location  of  any  gambling  premises  in  relation  to  this  objective. 
Therefore, if an area has known high levels of organised crime, the Authority will 
consider whether gambling premises are suitable for that location. 

14 

 

Agenda Page 41 Agenda Item 3a



The Authority is also aware of the distinction between disorder and nuisance and 
will consider factors such as whether police assistance was required and how 
threatening the behaviour was to those who could see it. Issues of nuisance 
cannot be addressed under the Act. 

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way – The Authority 
will not concern itself with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open 
way, as this will be addressed via operating and personal licences. 

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling – The Authority will take the approach that in practice 
this would often mean preventing children from taking part in gambling, and 
therefore when determining a relevant application, the Authority will consider 
whether specific measures are required at the premises. 

At present no definition is offered with regard to the term “vulnerable persons”, 
therefore the Authority will consider this objective on a case-by-case basis. 
However the Guidance does state that “it will for regulatory purposes assume 
that this group includes people who gamble more than they want to; people who 
gamble beyond their means; and people who may not be able to make informed 
or balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or 
drugs.” Where a practical definition is made available in the future, this Statement 
will be updated. 

11.17 Section 183 applies to all premises licences.  It attaches a mandatory condition 
that facilities for gambling must not be provided on Xmas Day (i.e. 00.01 hrs on 
25 December until 00.00 hrs on 26 December). 

11.18 Secretary of State to set out in Regulations, conditions that must be attached to 
premises licences. 

The Authority shall only consider imposing individual conditions when imposing a 
more restrictive regime in respect of matters dealt with by mandatory conditions 
where there are regulatory concerns of an exceptional nature and any additional 
licence conditions will relate to the licensing objective. 

Conditions 

11.19   Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate to the areas they are 
trying to address and will be: 

• Relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling 
facility; 
 

Directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for; 

Fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and 

Reasonable in all other respects. 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

15 

 

Agenda Page 42 Agenda Item 3a



11.20 Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis. 
However, there are a number of control measures that the Authority will consider 
utilising should there be a perceived need, such as the use of door supervisors, 
supervision of adult gaming machines, appropriate signage for adult only areas 
etc. Specific comments made in this regard under each of the licence types 
below. The Authority will also expect the licence applicant to offer his/her own 
suggestions as to the way in which the licensing objectives can be met 
effectively. 

The Licensing Authority recognises that the Act specifies certain conditions which 
cannot be attached to premises licences namely; 

• any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible to comply 
with an operating licence condition; 
 

conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of 
operation; 
 

conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required 
(the Gambling Act 2005 specifically removes the membership requirement 
for casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated; 
and 
 

conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winnings or prizes. 
 

These considerations will apply to premises including buildings where 
multiple premises licences are applicable. 

• 

• 

• 
 

• 

Default Conditions 

11.21 These may be imposed by the Secretary of State under Section 168 of the Act. 

The  Licensing  Authority  has  the  power  to  exclude  a  default  condition  and 
substitute it with one that is either more or less restrictive. 

11.22 Section 169 of the Act gives the Authority power to: 

� exclude from premises licence any default conditions imposed under S168; 
and 
 

power to impose conditions on the premises licences it issues. � 

The Licensing Authority recognises that default conditions are intended to be the 
basic industry norm and where it excludes default conditions and replaces them 
with more restrictive areas it will ensure that it has clear regulatory reasons for 
doing so. 

11.23 Where there are specific risks or problems associated with a particular locality or 
specific  premises  or  class  of  premises  the  Licensing  Authority  may  attach 
individual conditions to address this. 

11.24 This licensing authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than 
one premises licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the 

16 

 

Agenda Page 43 Agenda Item 3a



track.  As per the Gambling Commission's Guidance, this licensing authority will 
consider the impact upon the third licensing objective and the need to ensure that 
entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are excluded 
from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter. 

Door Supervisors 

11.25 The Authority may consider whether there is a need for door supervisors in terms 
of the licensing objectives of protection of children and vulnerable persons from 
being harmed or exploited by gambling, and also in terms of preventing premises 
becoming a source of crime. 
Where conditions requiring the presence of door supervisors may be attached to 
premise licences or other permissions, the authority will take account of available 
evidence, trading history and whether the presence of door supervisors is both 
necessary and proportionate. 

11.26 

11.27 It is noted that the Security Industry Authority cannot licence door supervisors at 
casinos or bingo premises. 

11.28 Section 178 of the Act provides that if a condition is attached which requires 
someone to be  responsible for "guarding  the premises against  unauthorised 
access or occupation, against outbreaks of disorder or against damage", such a 
person  would  normally  need  to  hold  a  licence  from  the  Security  Industry 
Authority, the requirement for a SIA licence becomes a condition of the premises 
licence.  Bingo premises and Casino premises are exempt from the need to have 
licensed door supervisors. 

The Authority can specify specific requirements for door supervisors, who are 
non-SIA registered.  This could include training from a recognised provider which 
could cover: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

Licensing Law. 
 

Civil and Criminal Law. 

Drug Awareness. 

Equal Opportunities and Customer Service. 

Children and Vulnerable Adults. 

Eviction/Arrest and searching people. 

First Aid. 
 

Door Supervisor Roles/Procedures and Standards. 

12.0 Adult Gaming Centres 

Persons operating Adult Gaming centres (AGC's) must hold a gaming machines general 
operating licence from the Commission and must seek a premises licence from the 
Licensing Authority. 

17 

 

Agenda Page 44 Agenda Item 3a



12.1 Section 172(1)  of the Act  provides that  a holder  of  a Adult Gaming Centre 
premises licence may make available for use up to four category B Machines; 
any number of category C or D machines.  The Secretary of State will specify 
that the Category B machines will be  restricted to sub-category B3 and B4 
machines. 

12.2 No one under the age of 18 is permitted to enter an Adult Gaming Centre. 

12.3 The Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures in place to 
minimise the opportunities for children to gain access to the premises. 

12.4 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to offer their own 
measures/licensing conditions which may cover issues such as: 

• 
 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

Proof of age schemes; 
 

CCTV; 
 

Door supervisors; 
 

Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 

Physical separation of areas; 

Location of entry; 

Notices / signage; 

Specific opening hours; 

Self barring schemes; 

Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare. 

Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 

13.0 (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 

The Act creates two classes of family entertainment centres (FECs) 

Licensed family entertainment centres - category C & D machines and which require a 
premises licence and: 
 

Unlicensed family entertainment centres - category D machines only and require a FEC 
gaming machine permit (see Section 21 below). 

13.1 Children and young persons are permitted to enter a FEC and may play on 
Category D machines only and there must be a clear segregation between the 
two  types  of  machine  so  that  children  do  not  have  access  to  Category  C 
machines. 

18 

 

Agenda Page 45 Agenda Item 3a



13.2 The Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure 
that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machine 
areas. 

13.3 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to offer their own 
measures/licensing conditions which may cover issues such as: 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

Proof of age schemes; 
 

CCTV; 
 

Door supervisors; 
 

Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 

Physical separation of areas; 

Location of entry; 

Notices / signage; 

Specific opening hours; 

Self barring schemes; 

Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
‘GamCare.’ 

Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 

13.4 The Authority will refer to the Commission’s website to see any conditions that 
apply to operator licences covering the way in which the area containing the 
category C machines should be delineated.  The Authority will also ensure that 
any  mandatory  or  default  conditions  on  these  Premises  Licences  are  used 
accordingly. 

14.0 Casinos 

Section 7(1) of the Act states that "a casino is an arrangement whereby people are 
given the opportunity to participate in one or more casino games".  Casino games are, in 
turn, defined by the Act to mean a game of Chance which is not equal chance gaming. 

14.1 Licensing Authorities have been given the role of issuing premises licences for 
casinos and monitoring those licences. 

14.2 Section 174 of the Act sets out three categories of casino premises licences. 
These are: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

one regional casino premises licence, 

eight large casino premises licence and 

eight small casino premises licence. 

19 

 

Agenda Page 46 Agenda Item 3a



The Secretary of State, after consultation with the Independent Casino Advisory 
Panel, will specify the areas for the 17 new casinos. 

14.3 The Licensing Authority recognises that unmet demand is not to be a criterion for 
a Licensing Authority in considering an application for a premises licence.  Each 
application will be on its merits. 

14.4 Section 166(1) of the Act provides that a Licensing Authority may resolve not to 
issue a casino premises licence. 

Chorley Council has yet to pass a resolution on a Casino premises. 

When the Council makes such a resolution, it will be a resolution passed by Full 
Council following considered debate and full reasons for the decision will be 
given. 

14.5 Notwithstanding  the  above  paragraph,  where  a  licensing  authority  area  is 
enabled to grant a Premises Licence for a new style casino (ie the Secretary of 
State has made such regulations under Section 175 of the Act) there are likely to 
be a number of operators which will want to run the casino. 

The Licensing Authority will follow the Commissions guidance for considering 
applications in these circumstances.  In particular, the Licensing Authority will not 
confuse planning or building regulation considerations with the matter before it. 
The Licensing Authority will comply with Schedule 9 of the Act and any relevant 
Codes of Practice in making its determination and in considering the matters to 
be taken into account when making any such determinations. 

14.6 The Act authorises the holder of a casino premises licence to make facilities 
available for betting on virtual events. 

14.7 The casino premises licence holder  must  comply with the Code of  Practice 
issued in relation to access to casino premises for children and young persons. 

14.8 Casino premises are exempt from the need to have licensed door supervisors by 
virtue of exclusion in the Private Security Industry Act 2001. 

15.0 Bingo premises 

The Act does not give bingo a statutory definition.  It is to have its ordinary and natural 
meaning.  The holder of a bingo operating licence will be able to offer any type of bingo 
game, whether cash or prize.  That means that premises with a bingo premises licence 
will be able to offer bingo in all its forms. 

15.1 Apart from commercial operators, prize bingo is traditionally a game played in 
arcades or travelling fun fairs. For these operators, prize bingo is subsumed 
within the allowances for prize gaming in the Act.   This means adult gaming 
centres, both licensed and unlicensed family entertainment centres, travelling 
fairs (or any premises with prize gaming permit) will be able to offer prize gaming, 
which includes prize bingo. In this form of gaming, the nature of the prize must 
not be determined by reference to the number of people playing the game, and 

20 

 

Agenda Page 47 Agenda Item 3a



the nature or size of the prize must not be determined by reference to the amount 
paid for or raised by the gaming. See the section on prize gaming. 

15.2 It is important that if children are allowed to enter premises licensed for bingo that 
they do not participate in gambling, other than category D machines. Where 
category C machines, or above, are available in the premises to which children 
are admitted, the Authority will ensure that: 

• All such machines are located in an area of the premises separate from the 
remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent 
access other than through a designated entrance. 
 

Only adults are admitted to this area where the machines are located. 

Access to the area where the machines are located is supervised. 

The area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be 
observed by staff of the operator or the licence holder, and 
 

At the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently 
displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons 
under 18. 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

• 

15.3 Under the Act, children and young persons (up to age of 18) cannot be employed 
in providing any facilities for gambling in bingo premises and children (under 16) 
cannot be employed in any capacity, at any time when facilities for playing bingo 
are offered.  The Commission will issue further guidance relating to the suitability 
and  layout  of  bingo  premises. 
information when it is published. 

The  Authority  will  therefore  consider  this 

15.4 The holder of a bingo premises licence may make available for use up to four 
category B machines (B3 & B4), any number of Category C and Category D 
machines. 

16.0 Betting Premises 

The Act contains a single class of licence for betting premises.   However, within this 
class, there will be different types of premises that will require licensing. 

16.1 This section relates to off-course betting, that is betting that takes place other 
than at a track.  Please see Part 17 for track betting. 

16.2 The  Licensing  Authority  is  responsible  for  issuing  and  monitoring  premises 
licences for all betting premises. 

16.3 Children and young persons will not be able to enter premises with a betting 
premises licence. 

16.4 The holder of a betting premises licence may make available for use up to four 
gaming machines of Category B (B2, B3 and B4), Category C and Category D. 
See Part 27 for information on gaming machines. 

21 

 

Agenda Page 48 Agenda Item 3a



16.5 The Act provides that a machine is not a gaming machine if it is designed or 
adapted for use to bet on future real events. Such machines will not count 
towards the maximum permitted number of gaming machines nor have to comply 
with any stake or prize limits.  However, machines that take bets on virtual races 
(re images generated by computer) are classed as gaming machines and do 
count towards the maximum permitted number of gaming machines and must 
meet the relevant category limitations for the premises. 

16.6 The Licensing Authority has the power to restrict the number of betting machines, 
their nature and the circumstances in which they are made available by attaching 
a condition to the betting premises licence. 

16.7 When considering whether to impose a condition to restrict the number of betting 
machines in a particular premises the Authority will take into account any known 
or likely breach of licensing objectives, the size of the premises, the number of 
counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of 
staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an 
offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable persons. 

16.8 Section 183 of the Act attaches a condition to a betting premises licence that 
facilities for gambling must not be provided on Christmas Day (00.01 on 25 
December until 00.00 on 26 December). 

17.0 Tracks 

Tracks are sites where races or other sporting events take place re horse racecourses 
and dog tracks. 

17.1 There is no special class of betting premises licence for a track but the Act 
contains rules which apply specifically to a premises licence granted in respect of 
a track. 

17.2 Betting is often divided into "on-course" and "off-course" in relation to tracks: 

• On-course betting operator - comes onto the track temporarily, while races 
are taking place and operates at the track side. 
 

Off-course betting operators - may, in addition to the premises away from 
the track, operate self-contained betting premises within the track premises 
(See Part 16) 
 

Pool betting - can take place on tracks, but only on certain types of track, 
and the people who run it are limited. 

• 

• 

17.3 Tracks are different from other premises in that they may be subject to one or 
more Premises Licences, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the 
track.   There can be a primary (betting) licence for the track and, in addition, 
subsidiary premises licences for other gambling activities may be issued.   The 
Licensing Authority recognises that this will allow racecourses and other track 
venues to develop leisure facilities which offer a range of gambling facilities 
where this meets the principles for granting premises licences. 

22 

 

Agenda Page 49 Agenda Item 3a



17.4 An applicant for a track premises licence does not need to hold an operating 
licence unless he, as the occupier of the track, wishes to offer pool betting or 
general betting facilities himself. If the betting provided on track is by other 
operators  who  come  on  course,  they  are  required  to  hold  the  necessary 
operating licences.  They in turn will be covered by the track premises licence 
held by the track operator. 

17.5 Occasional use notices, which can only be issued in relation to tracks, may be 
relied upon for the provision of betting facilities for no more than 8 days in any 
calendar year.  Please see Part 26. 

Gaming Machines 

17.6 The  Licensing  Authority  will  have  regard  to  any  guidance,  issued  by  the 
Commission relating to the location of such machines and any special conditions 
relating to them. A betting premises licence does not give automatic entitlement 
to use gaming machines. However if the track operator who holds the premises 
licence also holds a pool betting operators licence then up to 4 gaming machines 
may be sited on the track (Categories B2 to D) 

Betting Machines 

17.7 The Licensing  Authority will take into  account the size of  the premises, the 
number of counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the 
ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons 
(it  is an offence for those under  18 to bet) or  by vulnerable persons when 
considering the number, nature and/or circumstances of betting machines an 
operator wants to offer. The Authority will also consider restricting the number 
and location of such machines in respect of applications for track betting 
Premises Licences. 

17.8 The Licensing Authority, following the Commissions guidance, would require all 
self-contained premises operated by Off-Course betting operators on tracks to be 
the subject of separate premises licence. This would ensure that there was 
clarity between the respective responsibilities of the track operator and the off- 
course betting operator running a self-contained unit on the premises. 

Condition on rules being displayed 

17.9 The  Licensing  Authority  may  attach  a  condition  to  track  Premises  Licences 
requiring the track operator to ensure that the rules are prominently displayed in 
or near the betting areas, or that other measures are taken to ensure that they 
are made available to the public.  For example, the rules could be printed in the 
race card or made available in leaflet form from the track office. 

Applications and Plans 

17.10   The  Licensing  Authority,  subject  to  any  information  being  prescribed  by 
Regulation, will require applicants for premises licence to submit detailed plans 
for the racetrack itself and the area used for temporary on-course betting facilities 
and in case of dog tracks and horse racecourses fixed and mobile pool betting 

23 

 

Agenda Page 50 Agenda Item 3a



facilities operated by the Tote or track operator, as well as any other proposed 
gambling  facilities. Applicants  are  to  ensure  that  plans  submitted  with  the 
application make it clear what is being sought under the track betting premises 
licence and what, if any, other areas are to be subject to a separate application 
for a different type of premises licence.  This is to ensure the appropriate licence 
conditions are applied. 

17.11 There will be mandatory premise licence conditions for horse racecourses and 
dog tracks in relation to access to tracks by holders of general betting operating 
licences. 

17.12 Under the Act, all those under the age of 18 must be excluded from any areas 
where facilities for betting are provided, and any area where Category B or C 
gaming machines are located. This is a condition of all track licences. 

However, children and young persons will be permitted to enter track areas 
where facilities for betting are provided on days when dog-racing and/or horse 
racing takes place, although they are still prevented from entering areas where 
gaming machines (other than category D machines) are provided. 

7.13 The  Authority  will  have  particular  regard  to  the  protection  of  children  and 
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling and the need to 
ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are 
excluded from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter. The 
Authority would expect Premises Licence applicants to demonstrate suitable 
measures to ensure that  children do not  have access to adult  only gaming 
facilities. 

7.14 The Authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet the 
licensing objectives. For example, appropriate licence conditions may cover 
such issues as: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Proof of age schemes; 

CCTV; 

Door supervisors; 

Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 

Physical separation of areas; 

Location of entry; 

Notices / signage; 

Specific opening hours; 

Self barring schemes; 

Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare. 

Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 
With regard to the protection of vulnerable persons, The Authority will consider 
measures such as the use of  self-barring  schemes,  provision of  information 
leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as ‘GamCare’. 

17.15 

24 

 

Agenda Page 51 Agenda Item 3a



Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 

18.0 Travelling Fairs 

The Act defines travelling fairs as "wholly or principally" providing amusements and they 
must be on a site that has been used for fairs for no more than 27 days per calendar 
year 

18.1 The Authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the statutory 
definition of a travelling fair. 

18.2 The 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used as a fair, is per calendar 
year, and it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held, regardless of 
whether it  is the same or  different  travelling fairs occupying the land.  The 
Authority will work with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that land that 
crosses our boundaries is monitored so that the statutory limits are not exceeded. 

18.3 Travelling fairs do not require a permit to provide gaming machines but must 
comply with legal requirements about the way the machine operates.  They may 
provide an unlimited number  of  Category D  gaming machines provided that 
gambling facilities amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair. 

18.4 Travelling fairs must comply with Schedule 14 to lawfully offer prize gaming. 
These are: 

• 

 

• 

The limits on participation fees as prescribed must be complied with. 
 

All chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises 
on which the gaming is taking place and on one day, the game must be 
played and completed on the day the chances are allocated, and the result 
of the game must be made public on the day that it is played. 
 

The prize for which the game is played must not exceed the prescribed 
amount (if a money prize) or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize). 
 

Participation in gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other 
gambling. 

• 

• 

19.0 Provisional Statements 

When considering Provisional Statements, it is a question of fact and degree whether 
premises are finished to a degree that they can be considered for a Premises Licence. 
Similarly, requiring the building to be complete ensures that the Authority can inspect it 
fully. 

19.1 The application must be accompanied by plans and other prescribed information. 

19.2 Responsible authorities and interested parties may make representations and the 
process for considering an application is as for a previous licence. 

25 

 

Agenda Page 52 Agenda Item 3a



19.3 Once the premises have been constructed, altered or acquired the holder of a 
provisional statement may return to the Authority and make application for a 
premises licence. 

In terms of representations about Premises Licence applications, following the 
grant  of  a  provisional  statement,  no  further  representations  from  relevant 
authorities or interested parties can be taken into account unless they concern 
matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional statement stage, 
or  they  reflect  a  change  in  the  applicant’s  circumstances. In  addition,  the 
Authority may refuse the Premises Licence (or grant it on terms different to those 
attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to matters: 

• Which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional licence 
stage; or 

 

• Which  in  the  authority’s  opinion  reflect  a  change  in  the  operator’s 
circumstances. 

19.4 The Authority will not take into account irrelevant matters.  An example of such 
an irrelevant matter would be the likelihood of the applicant obtaining planning 
permission or building regulations approval for the proposal. 

Section  204  of  the  Act  provides for  a  person to  make an  application for  a 
provisional statement in respect of premises that he or she: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

expects to be constructed; 
 

expects to be altered; or 
 

expects to acquire a right to occupy. 

The Licensing Authority, where an applicant has also applied to the Commission 
for an operating licence will not take into account the likelihood of an operating 
licence being  granted in its consideration of  an application for  a provisional 
statement. 

20.0 Reviews 

The Authority, under S200 of the Act may also initiate a review of a premises licence or 
class of premises licence in relation to a particular class of premises, the Authority may 
review the use made of the premises and, in particular the arrangements that premise 
licence holders have made to comply with licence conditions. 

In relation to a particular premises the Licensing Authority may review any matter 
connected to the use made of the premises if it has reason to suspect that 
licence conditions may not be being observed or for any other reason which 
gives cause to believe that a review may be appropriate. 

Decision to grant application for a review 

20.2 The Licensing Authority must grant an application for a review unless, it decides 
to reject the application on one (or more) of the following grounds: 

26 

 

Agenda Page 53 Agenda Item 3a



� not  relevant  to  Commission  guidance/Codes  of  Practice,  Statement  of 
Principles or licensing objectives e.g. issues relating to demand, planning, 
public safety; 

grounds are frivolous; 

grounds are vexatious; 

grounds "will certainly not" cause the Authority to revoke or suspend a 
licence or to remove, amend or attach conditions on the premises licence; 

grounds  are  substantially  the  same  as  grounds  used  on  a  previous 
application relating to the same premises; 

grounds are substantially the same as representations that were made at 
the   time   the   application   for   a   premises   licence   was   considered. 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

The Licensing Authority, if action is justified may; 

� 

� 

� 

� 

add, remove or amend a condition imposed by the Licensing Authority; 

exclude a default condition or remove or amend such an exclusion; 

suspend the premises licence for up to 3 months; 

revoke the premises licence. 

In determining  what  action,  if  any,  should  be  taken  following  a  review  the 
Authority will have regard to the general principles set out in Section 153 of the 
Act as well as any relevant representations. 

The Licensing Authority will hold a hearing unless the applicant and any person 
who has made relevant representations that have not been withdrawn (that are 
not vexatious, frivolous or irrelevant) consent to the review being conducted 
without one. 

20.3 A premises licence may be reviewed by the Authority of  its own volition or 
following receipt of an application for a review by a responsible Authority and 
Interested Party. However, it is for the Authority to determine whether the review 
takes place.  This will be on the basis of whether the request for the review is 
relevant to the matters listed below, as well as consideration as to whether the 
request is frivolous, vexatious, or whether it is substantially the same as previous 
representations or requests for a review. 

• In   accordance   with   any   relevant   code   of   practice   issued   by   the 
Commission. 

In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission. 

Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. 

In accordance with this statement. 

• 

• 

• 

20.4 The Authority can also initiate a review of a licence on the basis of any reason 
that it considers is appropriate. 

27 

 

Agenda Page 54 Agenda Item 3a



PART C: PERMITS / TEMPORARY & OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES 

21.0 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits (Statement of 
Principles on Permits – Schedule 10 paragraph 7) 

21.1 Unlicensed FEC’s will be able to offer only Category D machines.   Where a 
premises does not hold a Premises Licence but wishes to provide gaming 
machines, it may apply to the Authority for this permit. Applicants should note 
that under Section 238 of the Act they must demonstrate that the premises will be 
wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available for use. 
Permits cannot be issued for vessels or vehicles. 

21.2 If  the  operator  of  a  FEC  wants  to  make  Category C  machines  available  in 
addition to Category D machines, the Operator will have to apply for an operating 
licence from the Commission and a premises licence from the Licensing 
Authority.  (See Section 13 above) 

21.3 The Authority in accordance with the Guidance has prepared a statement of 
principles that it proposes to apply when considering applications for permits in 
particular the suitability of an applicant for a permit. In preparing this statement, 
and/or considering applications, it need not (but may) have regard to the 
licensing objectives and shall have regard to any relevant guidance issued by the 
Commission under Section 25. The Licensing Authority will give weight to child 
protection issues when considering these permits. 

2.4 The application for a permit can only be made by the person who occupies or 
plans to occupy the premises as an unlicensed FEC. If the applicant is an 
individual he must be aged 18 or over. 

21.5 Applications for a permit cannot be made if a premises licence is in force for the 
same premises. The application must be made to the Licensing Authority in 
whose area the premises are wholly or partly situated. 

21.6 An application for a permit may be granted only if the Licensing Authority is 
satisfied that the premises will be used as an Unlicensed Family Entertainment 
Centre, and if the Licensing Unit of Lancashire Constabulary has been consulted 
on the application. 

21.7 The Authority cannot attach conditions to this type of permit and the “statement of 
principles” only applies to initial applications and not to renewals. 

21.8 Statement of Principles = This Authority will expect the applicant to show that 
there are policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm. Harm in 
this  context  is  not  limited  to  harm  from  gambling  but  includes  wider  child 
protection considerations. However they my include appropriate measures / 
training for staff as regards suspected truant school children on the premises, 
measures / training covering how staff would deal with unsupervised/ very young 
children being on the premises, or children causing perceived problems on / 
around the premises. This licensing authority will also require following the 
Commission Guidance, that applicants demonstrate a full understanding of the 

28 

  

 

Agenda Page 55 Agenda Item 3a



maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is permissible in Unlicensed 
Family Entertainment Centres; that the applicant has no relevant convictions 
(those that are set out in Schedule 7 of the Act); and that staff are trained to have 
a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes. 

21.9 A permit will have effect for ten years unless it ceases to have effect because it is 
surrendered or lapses or is reviewed. 

21.10 If the person to whom a permit is issued changes their name or wants to be 
known by another name they may send their permit to the Licensing Authority for 
amendment with the appropriate fee. 

21.11 The permit may lapse for a number of reasons: 

� 
 

� 

if the holder ceases to occupy the premises; 
 

if the Licensing Authority notifies the holder of the premises they are not 
being used as an unlicensed FEC; 
 

if the individual permit holder dies, becomes incapable by reason of mental 
or physical incapacity, becomes bankrupt, or sequestration of his estate is 
ordered or; 

if the company holding the permit ceases to exist or goes into liquidation; 

if the permit holder surrenders it to the Licensing Authority. 

� 

� 
 

� 

21.12 If the permit holder is convicted of a relevant offence set out in Schedule 7 of the 
Act, the Court may order forfeiture of the permit. 

Renewals 

21.13   An  application  for  renewal  of  the  permit  must  be  made  during  the  period 
beginning six months before the permit expires and ending two months before it 
expires.  The procedure for renewal is the same as for an application. 

The authority may refuse an application for renewal of a permit only 
grounds that: 

on the 

• an  authorised  local  authority  officer  has  been  refused  access 
premises without reasonable excuse, or 

that  renewal  would  not  be  reasonably  consistent  with  pursuit 

to the 

• of the 
licensing objectives.  The Licensing Authority will consult the Licensing Unit 
of Lancashire Police regarding any concerns that may have arisen about 
the use of the premises during the life of the premises. 

Maintenance 

21.15  The permit must be kept on the premises and be produced when requested to do 
so by a constable, an enforcement officer or an authorised local authority officer. 

29 

 

Agenda Page 56 Agenda Item 3a



22.0 (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits – 
(Schedule 13 Para 4(1)) 

22.1 The Act makes provision for premises that holds a Premises Licence under the 
Licensing Act 2003 for the sale/supply of alcohol on the premises to automatically 
have 2 gaming machines, of categories C and/or D. The person who holds the 
on-premises licence merely needs to notify the Authority. The Licensing 
Authority may remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular 
premises if: 

• Provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of 
the licensing objectives. 
 

Gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of 
Section 282 of the Act. 
 

The premises are mainly used for gaming. 
 

An offence under the Act has been committed on the premises. 
 

The Licensing Authority, before making an order will give the licensee at 
least 21 days notice and consider any representations that they make. 

• 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

22.2 In determining an application the Licensing Authority will have regard to the 
Guidance  and  the  licensing  objectives  and  any  other  matters,  which  are 
considered relevant to the objectives. 

22.3 If a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then it needs to apply for a 
permit and the Authority will consider that application based upon the licensing 
objectives, the Guidance, and “such matters as they think relevant.” This 
Authority considers that “such matters” will be decided on a case-by-case basis, 
but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from harm or being exploited by gambling. The Licensing Authority will 
expect the applicant to satisfy it that there will be sufficient measures to ensure 
that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machines. 
Such measures may include the adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in 
the sight of staff who will monitor that the machines are not being used by those 
under 18. Notices and signage may also be of assistance. With regard to the 
protection of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of 
information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare. 

22.4 It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a Premises 
Licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would need to 
be  applied  for,  and  dealt  with  as  an  Adult  Entertainment  Centre  Premises 
Licence. 
The Authority can decide to grant  the application with a smaller number  of 
machines and/or a different category of machines than that applied for. 
Conditions (other than these) cannot be attached. 

22.5 

22.6 The holder of a permit must comply with any Code of Practice issued by the 
Commission about the location and operation of the machine. 

30 

 

Agenda Page 57 Agenda Item 3a



22.7 The permit holder can apply to the Authority to amend the permit to reflect a 
change in the permit holders name. 

22.8 The permit is indefinite and will remain in effect as long as the premises continue 
to hold an alcohol licence and the permit holder continues to hold that licence. 

22.9 The permit holder may apply to vary the permit by changing the number and/or 
category of machines authorised by it. 

22.10 The Licensing Authority is able to cancel a permit in the following circumstances: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

the premises are used wholly or mainly by children or young persons; 
 

an offence under the Act has been committed; 
 

permit holder fails to pay annual fee (excepting any administrative error). 

Before the Licensing Authority cancels a permit they will give the permit holder at 
least 21 days notice and consider any representations made by the holder. 

22.11 Where a person applies to the Licensing Authority for a transfer of an alcohol 
premises licence they will also need to apply separately for the transfer of the 
licensed premises gaming machine permit. 

23.0 Prize Gaming Permits – (Statement of Principles on Permits - 
Schedule 14 Para 8 (3)) 

23.1 The Act defines gaming as prize gaming if the nature and size of the prize is not 
determined by the number of people playing or the amount paid for or raised by 
the gaming. The prizes will be determined by the operator before play 
commences. 

23.2 A prize gaming permit is a permit issued by the Licensing Authority to authorise 
the provision of facilities for gaming with prizes at specified premises. 

23.3 The Authority in accordance with the Guidance has prepared a Statement of 
Principles that it proposes to apply in exercising their functions in considering 
applicants. In particular, it has specified matters that the Authority propose to 
consider in determining the suitability of the applicant for a permit. 

The Statement of Principles, requires the applicant to set out the types of gaming 
that he or she is intending to offer and requires the applicant to demonstrate: 

• That they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in 
Regulations; and 
 

That the gaming offered is within the law. • 

23.4 Children and young persons may participate in equal chance prize gaming only. 

31 

 

Agenda Page 58 Agenda Item 3a



23.5 An application may only be made by a person who occupies or plans to occupy 
the relevant premises, and if the applicant is an individual, he must be aged 18 or 
over. 

23.6 The application must be made to the Licensing Authority in whose area the 
premises are wholly or partly situated. 

23.7 An application for a permit cannot be made if a premises licence or club gaming 
permit is in effect for the same premises. 

23.8 The Licensing Authority can refuse or grant a permit but cannot attach conditions. 

23.9 The Licensing Authority will consult the Licensing Unit of Lancashire Police and 
will take account of any objections made by Lancashire Police if they are relevant 
to the Licensing Objectives.  Relevant considerations may include the suitability 
of the applicant in the light of any convictions the applicant may have which 
would make them unsuitable to operate prize gaming and the suitability of the 
premises in relation to their location and issues about disorder. 

23.10 The Licensing Authority will give weight to child protection issues in making its 
decision on an application for this permit and the applicant should be able to 
demonstrate that they have considered such issues and offer up appropriate 
measures where relevant. The Licensing Authority does not need to but may 
have regard to the licensing objectives, but must have regard to any guidance 
produced by the Commission. 

23.11 A permit cannot be issued with regard to a vessel or vehicle. 

23.12 There are conditions in the Act to which the permit holder must comply, but that 
the Authority cannot attach conditions. The conditions in the Act are: 

The limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied with; 

• All chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises 
on which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be 
played and completed on the day the chances are allocated; and the result 
of the game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is 
played; 
 

The prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out 
in regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary 
prize); and 
 

Participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any 
other gambling. 
 

The permit will have effect for ten years unless it ceases to have effect and 
is reviewed. 

• 

• 

• 

23.14 The permit may lapse for a number of reasons: 

� if the holder ceases to occupy the premises; 

32 

 

Agenda Page 59 Agenda Item 3a



� if an individual permit holder dies, becomes incapable by reason of mental 
or physical incapacity; becomes bankrupt, or sequestration of the estate is 
ordered; 
 

if the Company holding the permit ceases to exist, or goes into liquidation. � 

23.15 The permit also ceases to have effect if the holder surrenders it to the Licensing 
Authority. 

23.16 If the holder is convicted of a relevant offence as set out in Schedule 7 of the Act 
the Court may order the forfeiture of the licence. 

23.17 An application for renewal of a permit must be made during the period beginning 
with six months before the licence expires and ending two months before it 
expires.  The procedure for renewal is the same as for an application. 

27.18 The permit must be kept on the premises and it is an offence not to produce it 
when requested by a constable, an enforcement officer, or an authorised local 
authority officer. 

24.0 Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 

24.1 Members Clubs and Miners’ welfare institutes (but not Commercial Clubs) may 
apply to this Licensing Authority for a Club Gaming Permit or a Club Gaming 
machines permit.   This is in addition to exempt gaming authorised by the Act. 
The Club Gaming Permit will enable the premises to provide gaming machines, 
equal chance gaming and games of chance as described in the regulations.  A 
Club Gaming Machines Permit may not be issued in respect of a vehicle or 
vessel. 

24.2 Members  clubs  must  have  at  least  25  members  and  be  established  and 
conducted “wholly or mainly” for purposes other than gaming, unless the gaming 
is permitted by separate regulations.  It is anticipated that this will cover bridge 
and whist clubs, which will replicate the position under the Gaming Act 1968.  A 
members’  club  must  be  permanent  in  nature,  not  established  to  make 
commercial profit, and controlled by its members equally. Examples include 
working men’s clubs, branches of Royal British Legion and clubs with political 
affiliations. 

24.3 Commercial clubs have the same characteristics as members clubs, except that 
the key difference is that they are established with a view to making a profit e.g. 
snooker club. 

24.4 The  definition   of   miners'   welfare   institutions   has   changed. These   are 
associations  established  for  recreational  and  social  purposes. They  are 
managed  by  representatives  of  miners  or  uses  premises  regulated  by  a 
charitable  trust  which  has  received  funds  from  one  of  a  number  of  mining 
organisations. 
Club gaming permits allow the provision of no more than 3 gaming machines 
from Categories B4, C or D.  The club is permitted to choose the combination of 
machines on its premises. 

24.5 

33 

 

Agenda Page 60 Agenda Item 3a



24.6 The Club gaming permit also allows the club to provide facilities for gambling, 
providing the gambling meets the following conditions: 

(a) equal chance gaming: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

the club does not deduct money from sums staked or won; 
 

the participation fee does not exceed the prescribed amount; 
 

the game takes place on the premises and is not linked with a game 
on another set of premises. Games are to be considered linked if: 

� the  result  of  one  game  is,  or  may  be,  wholly  or  partly 
determined by reference to the result of the other games; 
 

the amount of winnings is wholly or partly determined by the 
participation of more than one set of players; 
 

the game is split by sites so that part of one game is played on 
one site and another part is played elsewhere. 

� 

� 

(b) Other games of chance: 

� 
 

� 

the games are prescribed by regulations; 
 

that no participation fee is charged otherwise than in accordance 
with the regulations; 
 

that no amount is deducted from sums staked or won otherwise than 
in accordance with the regulations. 

� 

(c) in respect of gaming machines; 

� that no child or young person uses a Category B or C machine on 
the premises; 

 

that the holder complies with any relevant Code of Practice about 
location and operation of gaming machines. 

� 

(d) That the public, children and young persons are excluded from any area 
of the premises when gaming is taking place. 

24.7 A 48 hour rule applies in respect of all three types of gaming, so that the game 
may be played by people who have been members of the club for at least 48 
hours, or have applied or been nominated for membership or are genuine guests 
of a member. 

24.8 There are a number of premises that are not licensed to sell alcohol but have 
been entitled to site gaming machines by virtue of being registered under Part II 
or III of the Gaming Act 1968. These premises may apply for a club machines 
permit. Before granting the permit the Authority will need to satisfy itself that the 
premises meet the requirements of a members’ club and may grant the permit if 
the majority of members are over 18. 

34 

 

Agenda Page 61 Agenda Item 3a



24.9 Applications accompanied by the prescribed fee and documents must be made 
to  the  Licensing  Authority  in  whose  area  the  premises  are  situated. The 
applicant must also copy the application to the Commission and Lancashire 
Police. 

24.10 The Authority may only refuse an application on the grounds that: 

(a) The applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial 
club or miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the 
type of permit for which it has applied; 

(b) The applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or 
young persons; 

(c) An offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by 
the applicant while providing gaming facilities; 

(d) A permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten 
years; or 

(e) An objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police (Gambling 
Commission’s draft Guidance for Local Authorities 25.18). 

If the Licensing Authority is satisfied that (a) or (b) is the case it must refuse the 
application. The Licensing Authority will have regard to the relevant guidance 
issued by the Commission and (subject to that Guidance), the Licensing 
Objectives 

24.11 There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available for premises which holds a Club 
Premises  Certificate  under  the  Licensing  Act  2003. Under  the  fast-track 
procedure there is no opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission 
or Lancashire Police, and the grounds upon which the Authority can refuse a 
permit are reduced. The grounds on which an application under the process may 
be refused are: 

• That  the  club  is  established  primarily  for  gaming,  other  than  gaming 
prescribed under schedule 12; 
 

That in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for 
other gaming; or 
 

That a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in 
the last ten years has been cancelled.” 

• 

• 

24.12 There are  statutory conditions on club gaming  permits that  no child uses  a 
category B or C machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any 
relevant provision of  a code of  practice about the location and operation of 
gaming machines 

24.13 The permit will have effect for ten years unless it ceases to have effect because it 
is surrendered, lapsed or renewed. 

35 

 

Agenda Page 62 Agenda Item 3a



24.14 Permits  may  be  amended  to  meet  changing  circumstances. The  Licensing 
Authority will only refuse a variation if on consideration of a completely new 
application they would refuse the permit. 

24.15 A permit will lapse if the holder of the permit stops being a club or miners' welfare 
institute, or if it no longer qualifies under the fast track permit system for a permit. 
In addition, a permit will cease to have effect upon being surrendered to the 
Licensing Authority. 

24.16 The Licensing Authority may cancel a permit if: 

� 
 

� 

premises are used wholly by children and/or young persons; or 
 

an offence or breach of a permit condition has been committed in the 
course of gaming activities by the permit holder. 

24.17 Application for renewal of a permit must be made during the period beginning 
three months before the licence expires and ending six weeks before it expires. 

25.0 Temporary Use Notices 

25.1 A temporary use notice allows the use of the premises for gambling where there 
is no premises licence, but where a gambling operator wishes to use the 
premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. These may include 
hotels, conference centres and sporting venues. 

25.2 A temporary use notice may only be granted to a person or company holding a 
relevant operating licence. 

25.3 Section  218  of  the  Act  provides  that  a  set  of  premises  is the  subject  of  a 
temporary use notice if any "part" of the premises is the subject of a notice. 

There are a number of statutory limits with regard to Temporary Use Notices.  As 
with the definition of "premises", the definition of "a set of premises" will be a 
question of fact in the particular circumstances of each notice that is given.  In the 
Act "premises" is defined as including "any place". In considering whether a 
place falls within the definition of "a set of premises", the Licensing Authority will 
look  at,  amongst  other  things,  the  ownership/occupation  and  control  of  the 
premises.  The Authority will object to notices where it appears that their effect 
would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set 
of premises. 

25.4 The holder of an operating licence must give notice to the Licensing Authority in 
whose area the premises are situated in the prescribed form. 

25.5 The same set of premises may not be the subject of a temporary use notice for 
more than 21 days in any 12-month period.  The Licensing Authority will issue a 
counter notice if this limit is exceeded. As notices may be given by different 
operators in respect of the same premises the Licensing Authority will check 
whether a counter notice is appropriate. 

36 

 

Agenda Page 63 Agenda Item 3a



25.6 A temporary use notice may not be given in respect of a vehicle.  It may be given 
in respect of a vessel but only if it is a passenger vessel or a vessel that is 
situated at a fixed place. 

25.7 A temporary use notice must be lodged with the Licensing Authority not less than 
three months and one day before the gambling event is to take place in the 
prescribed form and accompanied by the fee. The application must be copied to: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

the Gambling Commission; 
 

Lancashire Police; 
 

HM Commissioners for Revenue & Customs and, if applicable any other 
licensing authority in whose area the premises are situated. 
 

In considering whether they wish to give notice of objection, the Licensing 
Authority will have regard to the licensing objectives and any relevant 
representations and if it considers that gambling should not take place, or 
only with modifications, it will give counter notice to the person who gave 
the Temporary Use Notice. 

� 

25.8 If objections are received, the Licensing Authority will hold a hearing to listen to 
all relevant representations unless all parties agree a hearing is unnecessary. 

Those person/bodies which raise objections may offer modifications to the notice 
that will alleviate their  concerns. If  such modifications are accepted by the 
applicant  a  new  Temporary  Use  Notice  must  be  prepared  and  the  original 
withdrawn.  The three-month time limit and fee will not apply to the new notice. 
The person who made the original objection and proposed the modification may 
not object to the new notice, but others to whom it is copied may object. 

25.9 The Licensing Authority, may, after a hearing has taken place (or has been 
dispensed with) determine that the Temporary Use Notice should not have effect. 
In these circumstances it may issue a counter notice which: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

prevents the temporary use notice from taking effect; 
 

limit the activities that are permitted; 

limit the time period of gambling; or 

allow the activity to take place subject to a specified condition. 

25.10 The Licensing Authority will apply the same principles in issuing a counter notice 
as  those  in  determining  premises  licence  applications. In  particular,  the 
Licensing Authority aims to permit the provision of facilities for gambling under a 
Temporary Use Notice subject to its view as to whether to do so accords with: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

relevant Codes of Practice; 
 

guidance issued by the Commission; 

reasonably consistent with the licensing objections; 

this Statement of Policy. 

37 

 

Agenda Page 64 Agenda Item 3a



25.11   A copy of the Temporary Use Notice must be displayed prominently on the 
premises whilst the gambling is taking place. 

26.0 Occasional Use Notices 

26.1 The Act provides that where there is betting on a track on eight days in a 
calendar year, betting may be permitted by an occasional use notice without the 
need for a full premises licence. 

26.2 The Licensing Authority notes that the meaning of "track" in the Act covers not 
just a horse racecourse or dog track but also any other premises on any part of 
which a race or other sporting event takes place or is intended to take place. 

26.3 This means that land which has a number of uses, or which fulfils the definition of 
track, can qualify for occasional use notice provisions (e.g. agricultural land upon 
which a point to point meeting takes place). 

26.4 The occasional use notice dispenses with the need for a betting licence for the 
track in these circumstances. 

26.5 A notice must be served by a person who is responsible for the administration of 
events on the track or by an occupier of the track. It must be served on the 
Licensing Authority and copied to Lancashire Police.  Notices may be given for 
consecutive days so long as the overall limit of eight days is not exceeded in any 
calendar year. 

26.6 Provided that the notice will not result in betting facilities being provided for more 
than 8 days in a calendar year, there is no provision for counter notices or 
objections to be submitted. 

26.7 The Commissioner may require the Licensing Authority to provide information 
about occasional use notices. Where required to do so the Licensing Authority 
will provide information as requested 

27.0 Gaming Machines 

27.1 The Act defines "gaming machine" as a machine which is designed or adapted 
for  use  by  individuals  to  gamble  (whether  or  not  it  can  be  used  for  other 
purposes).  However, it should be noted: 

� there remains a distinction between skill machines and gaming machines. 
Skill machines are unregulated; and 
 

Section 235 of the Act contains exemptions for equipment that is not to be 
considered a gaming machine even when gambling can be performed on it. 
e.g. home pc. 

� 

27.2 If the Licensing Authority has concerns about the manufacture, supply or repair of 
machines or the manner in which they are operating, it will bring it to the attention 
of the Commission. 

38 

 

Agenda Page 65 Agenda Item 3a



27.3 The Secretary of State has made regulations defining four classes of gaming 
machine, Categories A, B, C & D. These are set out in the table below. 

27.4 There is a minimum age of 18 for all players for all Category A, B and C 
machines. There is no minimum age for Category D machines, though the 
Secretary of State has a reserve power to set a minimum age for Category D 
machines. 

39 

Category of 
Machine 

 

Maximum Stake 
 

Maximum Prize 

A Unlimited Unlimited 

B1 £2.00 £4,000.00 

B2 £100.00 £500.00 

B3 £1.00 £500.00 

B4 £1.00 £250.00 

C £0.50 £25.00 
 

D 
10p or 30p when non – 

monetary prize 
£5.00 cash or £8.00 non – 

monetary prize 

 

Agenda Page 66 Agenda Item 3a



The maximum number of machines permitted is set out by the premise type below – 

27.5 The act does not cover machines that give prizes as a result of the application of 
pure skill by players e.g. trivia game machines. 

40 

 

 

 

TYPE 
 

 

GAMING 
TABLES 

(Minimum) 
 

 

 

 

GAMING MACHINES 
 

 

 

Regional casino 
 

 

 

40 
 

 

25 gaming machines of category A to D for each 
table available for use maximum 

of 1,250 machines 

 

 

Large casino 
 

 

 

1 
 

 

5 gaming machines category B to D for each 
table available for use maximum 

of 150 machines 

 

 

Small casino 
 

 

 

1 
 

 

2 gaming machines of category B to D for each 
table available for use maximum 

of 80 machines 

 

 

Bingo premises 
 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

4 gaming machines of category B3 and B4 
unlimited machines category C unlimited 

category D machines 

 

Betting premises 
 

N/A 
 

4 gaming machines of category B2 to D 

 

Track betting premises 
where pool betting licence 

held 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

 

4 gaming machines of category B2 to D 
 

 

Adult gaming centre 
 

 

N/A 
 

 

4 gaming machines of category B3 or B4 
unlimited category C unlimited category D 

 

Family entertainment 
centre with operating 

licence 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

Unlimited gaming machines of category 

C to D 
 

 

Family entertainment 
centre with gaming permit 

 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

 

Unlimited gaming machines of category D 
 

 

Members club premises 
 

N/A 
 

3 gaming machines of category B4 to D 

 

On sales alcohol licensed 
premises without food 

restriction 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

2 gaming machines of category C to D by 
notification unlimited of category C to D 

with alcohol premises gaming permit 

 

Agenda Page 67 Agenda Item 3a



APPENDIX 1 - Glossary of Terminology 

Licensing Objectives: As defined in paragraph 1.1 

Council: Chorley Council 

District: The area of Lancashire administered by Chorley Council (Map 
appended at Appendix 2) 

Notifications: Means notification of temporary and occasional use notices 

Act: The Gambling Act 2005 

Regulations: Regulations made under the Gambling Act 2005 

Premises: Any place, including a vehicle, vessel or moveable structure 

Code of Practice: Means any relevant code of practice under Section 24 of the 
Gambling Act 2005 

Mandatory Condition: Means a specified condition provided by regulations to be attached to 
a licence. 

Default Condition: Means a specified condition provided by regulations to be attached to 
a licence, unless excluded by Chorley Council. 

Responsible Authority: As detailed in Appendix 4 

Interested Party: For the purposes of this Act, a person is an interested party in relation 
to a premises licence if, in the opinion of the Licensing Authority which 
issues the licence or to which the application is made, the person: 

a) Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be 
affected by the authorised activities; 

Has business interests that might be affected by the 
authorised activities; 

Represents persons who satisfy a) or b) above. 

b) 

c) 

41 

 

Agenda Page 68 Agenda Item 3a



APPENDIX 2 
Map of Chorley Council area 

42 

 

Agenda Page 69 Agenda Item 3a



APPENDIX 3 - SCHEDULE OF CONSULTEES. 

Email 

Email 

B2 4BP 

43 

 

Councillors / MP / Parish Council 

Chorley MP Lindsay 
Hoyle 

 

35-39 Market Street, 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 2SW 

All elected Ward 
Councillors of Chorley 
Council, County 
Councillors (Chorley 
Area) and Parish 
Council Clerks 

   

 

Responsible Authorities 

 

Corporate Director 
Business 

 

Chorley Council, Union 
Street 

 

Chorley 
 

 

Internal 
 

 

Corporate Director 
Governance 

 

Town Hall, Market Street 
 

 

Chorley 
 

 

Internal 
Email 

 

Corporate Director 
People & Places 

 

Chorley Council, 
Union Street 

 

Chorley 
 

 

Internal 
 

 

Gambling Commission 
Policy Section 

 

Victoria Square House 
 

 

Victoria Square 
 

 

Birmingham, 
 

Regional Inspector for 
Lancashire & Cumbria 
Gambling Commission 

 

Victoria Square House 
 

 

Victoria Square 
 

 

Birmingham, 
B2 4BP 

H M Revenue & 
Customs 

Custom House, Custom 
House Quay 

 

Greenock 
 

 

PA15 1EQ 
 

 

Lancashire Constabulary 
 

Chorley Police Station, 
St Thomas’s Road 

 

Chorley 
 

 

PR7 1DR 
 

Lancashire Fire & 
Rescue 

Chorley Fire Station, 
Weldbank Lane 

 

Chorley 
 

 

PR7 6DH 
 

LCC Child Protection 
Service 

 

P.O. Box 78, County Hall 
 

 

Preston 
 

 

PR1 8XJ 
 

 

LCC Trading Standards 
 

 

P.O. Box 78, County Hall 
 

 

Preston 
 

 

PR1 8XJ 
 

 

Agenda Page 70 Agenda Item 3a



44 

 

Trade Associations & Representative Bodies 

The British Casino 
Association 

 

38 Grosvenor Gardens 
 

London 
 

SW1W OEB 

 

BACTA 
 

134-136 Buckingham 
Palace Road 

 

 

London 
 

 

SW1W 9SA 
 

British Holiday & Home 
Parks Association 

6 Pullman Court, Great 
Western Road 

 

Gloucester 
 

GL1 3ND 

 

Association of British 
Bookmakers 

 

Ground Floor 
Warwick House 
25 Buckingham Palace 
Road 

 

 

London 
 

 

 

SW1W 0PP 
 

Working Mens Club 
And Institute Union 

 

253-254 Uppers Street 
 

London 
 

N1 1RY 

Chorley & South Ribble 
Community Safety 
Partnership 

 

Paul Lowe- Internal 
Email 

  

Chorley South Ribble 
Business Club 

C/o Lancashire College, 
Southport Road 

 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1NB 

 

Gaming Machine Suppliers / Manufacturers 

 

Leisure Link Ltd 
3 The Maltings, Wetmore 
Road 

 

Burton-on-Trent 
 

DE14 1SE 

 

Red Rose Leisure 
Fleet House, Fleetwood 
Street 

 

Preston 
 

PR2 2PT 

 

Gamestec Leisure Ltd 
 

Low Lane, Horsforth 
 

Leeds 
 

LS18 4ER 

 

Crown Leisure Ltd 
 

Unit 1 Hillridge Road, 
Martland Mill Industrial 
Estate, Martland Park, 

 

Wigan 
 

 

WN5 0LS 
 

 

Head offices of Gaming Companies 

 

Gala Coral Group Ltd 
Newcastle House, Castle 
Boulevard 

 

Nottingham 
 

NG7 1FT 

 

Ladbrokes PLC 
Imperial House, Imperial 
Drive, Rayners Lane 

 

Harrow 
 

HA2 7JW 

 

Stanley Leisure PLC 
Stanley House, 151 Dale 
Street 

 

Liverpool 
 

L2 2JW 

 

 

 

William Hill PLC 
 

Greenside House 
50 Station Road 
Wood Green 

 

 

 

 

London 
 

 

 

 

N22 7TP 
 

 

Gambling Premises within Chorley Borough 

 

All Gambling Premises 

 

Agenda Page 71 Agenda Item 3a



45 

 

All Alcohol Licensed Premises 

 

Solicitors/Consultants 

 

Hardwicks Solicitors 
 

10 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HR 

Wallwork & Company 
Solicitors 

 

16 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HR 

 

Kevills Solicitors 
 

32 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HZ 

 

Marsdens Solicitors 
 

43 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1JE 

Birchall Blackburn 
Solicitors 

 

24 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HY 

 

Cobbetts Solicitors 
 

58 Mosley Street, 
 

Manchester 
 

M2 3HZ 

Flint, Bishop & Barnett 
Solicitors 

St Michael’s Court, St 
Michael’s Lane 

 

Derby 
 

DE1 3HQ 

Ford & Warren 
Solicitors 

 

Westgate Point, Westgate 
 

Leeds 
 

LS1 2AX 

 

Freemans Solicitors 
 

7 St Mary’s Place 
 

Newcastle 
 

NE1 7PG 

 

Gosschalks Solicitors 
 

Queens Gardens 
 

Hull 
 

HU1 3DZ 

John Gaunt & 
Partners Solicitors 

Omega Court, 372 Cemetery 
Road 

 

Sheffield 
 

S11 8FT 

 

Roscoes Solicitors 
St Andrew’s House, 
Wellington Street St Johns 

 

Blackburn 
 

BB1 8DB 

Ridgeway Licensing 
Services 

Harwell Innovation Centre, 
173 Curie Ave 

 

Didcot 
 

OXII OQG 

 

Other 

Chorley Library Union Street Chorley PR7 1EB 
 

Gam Care 
2-3 Baden Place, Crosby 
Row 

 

London 
 

SE1 1YW 

South Ribble Borough 
Council 

 

 

Licensing, West Paddock 
 

 

Leyland 
 

 

PR25 1DH 
 

 

West Lancashire 
District Council 

Robert Hodge Centre, 
Stanley Way, 
Skelmersdale 

 

Lancashire 
 

 

WN8 8EE 
 

Chorley Magistrates 
Court 

 

St Thomas’s Square 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1RZ 

Preston Magistrates 
Court 

 

P O Box 52 Lawson Street 
 

Preston 
 

PR1 2QT 

 

Agenda Page 72 Agenda Item 3a



APPENDIX 4 - List of Responsible Authorities 

For the purposes of this Act, the following are Responsible Authorities in relation to premises: 

1. The Licensing Authority in whose area the premises are wholly or mainly situated (Chorley 
Council) 

The Gambling Commission 

Lancashire Constabulary 

Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service 

Planning Dept Chorley Council 

Environmental Protection Service, Chorley Council 

Social Services Directorate, Lancashire County Council 

HM Customs and Excise. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

46 

 

Chorley Council 
Civic Offices 
Union Street 
Chorley 
Lancashire PR7 1AL 

 

Telephone: 01257 515163/4 
Fax: 01257 515197 
Email contact@chorley.gov.uk 
Web: www.chorley.gov.uk 

 

Lancashire County Council 
Social Services Directorate 
Quality & Review Manager 
PO Box 162 
East Cliff County Offices 
Preston PR1 3EA 

 

Telephone : 01772 531256 
 

 

Lancashire Constabulary 
Licensing Unit: C Division 
Chorley Police Station 
St Thomas’ Road 
Chorley 
Lancashire     PR7 1DR 

 

Telephone:     01257 246215 
Fax:                01257 246217 
Email:  southern- 
licensing@lancashire.pnn.police.uk 

 

Lancashire Fire & Rescue Services 
Fire Safety 
Fire Station 
Weld Bank Lane 
Chorley 
Lancashire PR7 3NQ 

 

Telephone: 01257 262919 
Fax: 01257 234363 

 

 

Gambling Commission 
4th Floor 
Victoria square House 
Victoria House 
Birmingham 
B2 4BP 

 

 

HM Customs and Excise 
Boundary House 
Cheadle Point 
Cheadle 
Cheshire  SK8 2JZ 

 

Telephone: 0845 010 9000 
Email: mailto:enquiries.nw@hmrc.gsi.gov.uk 

 

Agenda Page 73 Agenda Item 3a



APPENDIX 5 - Useful Contacts 

Further information on Chorley Council’s Statement of Principles or the Gambling Act 2005 can 
be obtained from the Public Protection Co-ordinator using the contact details 
Director People and Places has overall responsibility for the Licensing Service. 

below. The 

Public Protection Co-ordinator 
Chorley Council 
People & Places Directorate 
Civic Offices 
Union Street 
Chorley 
Lancashire 
PR7 1AL 

Telephone: 
Fax: 
Email: 

01257 515151 
01257 515150 
contact@chorley.gov.uk 

Information on the Gambling Act 2005 is also available from: 
 

The Department for Culture, Media and Sport 
2-4 Cockspur Street 
London 
SW1Y 5DH 

Telephone: 
Email: 
Internet: 

020 7211 6200 
enquiries@culture.gov.uk 
www.culture.gov.uk 

47 

 

Agenda Page 74 Agenda Item 3a



 

 

 

 

 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Director of Public 
Protection, Street Scene and 

Community 

 Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee   9 December 2014 

 

 THE GAMBLING ACT 2005; APPLICATION FOR A GAMING 

MACHINE PERMIT FOR MORE THAN 2 GAMING MACHINES. 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To bring to the attention of Members an application received from Dorbiere Limited of Unit 3 
Stainburn Road, Openshaw, Manchester in respect of an application for a Gaming Machine 
Permit for more than 2 gaming machines for a premise licensed under the Licensing Act 
2003 known as Trader Jacks of Hollinshead Street, Chorley. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. Members are recommended to consider the contents of the report and any representations 
made by the representative of Dorbiere Limited and determine whether or not to grant the 
application. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. Sceptre Leisure Solutions Ltd made application under Schedule 13, of the Gambling Act 
2005 for a Gaming Machine Permit for 2 or more gaming machines on behalf of Dorbiere 
Limited being the premises licence holder for Trader Jacks of Hollinshead Street, Chorley.  
The application is attached as Appendix 1. The Council’s Statement of Gambling Policy 
states that each application will be determined on a case by case basis, the Councils 
scheme of delegation does not authorise officers to determine the application where the 
application is for more than 2 gaming machines. 

 

Confidential report 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
4. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Involving residents in improving their local 
area and equality of access for all 

 A strong local economy  

Clean, safe and healthy communities X An ambitious council that does more 
to meet the needs of residents and 
the local area 

 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
The Council has received an application made under Schedule 13 of the Gambling Act 2005 for 
more than 2 gaming machines for the public house Trader Jacks of Hollinshead Street, Chorley. 
The premises benefits from a Premises licence issued under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 

 

Agenda Page 75 Agenda Item 3b



2003 authorising the sale of alcohol, this authorisation is a pre-requisite to enable the above 
application.  The Premises Licence PLA 0255 and Plan are attached as Appendix 2.  
 

Where a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then it needs to apply for a Gaming 
Machine permit and the Authority will consider that application based upon the licensing 
objectives, the Guidance, and such matters as they think relevant.  Members should be satisfied 
that the granting of the said permit will not undermine the licensing objectives and that the 
applicant is aware of the positive steps required to promote the licensing objectives.  This 
Authority considers that such applications will be decided on a case-by-case basis, but generally 
there will be regard for the need to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being 
exploited by gambling.  The Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to satisfy it that there 
will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult 
only gaming machines.  Such measures may include the adult machines being in sight of the 
bar, or in the sight of staff who will monitor that the machines are not being used by those under 
18.  Additionally, notices and signage may also be of assistance.  With regard to the protection 
of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of information leaflets/helpline 
numbers for organisations such as Game Care. It is important that staff are able to see if the 
machines are being played by any adults with a gambling problem. 

 

Officers attended the premises on 18 November 2014 to assess the suitability of the premises to 
accommodate additional gaming machines in line with the application received.  It was noted that 
one of the two existing gaming machines on the premises was positioned that allows the machine 
to be played without any member of staff having adequate sight of the machine during play.  
Officers offered words of advice to the DPS at that time and received assurance that it would be 
re-sited.  Officers raised concerns at the visit regarding the siting of additional machines in 
relation to allowing adequate space for the safe passage of customers and staff having a clear 
line of sight for the supervision of the machines at all times. 
 
In determining this matter Members shall have consideration for the following provisions; 
 
Chorley Council’s Statement of Gambling Policy. Attached as Appendix 3. 

 

Members are reminded of the Gambling Act 2005 licensing objectives which are; 
 
(a)  Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime 

or disorder or being used to support crime, 
(b)  Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and 
(c)  Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 

gambling. 
 

The Gambling Commission’s published Code of Practice provides the requirements that must be 
complied with by the Gambling Machine Permit Holder.  The document is attached at Appendix 4. 
The guidance is applicable to all licensed premises in relation to any number of gaming machines 
that are provided.   

 
Members’ attention is drawn to the committee’s discretion in determining this matter which is 
prescribed within Schedule 13 Section 283 of the Gambling Act 2005 which states they may; 
 
a) Grant the application, 
b) Refuse the application, 
c)   Grant it in respect of; 
 1)  A smaller number of machines than that specified in the application, 
 2)  A different category of machines from that specified in the application, or  
 3)  Both. 
 
d) Members may not attach conditions to a permit. 

 

Agenda Page 76 Agenda Item 3b



The applicant in respect of this application has been invited to attend the hearing and make 
representation. 

 
IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
5. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are 

included: 
 

Finance  Customer Services   

Human Resources  Equality and Diversity   

Legal X Integrated Impact Assessment 
required? 

 

No significant implications in this 
area 

 Policy and Communications  

 
COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER  
 
Under Schedule 13 of the Gambling Act 2005 members must have regard to the licensing 
objectives contained in the Gambling Act 2005, national guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission and such other matters as they think are relevant. It would be reasonable for 
members to have regard to the Council’s own statement of gambling policy.  
 
Other relevant considerations would be the location of the proposed machines so that staff could 
clearly see minors or problem gamblers attempting to play the machines and intervene.  Also the 
location is a relevant consideration for fire safety. 
 
Provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 are relevant to the application, including but not limited 
to Article 1, Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of possessions) and Article 6 (right to a fair hearing). 
In the event that the application is granted in whole or in part then under section 282 of the 
Gambling Act 2005 the location and operation of the machines must be in accordance with any 
relevant Code of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission. 
 
The applicant has a right of appeal to the magistrates’ court within 21 days of receiving notice of 
the decision to (i) reject the application or (ii) grant an application for a smaller number of 
machines than that specified in the application or a different category of machines from that 
specified in the application (or both) 
 
 
JAMIE CARSON 
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROTECTION, STREETSCENE AND COMMUNITY 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

S Culleton 5665 26
th
 November  

 

Agenda Page 77 Agenda Item 3b



This page is intentionally left blank



SCE trep
THE BU5INESS IN LEISURE

24 October 2014 sceptre
139 Brookfield Place

Our Ref: EGH/LiC/2412 wanton Summit
Bamber Bridge

Licensing Department
Preston

Chorley Borough Council
PR5 86F

~'iIVIC ~ffIC@S telephone

Union Street 01772 694242

Chorley facsimile

Lancashire
01772 694243

PR7 1AL website

D@8f SIf/M2d8f1'1

www.sceptreleisure.co.uk

e-mail

sisC~sceptre leis ure_co.uk

RE: Trader ]acks, 38 Hollinshead Street, +Chorley, PR7 .lEP

i~leas~ find enclosed application under the Gambling Act 2005 for a
Gaming Machine Permit fir Three machines for the abave site.

Enclosed is the fee of X200.00 (£150 far the permit and ~50.Q0 fir the
annual fee}.

I wauld b~ grateful if you would send us a copy of the Permit to
Sceptre Leisure`s address in order ghat we may update our records.

Should you require any further information please do nc~t hesit~t~ ~o
contact me ~r+ the number below.

Yours faithfully

n,.` -
~~ L~ ~~~L~~~'~

Erica Hamilton
Licensing Department

Direct Dial 01772 b942b~

VA7 Registration

T25 II325 26

ComVany RegishaGOn

3675579

Gambling Commission Lic No

000-Q0562&N-300827-00 i

A Subsidiary of Scep[re Leisure plc

APPENDIX 1

Agenda Page 79 Agenda Item 3b



NOTIFICATION OF 2 4R LESS GAMING MACHINES or
GAMING MACHINE PERMIT APPLfCATIONS (i.e. for greater than 2 machines) for:

CONVERSION !NEW ! VARIATION l TRANSFER

(FAR USE BY PREMISES LICENSED TO SUPPLY ALCOHOL FOR CONSUMPTION ON THE PREMISES)

Please refer fo guidance notes at the back of this form before completing

T0. Licensing Department
Charley Borough Council
Civic O~ces
Union Street
Chorley
Lancashire
P R7 1 AL

SECTION A -What do you want to do?

1. Please indicate what you would like to do

a} Notify licensing authority that you intend to provide up to a maximum total of 2 gaming machines
category C and 1 or D ~

(if you choose this option then please complete sections D and ~

b} Apply to convert an existing Section 34 permit issued under the Gaming Act 19fi8, into a ~
{icensed premises gaming machine permit (i.e. for more than 2 gaming machines)

(i(you choose this option then please complete sections B, D and E)

cj Appty for a new licensed premises gaming machine permit ~ 0

f f jf.~ choose this option then please complete sections B, J and ~}

d) Apply to vary an existing licensed premises gaming machine permit ~ [J
(it you choose this option then please complete sections B, D and E} ~

e) Appiy to transfer an existing licensed premises gaming machine permit
(ilyou choose this option then please complete secProns C, U and E} ~

SECTION B - Application for grant (includes conversion, new and variation
applications}

2. How many gaming machines are you currently authorised tQ provide and if this is a new ar
variation application, how many do you uvish to pravide? (please complete the boxes ~n the table)

Category
machine

Number currently
authorised to~rovide

Number vuish to provide
new or variation

C 3
p - --

TOTAL 3

3. If you are currently authorised to provide more thin 2 machines, phase provide your existing
Section 34 Gaming Act 1968 permit, or provide reasons stating why it cannot be provided.

Existing permit provided* ~ ~
(reasons why existing permit cannot be provi~'ed) ...... . .... . . ....... . . ... . .. . . . ... ~ ......... , ........ ,

*Please keep a copy of your existing permit on the premises to which it relates.

1

Agenda Page 80 Agenda Item 3b



NOTIFICATION OF 2 OR LESS GAMING MACHINES or

GAMING MACHINE PERMIT APPLICATIONS (i.e. for greater than 2 machines) for:
CONVER510N !NEW 1 VARIATION /TRANSFER

(FOR USE BY PREMISES LICENSED TO SUPPLY ALCOHOL FOR CONSUMPTION ON THE PREMISES)

Section C - Application for permit transfer (i.e. uvhere a transferhas been requested for

the L icensing Act 2D03 premises licence)

4. Name of person requesting the transfer

5. Confirmation that an application to transfer the relevant Licensing Act 2003 Premises Licence
has been:

Requested ❑

Granted ❑

6. Please provide your existing permit, or provide reasons stating why it cannot be provided

Existing permit provided ❑

Reasons why existing permit cannot be provided

Section D -General Infarmativn
Trader Jacks

7. Narr►e of Premises ..............................................................................................................................

B. Address of Premises. 
38 Hollinshead Street, Chorley, PR7 1EP

9. Telephone number of Premises ...............................................................................................................

10. Name of existing Premises Licence holder

Dort~ierre Ltd

', 11. Address of Premises Licence holder (rf different from 8 aGove)
Unit 3, Stainburn Road, Openshaw, fvlanchesYer, M11 2ER

12. Telephone number (daytime) of Premises Licence holder

13. E-mail address of Premises Licence holder (where available)

~ 14. Nerve, address, telephone and e-mail of agert (e.g. solicitor) if submitted on behalf of the applicant

Sceptre ! eisure Solutions Ltd, 139 Brookfield Place, Walton Summit Centre, Bamber Bridge, Preston, Lancashire, PR5 86F

erica.hamilton@sceptr~leisu~e.co.0 k

0772 694268

15. Licensing Act 2003 Premises Licence Reference (i.e. number)

2

Agenda Page 81 Agenda Item 3b



NOTIFICATION OF 2 OR LESS GAMING MACHINES or
GAMING MACHINE HERMIT APPLICATIONS (i.e. for greater than 2 machines) for:

CONVERSlCIN 1 NEW 1 VARIATION 1 TRANSFER

{FOR USE BY PREMISES LICENSED TO SUPPLY ALCOHOL FOR CONSUMPTfON ON THE PREMfSE51

Section E -Fee and Signature{s1

1 enclose a sum o((f .29Q,OA.J` (cheques should be made payable to ❑

1 understand that 1 must comply with the Gaming Machine Code of Practice for Alcohol Licensed

Premise Permits and Permissions issued 6y fhe Gambling Commission. (see guidance note 8)

Please note: It is an offence under section 342 of the Gambling Act 2Q05 if a person, without reasonable
excuse, gives to a licensinv authnrity for a purpose connected with that Act information which is false or
misleading

Dated 
24th October 2014

c
Signed (by ar on behalf of Licensing Act 2003 Premises Licence holder},,., ~.:.. ~..-...'.`.~:t!4`~;~~-~".:~

PrintName. 
Erica Hamilton ....................................................................................a.............................

~f you wiser (~ have ~ maximum of 2 gaming machines then the fee payable is £50. If you wish to have more
than 2 gaming machines then the f~ payable is £150 for new applications and £1Q0 for Section 34 {Gaming
Act 1968) holders.

Official Use Only

Dateof receipt:..........~ .............................................................

Signature and name of staff who received :.................................

Date of receipt of fee :........................................~........,..e.

Signattare and name ~f staff uuho received fee:....,......o ...........................

Application accepted 1 returned (please delete as appropriate)

Date of premises licence {Licensing Act 2003} transfer (if applicable) :..............................

3

Agenda Page 82 Agenda Item 3b



NOTIFICATION OF 2 OR LESS GAMING MACHINES or

GAMING MACHINE PERMIT APPLICATfONS (i.e. for greater than 2 machines} for:

CONVERSIQN ! NEW I VARIATION I TRANSFER

Guidance notes:
1. This form is to be used far the notification of up to 2 gaming machines of categories C and I or D under

Section 282 of the Gambling Act 20Q5, or for the conversion of an existing Section 34 gaming machine

permit under the Gaming Act 1968, or for a new application, variation or transfer of a alcohol licensed

premises gaming machine permit under the Gambling Act 2005.

2. The premises must be licensed under the Licensing Act 2403 to sell alcohol for consumption on the

premises, without the requirement that alcohol is served only with food and there must be a bar for serving

alcohol to customers on the premises.

3. The gaming machines must be located on these licensed premises.

4. A 'Premises Licence holder' is a person holding a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 20Q3,

5. There is no statutory limit ko the number of machines which may be applied for although the licensing

authority has some discretion in this regard. It should also be noted that the licensing authority can cancel

the permit or vary the number of machines should the premises be mainly used for making gaming

machines available for use on the premises (Schedule 13 paragraph 16 Gambling Act 20Q5). Yau may

therefore wish to contact the licensing authority to ask whether there is a local policy as regards applications

and whether application for certain numbers of machines are decided via a hearing of local councillors.

6. The permits dur~tinn is indefinite as ~t is linked to ~►e Licensing Acf 2Q03 Premises Licence. There is ~ first

artnuaf fee payable by ............... and an annual fee payable after that before each anniversary ~f the date

of issue of the permit. Failure to pay the annual fee may result in the cancellation of the permit. The annual

fee is £50. There are no annual fees payable for 2 machines or less.

7. Sections 282 and 283, as well as SI 2007 1 2158 of tie Gambling Act 2005 provide far two types of

gaming machines which can be located in alcoha! licensed premises. These are:

• Category C: Maximum stake = 50p 1 Maximum prize = £35

• Category D: Maximum stake = 10p or 30p non-monetary 1 Maximum prize = £5 cash

or £8 non-monetary

8. Ali alcohol licensed premises which ,provide gaming machines for use on 6he premises must

comply with any relevant bode of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission under Section

24 of the Gambling Act 20U5. The Gaming Machine Code of practice for Alcohol licensed premises

permits and permissions is available via the Gambling Commission's websste at:

htta ~//rvww. gamblingcommission. go v. uk/Upina dDocs/Contents/Uocuments/Gamrng ~20Mac hrne %ZOPer

mits%20Code%ZDof%20Practrce.~df Should you be unclear as to the provisions of the code of practice

please contact the Gambling Commission or your local Council licensing service.

9. This licensing authority must notify the applicant of its grant I refusal of the application for a permit as

soon as is reasonable practicable oiler #hat decision to grant I refuse has been made.

10. Where you are notifying the local licensing authority of 2 machines or less, you may wish to request an

acknowledgement of receipt of the notification. The form attached to this application can be uti{ised for

this purpose.

4

Agenda Page 83 Agenda Item 3b



REQUEST FQR ACKNOWLDEGMENT OF RECEIPT OF MY NOTIFICA710N OF 2 QR

LESS GAMING MACHINES

Dorbierre Ltd 
,.,(insert name of the Licensing Act 2003 licence hotder~, requestI . .................................

that this paper fs returned to me at the following address and with the detai{s below provided by the

local licensing authority, so as to acknowledge my notification of 2 or less gaming machines
atTrader Jacks, 38 Hallinshead Street, Chorley, PR7 1 EF ................. (lflsert name ofpremrses).............................................................................

Insert address to which you wish this acknowledgement to be sent:

Sceptre Leisure SoEutions L#d
139 Brookfield Place
Walton Summit Centre
Bamber Bridge
Preston
Lancashire
PR5 8BF

Official Use Only (to pe comaleted by the local licensing authority

date of receipt of notification of 2 or tens gaming rr~achines:......o ....................................

D~t~ of receipt of fee :............................o................................,........................,....,......

Signature:.......a .........................o....o................o.........................e.....a........a.................

Local licensing authority stamp.

5

Agenda Page 84 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0255 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:37 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 1 of 11 

 

 

 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 

Trader Jacks 
Hollinshead Street  Chorley  PR7 1EP     

 
 
 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES 

 
Not applicable 

 
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE 

 
- Performance of Live Music 

 
- Performance of Recorded Music 

 
- Performance of Dance 

 
- Other entertainment 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Making Music 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Dancing 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Similar Description 

 
- The sale by Retail of Alcohol 

 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 

Activity (and area if applicable) Days and times 

 

Performance of Live Music (Indoors) 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

Performance of Recorded Music (Indoors) 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

Performance of Dance (Indoors) 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

Other entertainment (Indoors) 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

Agenda Page 85 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0255 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:37 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 2 of 11 

 

 

 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Making Music 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Dancing (Indoors) 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Similar Description 
(Indoors) 

 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

The sale by Retail of Alcohol (On and off the 
premises) 

 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES 

 

Monday to Sunday   10:00-02:00 

 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES 

 

The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption both ON and OFF the premises. 

 
 

Part 2 

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE 

  

Dorbiere Ltd Unit 3  Stainburn Road  Openshaw  Manchester  M11 2ER 
Telephone number: 0161 438 4060 
Telephone number: 01257 266401 

 

 

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE) 

  

Dorbiere Ltd 1458591 
 

 

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES 
THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

  

Mr Martin Lowe Trader Jacks  Hollinshead Street  Chorley  PR7 1EP   
 

 

Agenda Page 86 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0255 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:37 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 3 of 11 

 

 

 

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR 
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

 
Licence Number: 142695 
 

 
Issuing Authority: Manchester City Council 

 

 
ANNEXES 

 
ANNEX 1 – MANDATORY CONDITIONS 

 
 
MANDATORY DRINKS CODE 
Section 19: 
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that no supply of alcohol is made under the premises licence - (a) at a 
time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence; or (b) at a time when 
the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended 
(section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003). 
 
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made 
or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence (section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003). 
 
ALCOHOL PROMOTIONS 
(1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 
 
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and 
disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children - 
 
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to - 
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises 
before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
 
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or 
to a group defined by a particular characteristic (other than any promotion or discount available to an individual 
in respect of alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as defined in Section 159 of the Act); 
 
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and 
consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less; 
 
(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a sporting event, where 
that provision is dependent on - 
(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or 
(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring; 
 
(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the 
premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to 
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner. 
 

Agenda Page 87 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0255 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:37 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 4 of 11 

 

 

 

DISPENSING ALCOHOL 
The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed 
directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where 
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 
 
FREE TAP WATER 
The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on 
request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
AGE VERIFICATION 
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification policy 
applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or 
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark. 
 
ALCOHOL MEASURES 
The responsible person shall ensure that- 
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than 
alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed 
container) it is available to customers in the following measures- 
(i) beer or cider: 1/2 pint; 
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and 
(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures. 
 
EXHIBITION OF FILMS 
Section 20: 
1a) The Premises licence holder shall ensure that the admission of children to the exhibition of any film shall be 
restricted in accordance with section 20 of the Licensing Act 2003(the Act) 
1b) Unless section 20(3) (b) of the Act applies, admission of children to the exhibition of any film must be 
restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the film classification board specified in this licence 
1c) Where section 20(3) (b) of the Act applies, admission of children to the exhibition of any film must be 
restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the licensing authority 
1d) Where no film classification board is specified in this licence admission of children to the exhibition of any 
film shall be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the licensing authority. 
1e) For the purposes of this condition:- 
"children" means persons aged under 18; and 
"film classification board" means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video 
Recordings Act 1984 
(authority to determine suitability of video works for classification) 
 
DOOR SUPERVISORS 
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that each individual present on the premises to carry out a security 
activity [as defined by paragraph 2(1) (a) of the Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001] must be 
licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 
 
SCHEDULE Mandatory Licensing Condition 
 
1.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a 

Agenda Page 88 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0255 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:37 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 5 of 11 

 

 

 

price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
2.  For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1- 
 
(a)"duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(1); . 
 
(b)"permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula- . 
 
where- 
  
(i) P is the permitted price,  
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the 
sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged 
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
 
(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence 
 
(i) the holder of the premises licence,  
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence; 
 
(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 
 
(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994(2). 
 
3.  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be a 
whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by 
that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 
 
4.  (1)  Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day 
("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 
 
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place 
before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 
 

 
ANNEX 2 – CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE 
 
 
Note – Some conditions may apply to one or more of the objectives 
 
General 
 

None. 
 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 

Agenda Page 89 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0255 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:37 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 6 of 11 

 

 

 

The following potential issues have been identified: 
RESPONSIBLE PROMOTIONS 
At Dobiere Ltd we recognise the need to drink responsibly. All 
promotional activity will accordingly 
comply with industry agreed codes of practice. 
EXTERNAL FACTORS 
Customers leaving the premises will be requested to leave in a quiet 
and orderly manner, 
with notices displayed in all exit routes. 
DOOR SUPERVISIONS 
Generally due to the nature of Dobiere pubs, door supervisors are not 
required. 
In the unlikely event that disorder within the area increases the 
Designated Premises Supervisor 
will bear in mind the benefits of hiring door supervision. 
Licensees are encouraged to closely monitor all customers entering and 
leaving our premises. 
INTERNAL FACTORS 
With regards to drugs: any person found using drugs will be removed 
from the premises. Any person found to be dealing drugs will be 
detained and the police informed immediately. Drugs seized will be 
handed over to the police. 
Licensees are provided with a risk assessment file, which 
identifies the hazard of dealing with incidents of disorder. 
We encourage vigilance among staff to supervise customers in all parts 
of the premises. 
GLASS CONTROL 
The general environment and level of supervision and regular glass 
collections is considered sufficient to prevent dangers arising from 
the use of bottles or glasses as weapons. 
Keeping premises and surrounding area tidy. 
PUBWATCH 
All our licensees are encouraged to be members of their local pubwatch 
scheme. As a company we have been instrumental in setting up scheme 
in certain areas. 

 
Public Safety 
 

The following potential issues have been identified: 
RISK ASSESSMENT 
Consultation with local Fire Authority and other responsible 
Authorities. 
Ensuring that Public Liability Insurance is in place. 
FIRE 
Maintaining emergency exits unlocked and cleared at all times. 
An adequate number of fire exits are provided and clearly marked and 
maintained to readily afford ample means of safe escape. 
Means of escape and passageways and gangways will be kept clear and 
unobstructed during the whole time the premises are used for the 
licensable activities. 
No fire door shall be held open other than by approved 

Agenda Page 90 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0255 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:37 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 7 of 11 

 

 

 

devices. 
In the event of an outbreak of fire, irrespective of the severity, the 
fire brigade shall be immediately called to the premises. 
ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION 
Adhere to fire regulations. 
Temporary electrical wiring installations shall only be undertaken by 
competent qualified persons. Where this is not practicable all 
temporary electrical lighting shall be inspected and certified by a competent qualified person before it is put to 
use. 
The numbers in the funciton room will be limited to a maximum of 60 
persons. 
Our fire risk assessment has been reviewed to take account of the 
requirements of the fire officers report dated 11/4/2011, assessment 
attached. 

 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

The following potential issues have been identified: 
NUISANCE FROM OUTSIDE 
Permitting outdoor drinking and eating only in defined areas. 
NUISANCE FROM PERSONS DISPERSING 
The Company are mindful of the concerns of residents and will take all 
reasonable steps to prevent nuisance. 
Display of telephone numbers for taxi firms in a prominent location 
and provide other facilities for customers to order cabs. 
Notice in Exit routes to remind them to leave quietly. 
OTHER NUISANCE 
Removal of glassware and regularly cleaning and clearing table where 
outside drinking takes place. 
Provision of secure facilities for empty glass containers. 
Cleaning area around the premises on a regular basis. 
Ensuring refuse is removed regularly and in a manner sensitive to 
needs of the local residents. 
Music volume is directly under the control of management and volumes 
will be monitored regularly. 

 
Protection of Children From Harm 
 

The following potential issues have been identified: 
Sale to Under 18's 
Under 18's on the premises. 
SALE TO UNDER 18'S 
Displaying prominent signage about the laws relating to 
children and alcohol. 
Making customers aware of the laws involving sales and purchase of 
alcohol on behalf of children. 
Insisting that anyone who appears to be under 18 must produce ID or a 
proof of age card. 
Suitable ID includes: passport, photocard driving licence, 
citizen card. 
UNDER 18'S IN THE PREMISES 

Agenda Page 91 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0255 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:37 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 8 of 11 

 

 

 

No children under 18 are to enter the premises (except accessing 
toilet facilities) unless accompanied by an adult. 
All staff are aware to report any suspicious behavior to the premises 
management. 
We support the Portman Group code of practice which aims to ensure 
that drinks are packaged and promoted to over 18's only and in a 
socially responsible way. 
 

ANNEX 3 – CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY 
 
 
None. 

 
 
ANNEX 4 – PLANS 

 
 
1.  Plan dated April 2011 Contract No 30 DWG relates to this licence. 

 
 

 

Agenda Page 92 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0255 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:37 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 9 of 11 

 

 

 

Summary of Licence 
 

Premises Details 

POSTAL ADDESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 

Trader Jacks 
Hollinshead Street  Chorley  PR7 1EP     

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMTED THE DATES 

 
Not applicable 

 
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE 

 
- Performance of Live Music 

 
- Performance of Recorded Music 

 
- Performance of Dance 

 
- Other entertainment 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Making Music 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Dancing 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Similar Desc 

 
- The sale by Retail of Alcohol 

 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 

Activity (and area if applicable) Days and times 

 

Performance of Live Music (Indoors) 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

Performance of Recorded Music (Indoors) 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

Performance of Dance (Indoors) 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

Other entertainment (Indoors) 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 

Agenda Page 93 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0255 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:37 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 10 of 11 

 

 

 

Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Making Music 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Dancing (Indoors) 
 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Similar Description 
(Indoors) 

 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 

The sale by Retail of Alcohol (On and off the 
premises) 

 
Friday to Saturday   10:00 - 03:00    
 
Sunday to Thursday   10:00 - 01:00    
 

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES 

 

Monday to Sunday   10:00-02:00 

 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES 

 

The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption both ON and OFF the premises. 

 
 

Part 2 

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE 

  

Dorbiere Ltd 
 

Unit 3  Stainburn Road  Openshaw  Manchester  M11 2ER 
 

 

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE) 

  

Dorbiere Ltd 1458591 
 

 

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

Mr Martin Lowe  

 

Agenda Page 94 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0255 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:37 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 11 of 11 

 

 

 

STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED 

Restricted 

 

Agenda Page 95 Agenda Item 3b



C)f e
Cou nci

Premises Licence

Part 1 — Premises Details

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DES
CRIPTION

i • •

•

Not applicable

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR71AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

s- . .
— —

Ac4iv;t and area if applicable) Bays ~n~ limas

Performance of Live Music (Indoors) rriday io Saiurday ~o:o~ - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00= 01:00--

Performance of Recorded Music (Indoors) Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - os:oo

Sunday to Triursday 1 Q:00 - 01:00

F~eCformanc~ of D~I~ce (IndOOrs)
Friday to Saturday 70:00 - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Other entertainment (Indoors) Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:44 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 1 of 11

APPENDIX 2 Agenda Page 96 Agenda Item 3b



c)r e
Council

Premises Licence

Chorl~y Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

Entertainment Facilities - Making Music Friday to Saturday ~ o:oo - os:oo

(IIIdOO~S)
Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Entertainment Facilities - Dancing (Indoors) Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Entertainment Facilities - Similar Description Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

(IIIdOOrS)
Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

The sale by Retail of Alcohol (Indoors) Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

6~londay to Sunday 10:00-02:00

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND (OR OFF SUPPLIES

part 2
....- ..

Dorbiere Ltd Unit 3 Stainburn Road Openshaw fVlanchester M11 2ER
Telephone number: 0161 438 4060
Telephone number: 01257 266401

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

!• • - • ~ : •

Mrs Ciara Morris

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:44 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 2 of 11

Trader Jacks 38 Hollinshead Street Chorle PR7 1 EP
Telephone number: 01257 266401

Agenda Page 97 Agenda Item 3b



C) f e
Cou nci

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1 AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov. u k

Premises Licence
,~; ~: ~

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTH~l~1`~'Y OF PERSON/LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMIS
ES SUPERVISOR

WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

•- • ~ •

ANNEX 1 — MANDATORY CONDITIONS

MANDATORY DRINKS CODE
Section 19:
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that no supply of alcohol is made under the premises licence - (a) at a

time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence; or (b) at a time when

the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended

(section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003).

The Premises iic~nc~ holder shall ensure that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made

or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence (section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003).

ALCOHOL PROMOTIONS
(1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) !n this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or

substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for

consumption onn the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or contributing t~ crime and

disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children -

(a) games or ether activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, in~ividu~ls to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises

before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell ar supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public ar

to a group defined by a particular characteristic (other than any promotion or discount available to an individual

in respect of alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as defined in Section 159 of the Act);

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and

consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less;

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a sporting event, where

that provision is dependent on -
(i)the outcam~ of a race, competition or other euer~t or process, or

(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the

premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:44 AM

www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 3 of 11

Agenda Page 98 Agenda Item 3b



Cou nci I

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact a~chorley.gov.uk

Premises Licence
J

refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

DISPENSING ALCOHOL
The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed
directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a
disability).

FREE TAP WATER
The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on
request to customers where it is reasonably available.

AGE VERIFICATION
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification policy
applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their phatagraph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

ALCOHOL ~rtEAStJt~ES
The responsible person shall ensure that-
(a) where any of the fiollowing alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than
alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed
cantainer) it is available to customers in the following measures-
(i) beer or eider: 1/2 pint;
iii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 rr~l or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and ~ ~~~` ~'~"° '~ ~~~
(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

EXHfBITION OF FILMS
Section 20:
1 a) The Premises licence [older shad ensure that the admission of children to the exhibition of any film shall be
restricted in accordar~c~: with section 20 of the Licensing Act 2003(the Act)
1 b) Unless section 20(3) (b) of the Act appMies, admission of children to the exhibition of any film must be
restricted in accordance with ar~y recommendation made by the film classification board specified in this licence
1c) Where section 20(3) (b) of the Act applies, admission of children to the exhibition of any filrr~ must be
restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the licensing authority
1d) Where no film classification board is specified in this licence admission of children to the exhibition of any
film shall be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the licensing authority.
1 e) For the purposes of this condit~on:-
"children" means persons aged under 18; and
"film classification board" means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video
Recordings Act 1984
(authority to determine suitabilifiy of video works for classification)

C5001~ SUPERVISORS
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that each individual present on the premises to carry out a security
activity [as defined by paragraph 2(1) (a) of the Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001] must be
licensed by the Security Industry Authority,

~ SCHEDULE Mandatory Licensing Condition _ ~

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:44 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 4 of 11

Agenda Page 99 Agenda Item 3b



Cif e
Cou nci

Premises Licence

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR71AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a

price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1-

(a)"duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(1); .

(b)"permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula- .

where-

(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the

sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged

on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c} "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) 4he designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises

certificate, any member or officer of the club prPSent on the premises in a capacity which enables the membe
r or

officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 199(2).

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) got be
 a

whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given 
by

that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day

;~~~ho fire± ,~a~"~ mini ilri ha r~~f~PrPnt from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a

change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2}The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alrahol which take place

before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

ANNEX 2 — CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE

Note —Some conditians may apply to one or more of the objectives

General

Some conditions may apply to one or more of the objectives

None.

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:44 AM

www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 5 of 11

Agenda Page 100 Agenda Item 3b



~f e
Cou nci

Premises Licence

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The following potential issues have been identified:
RESPONSIBLE PROMOTIONS
At Dobiere Ltd we recognise the need to drink responsibly. All
promotional activity will accordingly
comply with industry agreed codes of practice.
EXTERNAL FACTORS
Customers leaving the premises will be requested to leave in a quiet
and orderly manner,
with notices displayed in all exit routes.
DOOR SUPERVISIONS
Generally due to the nature of Dobiere pubs, door supervisors are not ~; ~--
required. ~ 1` }y j

In the unlikely event that disorder within the area increases the ~~..~'~~ ~'",
Designated Premises Supervisor F~.~
will bear in mind the benefits of hiring door super~rision.
Licensees are encouraged to closely monitor afl customers entering and
leaving our premises. ,,
INTERNAL FACTORS ~
With regards to drugs: any person found using drugs will be removed
from the premises. Any person found to be dealing drugs will be
detained arrd the p~lic~ infermed immediafiely. Drugs seized will be ~'
handed over to the police.
licensees ire provided with a risk assessment file, which
identifies the hazard of dealing with incidents of disorder.
We encourage vigilance among staff to supervise customers in all parts
of the premises.
GLASS CONTROL
The general environment and level ~f supervisie~n end regular glass
collections is considered sufficient to prevent dangers arising from
the use of battles or glasses as weapons.
Keeping premises and surrounding area tidy.
PUBWATCH All our licensees are encoura~ec9 t~ be members of their local pubwatch
scheme. As a company vve h~~e been instrumental in setti~7g up scheme
in certain areas

Public Safety

The following potential issues have been identified:
RISK ASSESSMENT
Consultation with local Fire Authority and other responsible
Authorities.
Ensuring that Public Liability Insurance is in place.
FIRE
Maintaining emergency exits unlocked and cleared at all times.
An adequate number of fire exits are provided and clearly marked and
maintained to readily afford ample means of safe escape.
Means of escape and passageways and gangways will be kept clear and
unobstructed during the whole time the premises are used for the

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:44 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 6 of 11

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

Agenda Page 101 Agenda Item 3b



C~ f e
Council

Premises Licence

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

licensable activities.
No fire door shall be held open other than by approved

devices.
In the event of an outbreak of fire, irrespective of the severity, the

fire brigade shall be immediately called to the premises.

ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION
Adhere to fire regulations.
Temporary electrical wiring installations shall only be undertaken by

competent qualified persons. Where this is not practicable all

temporary electrical lighting shall be inspected and certified by a competent qualified person before it is put to

use.
The numbers in the funciton room will be limited to a maximum of 60

persons. :._

Our fire risk assessment has been reviewed to take account of the ' ~`

requirements of the fire officers report dated 11/4/2011, assessment ?~ ~!

attached. y'`

Prevention of Public Nuisance
~t~

The following potential issues have been identified: ~ .a'~.

NUISANCE FROM OUTSIDE I ~f *f

Permitting outdoor drinking and eating only in defined areas. `~~y~

NUISANCE FROM PERSONS DISPERSING ~ ~~

The Company are mindful of the concerns of residents and will take all

reasonable steps to prevent nuisance.
Display of telephone numbers for taxi firms in a prominent location

and provide other facilities for customers to order cabs.

Notice in Exit routes to remind them to leave quietly.

OTHER NUISANCE
Removal of glassware and regularly cleaning and clearing #able where

outside drinking takes place. Provision of secure facilities for empty glass containers.

Cleaning area around the premises on a regular basis.

Ensuring refuse is remQVed regularly and in a manner sensitive to

needs of the local residents.
Music volume is directly under the control of management and volumes

~~~~ h° m~nilnrcr~ rcni ila~ly... ..y..

Protection of Children From Harm

The following potential issues have been identified:

I Sale to Under 18's
Under 18's on the premises.
SALE TO UNDER 18'S
Displaying prominent signage about the laws relating to

children and alcohol.
Making customers aware of the laws involving sales and purchase of

alcohol on behalf of children.
Insisting that anyone who appears to be under 18 must produce ID or a

proof of age card.
Suitable ID includes: passport, photocard driving licence,

citizen card.

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:44 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 7 of 11

Agenda Page 102 Agenda Item 3b



C) r e
council

Premises Licence

UNDER 18'S IN THE PREMISES
No children under 18 are to enter the premises (except accessing
toilet facilities) unless accompanied by an adult.
All staff are aware to report any suspicious behavior to the premises
management.
We support the Portman Group code of practice which aims to ensure
that drinks are packaged and promoted to over 18's only and in a
socially responsible way.

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

ANNEX 3 — CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING ~Y THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

none .W.,

r~ ~

ANNEX 4 —PLANS i ':~ r f T~ = __ . , "`'r.. '_~, ,,~ • t

~.~" ~C ~
}

r~{ r. '..% ~..

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:44 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 8 of 11

Agenda Page 103 Agenda Item 3b



C~ f e
Council

Premises Licence

Summary of Licence

Premises Details

POSTAL ADDESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNAPfCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRI

i • •

•

Not applicable

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR71AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

.- ~.

Activity (and area if applicable) Days and iinzs

Performance of Live Music (Indaors) Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Performance of Recorded Music (Indoors) Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - os:oo

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Performance of Dance (Indoars) Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Other entertainment (Indoors) Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:44 AM

www.chor~ey.gov.uk

Page 9 of 11

Agenda Page 104 Agenda Item 3b



~~f e
Council

Premises Licence

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 575151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Entertainment Facilities - Making Music Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

(If1dOOfS) Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Entertainment Facilities - Dancing (Indoors) Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Entertainment Facilities - Similar Description Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

(Indoors) Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

The sale by Retail of Alcohol (Indoors) Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:Q0

Monday to Sunday 10:00-02:00

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

Dorbiere Ltd

Part 2

Unit 3 Stainburn Road Openshaw Manchester M11 2ER

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

1• • - - • •

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:44 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 10 of 11

Agenda Page 105 Agenda Item 3b



C) f e
Council

Premises Licence

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:44 AM

www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 11 of 11

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1 AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

Agenda Page 106 Agenda Item 3b



Agenda Page 107 Agenda Item 3b



~~ r e
Cou nci

Premises Licence

Part 1 — Premises Details

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

. •

• .• •

Not applicable

- Performance of Live Music ,` '~~"'f~'~~'` -~ ~ ~ ~

- Performance of Recorded Music ,,,. +

- PerformancE of Dance M ~ «

- Other entertainment ~ ~,' ~--

- Entertainmenf Facilities - fvlakin~ Music ~Tt~'~,~ tijc~jr',.~ ,~
't

- Entertainment Facilities - pancing ;~ ~ ~`,'' ~~Y~Y~;

- Entertainment Facilities - Similar Description , f`~ ;~r~ L

The sale by Retail of Alcohol `~•-~

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

.-

Actiy~t and area if applicable Da sand times

~ Performance of Live Music (Indoors) Friday to 5aiurday iu:uu - us:uu

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Performance of Recorded Music (Indoors) Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Performance of Dance (Indoors) Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Other entertainment (Indoors) Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:46 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 1 of 11

Agenda Page 108 Agenda Item 3b



jf e
COU t'1C1 ~

Premises Licence

~horiey iouncii
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

Entertainment Facilities - IVlaking Music Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Entertainment Facilities - Dancing (Indoors) Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Entertainment Facilities - Similar Description Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

(IfldOOl'S) Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

The sale by Retail of Alcohol (On and off the Friday to Saturday to:oo - os:oo

premises) Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Monday to Sunday 10:00-02:00

The safe by retail of alcohol for consumption both ON and OFF the premises.

Dorbiere Ltci

Part 2

Unit 3 Stainburn Road Openshaw Manchester M11 2ER
Telephone number: 0161 438 4060
Telephone number: 01257 266401

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

t• • - • ~ ; •

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES

THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

• .~- ~ .• •

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:46 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 2 of 11

Agenda Page 109 Agenda Item 3b



C~ f ~
Council

Premises Licence

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR71AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVI
SOR

WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

ANNEX 1 — MANDATORY CONDITIONS

MANDATORY DRINKS CODE
Section 19:
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that no supply of alcohol is made under the premises licence - (a) at a

time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence; or (b) at a time when

the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended

(section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003).

The Premises licence holder shall ensure that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made

or authorised by a person who holds a personal Bicence (section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003).

ALCOHOL PROMOTIONS
(1) Ths responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in rPfation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or

substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for

consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and

disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children -

(a) games or otrier activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to -

(i)drink aquantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises

before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply ~Icohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise};

•r._~, a:.;,,,. s i,,,,ti„i s.,,,, f~~ ., f~~o~l ~r ulj~rnNinfcri faa to tha ni ihlic nr
(b) ~1fOVISIOf! OT Ull 11111t@ O~ UPi5~:1Cl:IIICU yiiaiiuuc~ vi 8wu~ivi lice ̂ v. a ., o...._.._

to a group defined by a particular characteristic (other than any promotion or discount available 4o an individual

in respect of alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as defined in Section 159 of the Act);

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and

consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less;

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a sporting event, where

that provision is dependent on -
(i)the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or

(is) the likelihood of anything occurring ar not occurring;

(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the

premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to

refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:46 AM

www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 3 of 11

Agenda Page 110 Agenda Item 3b



Lnoriey Louncii

jr e PO Box 13
Chorley

PR7 1AR

u r..~ C ~ ~ 
www.chorley.gov.uk

01257 515151
contact@chorley.gov.uk

Premises Licence

DISPENSING ALCOHOL
The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed
directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a
disability).

FREE TAP WATER
The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on
request to customers where it is reasonably available.

AGE VERIFICATION
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises ceriiricate holder shall ensure that an age verification policy
applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

ALCOHOL MEASURES
The respartsible person shaE{ ensure that-
(a} where any of the following afcoho~ic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than
alcohc~lic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed
container) it is available to customers in the following measures-
(i) beer or cider: 1/2 pint;
(ii} gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wing it a glass: 125 ml; and
(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

EXHIBITION QF FILMS
Section 2Q:
1 a) The Premises licence holder shall ensure that the acimissi~n of children to the exhibition of any film shall be
restricted in accordance with section 20 of the Licensing Act Z003(the Act)
1 b) Unless section 20(3) (b) of the Act applies, admission of children to the exhibition of any film must be
restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the film classification board specified in this licence
1c) When section 20(3) (b) of the Act applies, admission of children to the exhibition of any film must be
restricted in accordance ~uvith any recommendation made by the licensing authority
1d) Where no film classification board is specified in this licence admission of children to the exhibition of any
film shall be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the licensing authority.
1 e) For the purposes of this condition:-
"children" means persons aged under 1~; and
"film classification board" means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video
Recordings Act 1984
(authority to determine suitability of video works for classification)

DOpR SI~PERVISORS
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that each individual present on the premises to carry out a security
activity [as defined by paragraph 2(~) (a) of the Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001] must be
licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

SCHEDULE Mandatory Licensing Condition

~ 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied far consumption on or off the premises fora ~

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:46 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 4 of 11

Agenda Page 111 Agenda Item 3b



C~ f e
Cou nci

Premises Licence

price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1-

(a)"duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(1); .

(b)"permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula- .

where-

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1 AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the

sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged

on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence

(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises

certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or

officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1 94(2).

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be a

whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by

that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) ofi paragraph 2 on a day

("the first day"} would be different from the permitted price an the next day ("the second day") as a result of a

change to the rite of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place

before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

ANNEX 2 — CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPIERATING SCHEDULE

Note —Some conditions may apply to one or more of the objectives

General

►f~ .CTi~

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:46 AM

www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 5 of 11

Agenda Page 112 Agenda Item 3b



Chorley Council

~~ ~ ~ PO Box 13
Chorl~y

PR71AR

u n C ~ I 
www.chorley.gov.uk

01257 515151
contact@chorley.gov.uk

Premises Licence

The following potential issues have been identified:
RESPONSIBLE PROMOTIONS
At Dobiere Ltd we recognise the need to drink responsibly. All
promotional activity will accordingly
comply with industry agreed codes of practice.
EXTERNAL FACTORS
Customers leaving the premises will bs requested to leave in a quiet
and orderly manner,
with notices displayed in all exit routes.
DOOR SUPERVISIONS
Generally due to the nature of Dobiere pubs, door supervisors are not
required.
In the unlikely event that disorder within the area increases the
Designated Premises Supervisor
will bear in mind the benefits of hiring door supervision. ~` ';,,~

Licensees are encouraged to closely monitor all customers entering and °~
leaving our premises. ~: -~ ~, ~ r~,~ ~;.~_..~ , ,,,;~,~~

INTERNAL FACTORS ~`~.
With regards to drugs any person found using drugs wi(I be removed
from the prembses. Any person found to be dealing drugs will be ,- ~

detained and the police informed immediately. Drugs seized will be
handed over to the police.
Licensees are provided with a risk assessment file, which
identifies the hazard of dealing with incidents of disorder.
We encourage vigilance among staff to supervise customers in all parts
of the premises.
GLASS CONTROL
The general environment and level of supervision and regular glass
collections is considered sufficient to prevent dangers arising from
the use of bottles or glasses as weapons.
Keeping premises and surrounding area tidy.
PUBWATCH
All our licensees are encouraged to be members of their local pubuvatch
scheme. As a company we have been instrumental in setting up scheme
in certain areas.

Public Safety

The following potential issues have been identified:
RISK ASSESSMENT
Consultation with local Fire Authority and other responsible
Authorities.
Ensuring that Public Liability Insurance is in place.
FIRE
Maintaining emergency exits unlocked and cleared at all times.
An adequate number of fire exits are provided and clearly marked and
maintained to readily afford ample means of safe escape.
Means of escape and passageways and gangways will be kept clear and

unobstructed during the whole time the premises are used for the
licensable activities.
No fire door shall be held open other than by approved

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:46 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 6 of 11

Agenda Page 113 Agenda Item 3b



Chorley Council

~~ ~ ~ PO Box 13
Chorley

PR7 1 AR

C ~ u n C ~' www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov. u k

Premises Licence

devices.
In the event of an outbreak of fire, irrespective of the severity, the

fire brigade shall be immediately called to the premises.

ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION
Adhere to fire regulations.
Temporary electrical wiring installations shall only be undertaken by

competent qualified persons. Where this is not practicable all

temporary electrical lighting shall be inspected and certified by a competent qualified person before it is put to

use.
The numbers in the funciton room will be limited to a maximum of 60

persons.
Our fire risk assessment has been reviewed to take account of the

requirements of the fire officers report dated 11/4/2011, assessment

attached. ~ {~ ? ~ :. g ̀. ., ~ ~ r ~~~

Prevention of Public Nuisance ~ ~'" ~`-J- _.
~` ~ ~ ~t 1,

The following potential issues have been identified:

NUISANCE FROM OUTSIDE ~

Permitting outdoor drinking and eating only in defined areas.

NUISANCE FROM PERSONS DISPERSING

The Company are mindful of the concerns of residents and will take all

reasonable steps to prevent nuisance.
Display of telephone numbers for taxi firms in a prominent location

and provide other facilities for customers to order cabs.

Notice in exit routes to remind them to leave quietly.

OTHER NUISANCE
Removal of glassware and regularly cleaning and clearing table where

outside drinking takes place.
Provision of secure facilities for empty glass containers.

Cleaning area around the premises on a regular basis.

Ensuring refuse is removed regularly and in a manner sensitive to

needs of the local residents.
Music volume is directly under the control of management and volumes

will be monitored regularly.

Protection of Children From Harm

The following potential issues have been identified:

j Sale to Under 18's
Under 18's on the premises.
SALE TO UNDER 18'S
Displaying prominent signage about the laws relating to

children and alcohol.
Making customers aware of the laws involving sales and purchase of

alcohol on behalf ~f children.
Insisting that anyone who appears to be under 18 must produce ID or a

proof of age card.
Suitable ID includes: passport, photocard driving licence,

citizen card.
UNDER 18'S IN THE PREMISES

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:46 AM

www.chorley.gov.uk

Paae 7 of 11

Agenda Page 114 Agenda Item 3b



car e
Cou nci

Premises Licence

No children under 18 are to enter the premises (except accessing
toilet facilities) unless accompanied by an adult.
All staff are aware to report any suspicious behavior to the premises
management.
We support the Portman Group code of practice which aims to ensure
that drinks are packaged and promoted to over 18's only and in a
socially responsible way.

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR71AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

ANNEX 3 — CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

None.

ANNEX 4 —PLANS ~ <~ ~~ r~'~ ~ ~ ' ~' _y ; f
~~

,~ ,' t~ '

1. Plan dated Apri12041 ConUact No 30 DWG relates to this licence.

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:46 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 8 of 11

Agenda Page 115 Agenda Item 3b



C~ f e
Council

Premises Licence

Summary of Licence

Premises Details

POSTAL ADDESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

•

• .• • '-

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1 AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

•- • s

Activity and area if applicable) Days and times

Performance of Live Music (Indoors) Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Performance of Recorded Music (Indoors) Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Performance of Dance (indoors) Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - os:oo

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Other entertainment (Indoors) Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 03:00

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:46 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 9 of 11

Agenda Page 116 Agenda Item 3b



C~ f e
Cou nci

Premises Licence

Lhoriey t;ouncii
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR7 1AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Entertainment Facilities - Making Music Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Entertainment Facilities - Dancing (Indoors) Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - 03:00

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

Entertainment Facilities - Similar Description Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - os:oo

(Indoors) Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 01:00

The sale by Retail of Alcohol (On and off the Friday to Saturday ~o:oo - os:oo

premises} Sunday to Thursday ~o:oo - o~:oo

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES ~:

• •_ • •_ 1 11 1 1

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

Part 2

Dorbiere Ltd Unit 3 Stainburn Road Openshaw Manchester M11 2ER

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

~• • - • ~ : •

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

•

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:46 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 10 of 11

Agenda Page 117 Agenda Item 3b



car e
Cou nci

Premises Licence~.

_~~
~~b :~,<

~ ~ ,?

Printed on 12 November 2014 at 11:46 AM

www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 11 of 11

t

,, f.r.
~~r!
 -

Chorley Council
PO Box 13

Chorley
PR71AR

www.chorley.gov.uk
01257 515151

contact@chorley.gov.uk

Agenda Page 118 Agenda Item 3b



Agenda Page 119 Agenda Item 3b



This page is intentionally left blank



Gaming Machine Permits Code of Practice  
- Club Gaming Permits and Club Machine Permits  
- Alcohol Licensed Premises Permits and Permissions and 
  automatic entitlements 

June 2007 

Introduction 

i. This is the Gambling Commission’s Code of Practice issued under section 24 Gambling
Act 2005 (the Act) relating to provision of facilities for gambling in accordance with club
gaming, club machine and licensed premises gaming machine permits. This includes:

registrations under Parts II and III Gaming Act 1968 which, under transitional 
provisions, are treated as club gaming and club machine permits respectively; and 

alcohol licensed premises gaming machine permits (formerly s34 1968 Act 
permits). 

ii. The Code will come into force on 1 September 2007.

iii. Those items marked in bold and shaded are the provisions which are a condition of the
permit and must be complied with.

Section A: Location and operation of machines 

All permit holders 

Compliance with these provisions is a condition of your permit, and failure to do so 
could result in revocation of the permit.1 

1 All gaming machines situated on the premises must be located in a place within the 
premises so that their use can be supervised, either by staff whose duties include 
such supervision (including bar or floor staff) or by other means. 

Permit holders must have in place arrangements for such supervision. 

2 All gaming machines situated on the premises shall be located in a place that 
requires a customer who wishes to use any ATM made available on the premises to 
cease gambling at the gaming machine in order to do so. ‘ATM’ means a machine 
located on the premises, which enables a person using it to obtain cash by use of a 
credit or debit card. 

1
 Compliance with these provisions is a condition of the relevant permit as a result of the Gambling Act 2005: 

section 271 for Club Gaming Permits, section 273 for Club Machine Permits, section 282 for alcohol licensed 
premises using their automatic machine permissions and section 283 for licensed premises Gaming 
Machine Permits and alcohol licensed premises Gaming Machine Permits. 

APPENDIX 3
Agenda Page 121 Agenda Item 3b



Gaming Machine Permits Code of Practice: Issued June 2007 

 

 2 

 
Section B: Access to gambling by children and young persons 
 

All permit holders 
 

This section sets out the best practice which the Gambling Commission considers 
should be implemented by permit-holders, compliance with this provision is not a 
condition of your permit. 
 
3 Permit holders should put into effect procedures intended to prevent underage gambling. 

This should include procedures for:  

 checking the age of apparently underage customers; and  

 refusing access to anyone who appears to be underage, and who tries to use 
category B or C gaming machines and cannot produce an acceptable form of 
identification.  

 
4 Permit holders should take all reasonable steps to ensure that all relevant employees 

understand their responsibilities for preventing underage gambling.  
 
5 Permit holders should only accept identification which:  

 contains a photograph from which the individual can be identified;  

 is valid; and  

 is legible and has no visible signs of tampering or reproduction.  
 

(The Commission considers acceptable forms of identification to include any identification 
carrying the PASS logo (eg Citizencard, Validate and the Government’s own Connexions 
card); driving licence (including a provisional licence) with photocard; and passport).  

 
6 Procedures should be in place for dealing with cases where a child or young person 

repeatedly attempts to gamble on category B or C machines, including oral warnings, 
reporting the offence to the Gambling Commission and the police, and making available 
information on problem gambling.  
 

Section C: Self exclusion 
 

This section sets out the best practice which the Gambling Commission considers 
should be implemented by permit-holders, compliance with this provision is not a 
condition of your permit. 
 

Club gaming permit and club machine permit holders only   
 
7 Permit holders should put in place procedures for self-exclusion and take all reasonable 

steps to refuse service or to otherwise prevent an individual who has entered a self-
exclusion agreement from participating in gambling. 

 
8 Permit holders should implement procedures designed to ensure that an individual who 

has self-excluded cannot gain access to gambling; this includes:  

 a register of those excluded with appropriate records (name, address, other 
details, and any membership or account details that may be held by the 
operator);  

 photo identification (where available and in particular where enforcement of the 
system may depend on photographic ID), and a signature; 

 staff training to ensure that relevant staff are able to enforce the systems; and  

 the removal of those self-excluded persons found in the gambling area or 

Agenda Page 122 Agenda Item 3b



Gaming Machine Permits Code of Practice: Issued June 2007 

 

 3 

attempting to gamble from the premises.  
 

9 Self-exclusion procedures should require individuals to take positive action in order to self-
exclude. This can be a signature on a self-exclusion form.  

 
10 Before an individual self-excludes, permit holders should provide or make available 

sufficient information about what the consequences of self-exclusion are. Customers 
should be given the opportunity to discuss self-exclusion in private, where possible.  

 
11 Permit holders should take all reasonable steps to ensure that: 

 the self-exclusion period is a minimum of six months and give customers the 
option of extending this to a total of at least five years;  

 a customer who has decided to enter a self-exclusion agreement is given the 
opportunity to so do immediately without any cooling off period. However, if the 
customer wishes to consider the self exclusion further (for example to discuss 
with problem gambling groups) the customer may return at a later date to enter 
into self exclusion;  

 at the end of the period chosen by the customer (and at least six months later), 
maintain the self-exclusion in place, unless the customer takes positive action in 
order to gamble again. No marketing material may be sent to the individual 
unless that has taken positive action in order to gamble again, and has agreed 
to accept such material; and 

 where a customer chooses not to renew, and makes a positive request to begin 
gambling again, give the customer 1 day to cool off before being allowed access 
to the gambling facilities.  

 
12 Please note that the Commission does not require the permit-holder to carry out an 

assessment or make any judgement of whether the individual should have access to 
gambling. The requirement to take positive action in person or over the phone is purely to: 

a)  check that the customer has considered the decision to access gambling again 
and allow them to consider the implications; and  

b) implement the 1 day cooling-off period and explain why this has been put in 
place. 

Gambling Commission June 2007 

GUI 07/07 

 

 

The Gambling Commission regulates gambling in the public interest. It does so by keeping crime 

out of gambling, by ensuring that gambling is conducted fairly and openly, and by protecting 

children and vulnerable people from being harmed or exploited by gambling. The Commission also 

provides independent advice to government on gambling in Britain.  

 

For further information or to register your interest in the Commission please visit our website at: 

www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

 

Gambling Commission 

Victoria Square House   

Victoria Square     

Birmingham B2 4BP     

 

T 0121 230 6500 

F 0121 233 1096 

E info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

 

Agenda Page 123 Agenda Item 3b



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 

April 2013 

Gambling Act 2005 

Statement of Licensing Policy 
 

 

APPENDIX 4 

Agenda Page 125 Agenda Item 3b



Contents Page 

Part A: General 

1.0 

2.0 

The Licensing Objectives 

Introduction 

Legal background and rationale 

Development Process and Consultation 

Declaration 

Responsible Authorities 

Interested Parties 

Exchange of Information 

Integration Strategies 

Enforcement 

Licensing Authority functions 

Hearings 

3 

3 

4 

6 

7 

7 

7 

9 

10 

10 

12 

13 
 

14 
 

14 

15 

16 

16 

17 

18 

19 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

26 

27 

27 

27 

27 

29 

30 

31 

31 

2.1 

2.12 

3.0 

4.0 

5.0 

6.0 

7.0 

8.0 

9.0 

10.0 

Part B: Premises Licences 

11.0 General principles 

Definition of “Premises” 

Location 

Duplication with other regulatory regimes 

Licensing objectives 

Conditions 

Default Conditions 

Door Supervisors 

Adult Gaming Centres 

(Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 

Casinos 

Bingo Premises 

Betting premises 

Tracks 

Gaming Machines 

Betting Machines 

Condition on rules being displayed 

Applications and plans 

Travelling Fairs 

Provisional Statements 

Reviews 

Decision to grant application for a review 

11.6 

11.14 

11.15 

11.16 

11.19 

11.21 

11-25 

12.0 

13.0 

14.0 

15.0 

16.0 

17.0 

17.6 

17.7 

17.9 

17.10 

18.0 

19.0 

20.0 

20.2 

1 

 

Agenda Page 126 Agenda Item 3b



Contents Page 

Part C: Permits / Temporary and Occasional Use Notices 32 

21.0 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits 32 

21.13 Renewals 34 

21.15 Maintenance 34 

22.0 (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits 34 

23.0 Prize Gaming Permits 36 

24.0 Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 39 

25.0 Temporary Use Notices 42 

26.0 Occasional Use Notices 44 

27.0 Gaming Machines 45 

Appendix 1 
 

Appendix 2 

Glossary of terminology 47 

Map detailing key locations in the Chorley district 48 

Appendix 3 
Schedule of Consultees 49 

Appendix 4 
List of Responsible Authorities with addresses 54 

Appendix 5 
Useful contacts 55 

2 

 

Agenda Page 127 Agenda Item 3b



PART A:  GENERAL 

1. The Licensing Objectives 

1.1 In exercising most of the functions under the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act), Chorley 
Council is designated the Licensing Authority (the Authority) and must have regard 
to the licensing objectives as set out in Section 1 of the Act. The licensing 
objectives are: 

• Preventing  gambling  from  being  a  source  of  crime  or  disorder,  being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime; 
 

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and 
 

Protecting  children  and  other  vulnerable  persons  from  being  harmed  or 
exploited by gambling. 

• 

 

• 

1.2 The Gambling Commission has specifically stated that the requirement in relation 
to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by gambling, 
to which the Authority will have regard. 

1.3 In accordance with Section 153 of the Act, the Authority shall aim to permit the use 
of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it: 

• In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission under Section 24 of the Act; 
 

In   accordance   with   any   relevant   guidance   issued   by  the   Gambling 
Commission under Section 25 of the Act; 

Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives, and 

In accordance with this Statement of Principles. 

• 

• 

 

• 

1.4 A Glossary of the key terms used in this Statement of Principles is detailed at 
Appendix 1. 

2. Introduction 

Chorley Council is situated in the County of Lancashire, which contains 12 District Councils 
and 2 unitary authorities. The Borough has 23 Parish councils and a population of 
100,449 (National Census 2001), covering an area of 80 square miles. 

The Borough is set in attractive countryside between the West Pennine Moors and the 
Lancashire Plain. 

A map of the Borough is in Appendix 2 

3 

 

Agenda Page 128 Agenda Item 3b



Legal background and rationale 

2.1 This Statement of Principles (the Statement) sets out the manner in which the 
Authority will generally apply to promote the licensing objectives when considering 
and making decisions on applications made under the Act. This Statement has 
been prepared under Section 349 of the Act and in accordance with the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance (the Guidance) for Licensing Authorities issued under 
Section 25 of the Act. The Authority is therefore constrained by the provisions of 
the Act, the Guidance and any Regulations made under the Act. However, the 
Authority may depart from the Guidance if it has reason to do so, but will give full 
justification for such departure. 

The Authority is required by Section 349 of the Act to publish this Statement, which 
it  proposes  to  apply  when  exercising  its  functions. This  Statement  shall  be 
effective  from  the April  2013,  and  shall  remain  in  effect  for  three  years; 
therefore this Statement will be reviewed in January 2016. Following this full 
review of its Statement, and prior to its publication, the Authority will consult fully 
those groups and individuals consulted on this version. 

1st 

2.2 This Statement will also be kept under review during this three year period, and 
accordingly, the Director People and Places will maintain an ‘Issues Log’ in which 
all issues pertaining to this Statement will be recorded.  Therefore the Authority will 
make revisions to the Statement from “time to time” as it considers appropriate. 
For example, where relevant issues have arisen, or where matters recorded in the 
‘Issues Log’ indicate that such a review is required.  A further consultation will be 
carried out on any amendments made to the Statement, and the Statement will be 
re-published. 

2.3 Nothing in this Statement will override the right of any person to apply under the 
Act for a variety of permissions and have that considered on its own merits and 
according to the statutory requirements of the Act. 

2.4 Nothing  in  this  Statement  will  override  the  right  of  any  person  to  make 
representations on any application or seek a review of a licence or certificate 
where they are permitted to do so under the Act. 

2.5 The Council also has a responsibility under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998 to do all that it reasonably can to reduce crime and disorder in its area. 
Accordingly, it is recognised that prevention of crime and disorder is a vital element 
of  ensuring  the  quality  of  life  in  a  community  and  an  important  aspect  of  a 
successful and vibrant economy. 

2.6 Chorley  Council  recognises  that  in  considering  applications  and  taking  of 
enforcement action under the Act, it is subject to the Human Rights Act 1998 and 
in particular: 

� 

� 

� 

� 

Part 1 of the First Protocol - peaceful enjoyment of possessions. 
Part 6 right to a fair hearing. 
Part 8 respect for private and family life. 
Part 10 right to freedom of expression. 

4 

 

Agenda Page 129 Agenda Item 3b



Chorley Council also  acknowledges the rights of businesses in its area to operate, 
but this must be balanced against the rights of residents not to be disturbed by 
unreasonable nuisance caused by licensed premises/activities. Full consideration 
has been given to these issues in formulating this Statement. 

2.7 This Statement recognises the Race Relations Act 1976, as amended by the Race 
Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, which places a legal obligation on public 
authorities to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination and 
to promote equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different 
racial groups. This Statement also recognises that the Council is required to 
produce a race equality scheme assessing the impact of proposed policies on race 
equality and to monitor polices for only adverse impact on the promotion of race 
equality, and this Statement is referenced in this race equality scheme. The 
Authority, in determining applications, will have regard to this legislation so as to 
avoid any possible indirect discriminatory impact on particular ethnic groups. 

2.8 This Statement recognises the Disability Discrimination Act 1995, however no 
condition will be attached to a licence or certificate that conflicts or duplicates this 
requirement. 

2.9 Chorley Council will steer to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes as far 
as   possible   e.g.   health   &   safety   at   work   and   fire   safety   requirements. 

2.10 Unmet demand is not a criteria for the Authority in considering an application for a 
premises licence. 

Development process and consultation. 

2.11 The Council consulted widely upon this Statement before finalising and publishing 
the document.  A list of the persons consulted can be provided on request. 

2.12 The Act requires the Authority to consult the following parties: 

Chief Officer of Police 

One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests 
of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area. 

One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 
persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions 
under the Gambling Act 2005. 

Consultation for this review period takes place between 3rd December 2012 and 1st 

March 2013 and follows the Revised Code of Practice for public consultations 
2.15 

2.16 The full list of comments made, and the consideration by the Council of 
comments, will be available from the Council using the contact details 
below . 

those 
given 

5 

 

Agenda Page 130 Agenda Item 3b



2.17 The  original  Statement  was  approved  at  a  meeting  of  the Council  19 
December  2006  on  and  was  published  on  the  Council’s  website  thereafter. 

2.18 If  you  have  any comments  as  regards  this  Statement,  please  send  them  via 
e-mail or letter to: 
 

Director People and Places 

Email: contact@chorley.gov.uk 

Mail to: Chorley Council 
Civic Offices 
Union Street 
Chorley PR7 1AL 

3.0 Declaration 

In producing the final statement, this Licensing Authority declares that it has had regard to 
the licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission, and any responses from those consulted on the Statement. 

4.0 Responsible Authorities 

These are specified in Section 157 of the Act and are set out in appendix 4. 

4.1 When exercising its powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, 
a body that is competent to advise the Authority about the protection of children 
from harm, the Authority is required to state the principles it will apply. These 
principles are: 

The need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the 
licensing authority’s area; 

The need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, rather 
than any particular vested interest group etc. 

4.2 Therefore, in accordance with the Guidance, the Authority designates Lancashire 
County Council  Child  Services  Directorate  (or  equivalent)  as the  body that  is 
competent to advise the Council about the protection of children from harm. 

4.3 Responsible authorities are public bodies that must be notified of applications and 
are  entitled  to  make  representations  to  the  Authority  for  and,  in  relation  to, 
premises licences. 

5.0 Interested Parties 

Section 158 of the Act defines an Interested Party. An Interested Party can make 
representations about licence applications, or apply for a review of an existing licence. 

5.1 Section 158 of the Act defines an interested party: as any person who: 

6 

 

Agenda Page 131 Agenda Item 3b



• Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 
authorised activities; or 

Has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; or 

Acts as a representative of those persons who satisfy either of the above 
points. 

• 

 

• 

5.2 The Authority will consider whether a person is an interested party with regard to 
particular premises on a case-by-case basis and make a decision upon its merits. 
However, the Authority may have regard to a number of factors when making its 
decision e.g. the size of the premises and the nature of the activities taking place. 

Larger premises may be considered to affect people over a broader geographical 
area compared to smaller premises offering similar facilities. 

The factors that the Licensing Authorities may take into account when determining 
'what sufficiently close to the premises' means, may include: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

size of the premises; 
 

nature of the premises; 
 

distance of premises from the location of the person making the 
representation; 
 

potential impact of the premises (number of customers, routes likely to be 
taken by customers) and; 
 

circumstances of the complainant. The Licensing Authority will not take into 
account the personal characteristics of the complainant but the interests of 
the complainant which may be relevant to the distance from the premises eg 
the Licensing Authority would reasonably conclude that "sufficiently close to 
be likely to be affected" could have a different meaning for a private resident 
or a residential hostel for vulnerable adults. 

� 

� 

5.3 The  Authority  will  consider  the  examples  of  considerations  provided  in  the 
Guidance when making a decision as to whether or not a person is an interested 
party.  If the Authority does not wish to follow the Guidance in any respect, it will 
provide  written reasons as to why this deviation has taken place,  noting  that 
decisions on Premises Licences must be “in accordance” with the Guidance. 
Interested parties may include trade associations,  trade unions,  residents  and 
tenants associations.  However, it will not generally view these bodies as interested 
persons unless they represent a person or body who comes within the definition as 
set out in paragraph 5.2 

5.4 

5.5 Persons  representing  these  interested  parties  may  also  be  persons  who  are 
democratically  elected  such  as  ward  Councillors,  Members  of  Parliament  and 
Parish Councillors. Other than these persons, the Authority will require written 
evidence that a person ‘represents’ someone who either lives sufficiently close to 
the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities and/or business 
interests that might be affected by the authorised activities.  A letter from one of 
these persons, requesting the representation will be deemed as sufficient.   The 

7 

 

Agenda Page 132 Agenda Item 3b



Licensing Authority will have regard to anything an interested party says about his 
status to make representation. 

5.6 Persons with business interests that could be affected: 

The Licensing Authority will have to be satisfied that a relevant business is likely to 
be affected. 

The Licensing Authority is aware that the "demand tests” in previous legislation has 
not been preserved in the 2005 Act. 

The Licensing Authority consider factors likely to be relevant to include: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

size of the premises; 
 

'catchment' area of the premises and; 
 

whether the person making the representation has business interests in the 
area that may be affected. 

5.7 If individuals wish to approach ward Councillors to ask them to represent their 
views, then care should be taken that the Councillors are not part of the Statutory 
Committee that will deal with the licence application. If there are any doubts, 
please contact the Councils Head of Legal Services using the contact details given 
at Appendix 5. 

6.0 Exchange of Information 

Sections 29 and 30 of the Act require the Authority to state the principles to be applied by 
the  Authority  with  respect  to  the  exchange  of  information  between  it  and  the 
Commission.  In addition, Section 350 of the Act also requires the Authority to state the 
principles to be applied with respect to the exchange of information between it and the 
other persons listed in Schedule 6 to the Act. 

6.1 In this regard, the Authority will act in accordance with the provisions of the Act in 
its exchange of information, which includes the provision that the Data Protection 
Act 1998 will not be contravened and conform to the requirements of the Freedom 
of Information Act 2000. The Authority will also have regard to any Guidance 
issued by the Commission to Local Authorities on this matter, as well as any 
relevant regulations, codes of practice etc. 

6.2 Where any protocols are established to facilitate such exchange of information, 
these will be made available. 

6.3 Details  of  those  persons  making  representations  will  be  made  available  to 
applicants to allow for negotiation and, in the event of a hearing being required, will 
form part of a public document. Any person making a representation, or applying 
for review of a premises licence, will be informed that their details will be disclosed. 

8 

 

Agenda Page 133 Agenda Item 3b



7.0 Integration Strategies 

General 

7.1 There are many stakeholders in the gambling industry, covering a wide range of 
disciplines. Many are  involved,  directly or  indirectly,  in the promotion of  the 
licensing  objectives. The  Authority,  therefore,  recognises  that  as  part  of 
implementing local authority cultural strategies, proper account should be taken of 
the  need  to  encourage  such  activities  for  the  wider  cultural  benefit  of  the 
community.  The Authority will aim to monitor the impact of its decisions to ensure 
that this principle is being upheld. 

7.2 Many of these strategies deal in part with the licensing function, and the Authority 
will establish appropriate liaison arrangements to ensure proper integration of local 
crime prevention, planning, local transport, tourism and cultural strategies. 

7.3 Coordination of duties will involve close, and regular, liaison with Responsible 
Authorities.   This shall be carried out through regular local meetings, regarding 
strategic and operational issues raised by the Act. 

7.4 The Authority recognises the need to avoid so far as possible duplication with any 
other regulatory regimes. However, some regulatory regimes do not cover the 
unique circumstances of some entertainment and, where relevant representations 
have been received, the Authority will consider attaching conditions to a licences 
or permission where these are necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and are not already provided for in any other legislation. 

8.0 Enforcement 

The Authority is required by regulation to state the principles to be applied by the 
Authority  in  exercising  the  functions  under  Part  15  of  the  Act  with  respect  to  the 
inspection of premises; and the powers under section 346 of the Act to institute criminal 
proceedings in respect of the offences specified. 

8.1 The Authority’s principles for enforcement are that: 

It will be guided by the Guidance and any code of best practice and aim to be: 

• Proportionate: the Authority will only intervene when necessary:   remedies 
will be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised. 
 

Accountable:  decisions will be justified, and be subject to public scrutiny. 

Consistent: rules and standards will be joined up and implemented fairly. 

Transparent:  regulators should be open, and keep regulations made simple 
and user friendly wherever possible; and 
 

Targeted:   regulation will be focused on the problem, and aim to minimise 
side effects. 

• 
 

• 

 

• 

• 

8.2 In accordance with the Guidance, the Authority will endeavour to avoid duplication 
with  other  regulatory regimes so far  as  possible. The  Authority will  also,  as 

9 

 

Agenda Page 134 Agenda Item 3b



recommended  by  the  Guidance,  adopt  a  risk-based  inspection  programme  of 
premises. This  involves  targeting  high-risk  premises  which  require  greater 
attention whilst operating a lighter touch in respect of low risk premises.   In this 
way,  resources  are  more  effectively concentrated  on  problem  premises. The 
criteria and programme that the Authority is to use to determine the level of risk in 
respect of risk will be made available separately from this statement. 

8.3 The main enforcement and compliance role for the Authority will be to ensure 
compliance with the Premises Licences and other permissions that it authorises. 
The Commission will be the enforcement body for Operator and Personal Licences. 
Any concerns about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be 
dealt with by the Authority, but will be notified to the Commission.  The Commission 
will also be responsible for compliance as regards unlicensed premises. 

8.4 The Authority will also keep itself informed of developments as regards the work of 
the Better Regulation Executive in its consideration of the regulatory functions of 
local authorities and will adopt the principles of better regulation. 

8.5 To ensure transparency in its enforcement action, the Authority maintains an 
enforcement policy to which all staff must comply.  A copy of the enforcement policy 
is  available  upon  request  to  the  Licensing  Service,  using  the  contact  details 
provided at Appendix 5. 

9.0 Licensing Authority functions 

The Act requires the Authority to: 

• Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to 
take place by issuing Premises Licences. 

Issue Provisional Statements. 

• Regulate  members’  clubs  and  miners’  welfare  institutes  who  wish  to 
undertake certain gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or 
Club Machine Permits. 
 

Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs. 
 

Grant  permits  for  the  use  of  certain  lower  stake  gaming  machines  at 
unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres. 
 

Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing Act 
2003) of the use of two or fewer gaming machine. 
 

Grant Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to 
sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises, under  the 
Licensing Act 2003, where more than two machines are required. 
 

Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds. 

Issue Prize Gaming Permits. 

Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices. 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

10 

 

Agenda Page 135 Agenda Item 3b



• 

 

• 

Receive Occasional Use Notices. 
 

Provide  information  to  the  Gambling  Commission  regarding  details  of 
licences issued (see section above on ‘information exchange). 
 

Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these 
functions. 

• 

9.1 It should be noted that the Authority is not involved in licensing remote gambling at 
all.  This is the responsibility of the Commission, which is controlled via Operator 
Licences. 

The Licensing Authority will determine the delegated functions under the Act. 

9.2 The Licensing Authority is aware that the Code of Conduct will apply in their 
decision making and that public confidence in their decision making is paramount. 
The general principles that apply in decision making to underpin the Code of 
Conduct are that members of licensing authorities should: 

9.3 

� serve  only  the  public  interest  and  should  never  improperly  confer  an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person; 
 

not place themselves in situations where their honesty and integrity may be 
questioned and make decisions on merit; 
 

be accountable to the public for their actions; 
 

reach their own conclusions on the issues before them and act in accordance 
with those conclusions; and 
 

uphold the law and, on all occasions, act in accordance with the trust that 
the public is entitled to place in them. 

� 

� 
 

� 

10.0 Hearings 

A hearing will be arranged to deal with any applications, which cannot be dealt with 
under delegated powers or resolved by agreement between applicants and interested 
parties and/or Responsible Authorities. 

10.1 Each case will be determined on its individual merits. 

10.2 Hearings will be held at the earliest possible date having regard to the regulations 
published under the Act and the laws of natural justice. The Licensing Sub- 
Committee   will   conduct   a   quasi-judicial   consideration   of   the  application, 
objections and representations. Members will carefully consider their position 
should they be requested to hear a matter which occurs in their own ward. 

10.3 A legal advisor, advocate or a friend may represent applicants where they do not 
choose  to  represent  themselves. The  Authority  will  endeavour  to  assist 
applicants in preparing for and participating in a hearing. 

10.4 Whilst the Committee and Sub-Committees will usually meet in public they do 
have the power to hear certain applications in private.  A public announcement of 

11 

 

Agenda Page 136 Agenda Item 3b



the decision will be made at the end of the hearing.  The decision determined by 
the Committee or Sub-Committee will be accompanied with clear reasons for the 
decisions, having regard to the Human Rights Act 1998, the three Licensing 
Objectives and all other relevant legislation. 

10.5 Conditions  may  be  attached  to  licences  where  relevant  representations  are 
received.  Any condition attached to a licence will be related to one or more of the 
Licensing Objectives, and conditions will not relate to matters, which are the 
subject of other legislation. 

PART B: PREMISES LICENCES 

11.0 General Principles 

Where an individual or company proposes to offer gambling for which an operating 
licence is required, and which is premises based, that individual or company will also 
need to apply for a premises licence. 

11.1 Premises licences are issued by the Licensing Authority with responsibility for the 
area  in  which  the  premises  are  situated. In  the  Borough  of  Chorley,  the 
Licensing Authority is Chorley Council. 

11.2 Premises licences, under Section 150 of the Act, can authorise the provision of 
facilities on: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

casino premises; 
 

bingo premises; 
 

betting premises; including tracks and premises used by betting 
intermediaries; 

adult gaming centres (for Category B3, C and D machines); and 

family entertainment centres (for Category C and D machines only). 

� 
 

� 

11.3 Premises Licences will be subject to the permissions/restrictions set out in the 
Act  and  associated  regulations,  as  well  as  specific  mandatory  and  default 
conditions.  The Authority is able to exclude default conditions and also attach 
others, where it is believed to be appropriate. 

11.4 The Authority is aware that in making decisions about Premises Licences it 
should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it is: 

• In   accordance   with   any   relevant   code   of   practice   issued   by   the 
Commission. 
 

In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission. 

Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. 

In accordance with this Statement. 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

12 

 

Agenda Page 137 Agenda Item 3b



11.5 The Authority is aware that as per the Gambling Commissions Guidance, moral 
objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications, and also that 
unmet demand is not criterion for a Licensing Authority 

 Def init ion of “ prem 
ises”  
11.6 Premises is defined in the Act as “any place” Section 152 of the Act prevents 

more than one Premises Licence applying to any place. However, it is possible 
for a single building to be subject to more than one Premises Licence, provided 
they are for different parts of the building and the different parts of the building 
can be reasonably regarded as being different premises. Whether different parts 
of a building can be properly regarded as being separate premises will always be 
a question of fact in the circumstances. However, the Authority follows the 
Commission guidance and does not consider that areas of a building that are 
artificially or temporarily separate can be properly regarded as different premises. 

11.7 The Authority will pay particular attention to applications where access to the 
licensed premises is through other premises (which themselves may be licensed 
or unlicensed).   The sort of issues that the Authority will consider before granting 
such applications e.g. whether children can gain access, compatibility of the two 
establishments  and  ability to  comply  with  the  Act. However,  the  overriding 
consideration will be, whether taken as a whole, the co-location of the premises 
with other facilities, has the effect of creating an arrangement that otherwise 
would or should, be prohibited under the Act. 

11.8 When  considering  applications  for  multiple  licences  for  a  building  or  those 
relating to a specific part of a building used for other (non-gambling purposes) the 
Authority will generally require entrances and exits from parts of a building 
covered by one or more licences to be separate and identifiable so that the 
separation of different premises is not compromised and that people do not ‘drift’ 
into a gambling area. 

11.9 With certain exceptions, children will not be permitted to enter licensed gambling 
premises. Therefore  applicants  should  consider  carefully  how  they  wish  to 
configure   their   buildings   if   they   are   seeking   to   develop   multi   purpose 
establishments. 

11.10 The Authority may, where reasonable, require persons operating premises in 
which gambling takes place to take measures such as the supervision of 
entrances,  segregation  of  gambling  from  non-gambling  areas  frequented  by 
children (if their non-gambling areas are compatible with the requirements of the 
Act) and the supervision of gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific 
premises in order to provide the licensing objectives. This will be done by 
attaching licence conditions where appropriate. 

11.11 The Act permits premises licences to be granted for passenger vessels.  A vessel 
is defined by the Act ( Section 353(1) as: 

• Anything  (other  than  a  sea  plane  or  amphibious  vehicle)  designed  or 
adapted for use on water. 
 

A hovercraft; or • 

13 

 

Agenda Page 138 Agenda Item 3b



• Anything, or part of any place, situated on or in water. 

11.12 Structures which are an extension of land are not vessels.  The Act applies in 
relation to a vessel which is not permanently moored or berthed as if it were 
premises situated in a place where it is usually moored or berthed.  The relevant 
Licensing Authority will be the Licensing Authority for the area in which it is 
usually moored or berthed. 

11.13 Where a premises licence is sought for a vessel which will be navigated whilst 
licensable activities take place the Authority will be concerned with the promotion 
of the Licensing Objectives on-board the vessel. The Licensing Authority will not 
focus on matters relating to safe navigation, operation of the vessel, general 
safety or emergency provision. 

Location 

11.14 Demand issues cannot be considered with regard to the location of premises but 
considerations in terms of the licensing objectives can.   The Authority will pay 
particular attention to the protection of children and vulnerable persons from 
being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder. 
For example, the Authority would have regard to the proximity of the premises to 
schools, vulnerable adult centres or residential areas where there may be a high 
concentration of families and children.   If the Authority is mindful to make any 
specific decision that states any area(s) where gambling premises should not be 
located,  this  Statement  will  be  updated. It  should  be  noted  that  any  such 
decision would not preclude any application being made and each application will 
be decided on its merits, with the onus upon the applicant showing how such 
concerns can be overcome. 

Duplication with other regulatory regimes 

11.15   The Authority will not take into account irrelevant matters i.e. those not related to 
gambling and the Licensing Objectives and will seek to avoid any duplication with 
other statutory / regulatory systems.  The Authority will not consider whether a 
licence application is likely to be awarded planning or building consent, in its 
consideration of it.  However, the Authority will listen to, and consider carefully, 
any  concerns  about  conditions,  which  cannot  be  met  by  licensees  due  to 
planning restrictions, should such a situation arise. 

Licensing objectives 

11.16   All Premises Licences granted by the Authority must be reasonably consistent 
with the licensing objectives.  With regard to these objectives, the Authority has 
considered the Guidance and offers the following comments: 

Preventing  gambling  from  being  a  source  of  crime  or  disorder,  being 
associated  with  crime  or  disorder  or  being  used  to  support  crime  - 
Notwithstanding the above paragraphs, the Authority will pay attention to the 
proposed  location  of  any  gambling  premises  in  relation  to  this  objective. 
Therefore, if an area has known high levels of organised crime, the Authority will 
consider whether gambling premises are suitable for that location. 

14 

 

Agenda Page 139 Agenda Item 3b



The Authority is also aware of the distinction between disorder and nuisance and 
will consider factors such as whether police assistance was required and how 
threatening the behaviour was to those who could see it. Issues of nuisance 
cannot be addressed under the Act. 

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way – The Authority 
will not concern itself with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open 
way, as this will be addressed via operating and personal licences. 

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling – The Authority will take the approach that in practice 
this would often mean preventing children from taking part in gambling, and 
therefore when determining a relevant application, the Authority will consider 
whether specific measures are required at the premises. 

At present no definition is offered with regard to the term “vulnerable persons”, 
therefore the Authority will consider this objective on a case-by-case basis. 
However the Guidance does state that “it will for regulatory purposes assume 
that this group includes people who gamble more than they want to; people who 
gamble beyond their means; and people who may not be able to make informed 
or balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or 
drugs.” Where a practical definition is made available in the future, this Statement 
will be updated. 

11.17 Section 183 applies to all premises licences.  It attaches a mandatory condition 
that facilities for gambling must not be provided on Xmas Day (i.e. 00.01 hrs on 
25 December until 00.00 hrs on 26 December). 

11.18 Secretary of State to set out in Regulations, conditions that must be attached to 
premises licences. 

The Authority shall only consider imposing individual conditions when imposing a 
more restrictive regime in respect of matters dealt with by mandatory conditions 
where there are regulatory concerns of an exceptional nature and any additional 
licence conditions will relate to the licensing objective. 

Conditions 

11.19   Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate to the areas they are 
trying to address and will be: 

• Relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling 
facility; 
 

Directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for; 

Fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and 

Reasonable in all other respects. 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

15 

 

Agenda Page 140 Agenda Item 3b



11.20 Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis. 
However, there are a number of control measures that the Authority will consider 
utilising should there be a perceived need, such as the use of door supervisors, 
supervision of adult gaming machines, appropriate signage for adult only areas 
etc. Specific comments made in this regard under each of the licence types 
below. The Authority will also expect the licence applicant to offer his/her own 
suggestions as to the way in which the licensing objectives can be met 
effectively. 

The Licensing Authority recognises that the Act specifies certain conditions which 
cannot be attached to premises licences namely; 

• any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible to comply 
with an operating licence condition; 
 

conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of 
operation; 
 

conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required 
(the Gambling Act 2005 specifically removes the membership requirement 
for casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated; 
and 
 

conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winnings or prizes. 
 

These considerations will apply to premises including buildings where 
multiple premises licences are applicable. 

• 

• 

• 
 

• 

Default Conditions 

11.21 These may be imposed by the Secretary of State under Section 168 of the Act. 

The  Licensing  Authority  has  the  power  to  exclude  a  default  condition  and 
substitute it with one that is either more or less restrictive. 

11.22 Section 169 of the Act gives the Authority power to: 

� exclude from premises licence any default conditions imposed under S168; 
and 
 

power to impose conditions on the premises licences it issues. � 

The Licensing Authority recognises that default conditions are intended to be the 
basic industry norm and where it excludes default conditions and replaces them 
with more restrictive areas it will ensure that it has clear regulatory reasons for 
doing so. 

11.23 Where there are specific risks or problems associated with a particular locality or 
specific  premises  or  class  of  premises  the  Licensing  Authority  may  attach 
individual conditions to address this. 

11.24 This licensing authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than 
one premises licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the 

16 

 

Agenda Page 141 Agenda Item 3b



track.  As per the Gambling Commission's Guidance, this licensing authority will 
consider the impact upon the third licensing objective and the need to ensure that 
entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are excluded 
from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter. 

Door Supervisors 

11.25 The Authority may consider whether there is a need for door supervisors in terms 
of the licensing objectives of protection of children and vulnerable persons from 
being harmed or exploited by gambling, and also in terms of preventing premises 
becoming a source of crime. 
Where conditions requiring the presence of door supervisors may be attached to 
premise licences or other permissions, the authority will take account of available 
evidence, trading history and whether the presence of door supervisors is both 
necessary and proportionate. 

11.26 

11.27 It is noted that the Security Industry Authority cannot licence door supervisors at 
casinos or bingo premises. 

11.28 Section 178 of the Act provides that if a condition is attached which requires 
someone to be  responsible for "guarding  the premises against  unauthorised 
access or occupation, against outbreaks of disorder or against damage", such a 
person  would  normally  need  to  hold  a  licence  from  the  Security  Industry 
Authority, the requirement for a SIA licence becomes a condition of the premises 
licence.  Bingo premises and Casino premises are exempt from the need to have 
licensed door supervisors. 

The Authority can specify specific requirements for door supervisors, who are 
non-SIA registered.  This could include training from a recognised provider which 
could cover: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

Licensing Law. 
 

Civil and Criminal Law. 

Drug Awareness. 

Equal Opportunities and Customer Service. 

Children and Vulnerable Adults. 

Eviction/Arrest and searching people. 

First Aid. 
 

Door Supervisor Roles/Procedures and Standards. 

12.0 Adult Gaming Centres 

Persons operating Adult Gaming centres (AGC's) must hold a gaming machines general 
operating licence from the Commission and must seek a premises licence from the 
Licensing Authority. 

17 

 

Agenda Page 142 Agenda Item 3b



12.1 Section 172(1)  of the Act  provides that  a holder  of  a Adult Gaming Centre 
premises licence may make available for use up to four category B Machines; 
any number of category C or D machines.  The Secretary of State will specify 
that the Category B machines will be  restricted to sub-category B3 and B4 
machines. 

12.2 No one under the age of 18 is permitted to enter an Adult Gaming Centre. 

12.3 The Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures in place to 
minimise the opportunities for children to gain access to the premises. 

12.4 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to offer their own 
measures/licensing conditions which may cover issues such as: 

• 
 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

Proof of age schemes; 
 

CCTV; 
 

Door supervisors; 
 

Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 

Physical separation of areas; 

Location of entry; 

Notices / signage; 

Specific opening hours; 

Self barring schemes; 

Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare. 

Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 

13.0 (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 

The Act creates two classes of family entertainment centres (FECs) 

Licensed family entertainment centres - category C & D machines and which require a 
premises licence and: 
 

Unlicensed family entertainment centres - category D machines only and require a FEC 
gaming machine permit (see Section 21 below). 

13.1 Children and young persons are permitted to enter a FEC and may play on 
Category D machines only and there must be a clear segregation between the 
two  types  of  machine  so  that  children  do  not  have  access  to  Category  C 
machines. 

18 

 

Agenda Page 143 Agenda Item 3b



13.2 The Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure 
that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machine 
areas. 

13.3 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to offer their own 
measures/licensing conditions which may cover issues such as: 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

Proof of age schemes; 
 

CCTV; 
 

Door supervisors; 
 

Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 

Physical separation of areas; 

Location of entry; 

Notices / signage; 

Specific opening hours; 

Self barring schemes; 

Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
‘GamCare.’ 

Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 

13.4 The Authority will refer to the Commission’s website to see any conditions that 
apply to operator licences covering the way in which the area containing the 
category C machines should be delineated.  The Authority will also ensure that 
any  mandatory  or  default  conditions  on  these  Premises  Licences  are  used 
accordingly. 

14.0 Casinos 

Section 7(1) of the Act states that "a casino is an arrangement whereby people are 
given the opportunity to participate in one or more casino games".  Casino games are, in 
turn, defined by the Act to mean a game of Chance which is not equal chance gaming. 

14.1 Licensing Authorities have been given the role of issuing premises licences for 
casinos and monitoring those licences. 

14.2 Section 174 of the Act sets out three categories of casino premises licences. 
These are: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

one regional casino premises licence, 

eight large casino premises licence and 

eight small casino premises licence. 

19 

 

Agenda Page 144 Agenda Item 3b



The Secretary of State, after consultation with the Independent Casino Advisory 
Panel, will specify the areas for the 17 new casinos. 

14.3 The Licensing Authority recognises that unmet demand is not to be a criterion for 
a Licensing Authority in considering an application for a premises licence.  Each 
application will be on its merits. 

14.4 Section 166(1) of the Act provides that a Licensing Authority may resolve not to 
issue a casino premises licence. 

Chorley Council has yet to pass a resolution on a Casino premises. 

When the Council makes such a resolution, it will be a resolution passed by Full 
Council following considered debate and full reasons for the decision will be 
given. 

14.5 Notwithstanding  the  above  paragraph,  where  a  licensing  authority  area  is 
enabled to grant a Premises Licence for a new style casino (ie the Secretary of 
State has made such regulations under Section 175 of the Act) there are likely to 
be a number of operators which will want to run the casino. 

The Licensing Authority will follow the Commissions guidance for considering 
applications in these circumstances.  In particular, the Licensing Authority will not 
confuse planning or building regulation considerations with the matter before it. 
The Licensing Authority will comply with Schedule 9 of the Act and any relevant 
Codes of Practice in making its determination and in considering the matters to 
be taken into account when making any such determinations. 

14.6 The Act authorises the holder of a casino premises licence to make facilities 
available for betting on virtual events. 

14.7 The casino premises licence holder  must  comply with the Code of  Practice 
issued in relation to access to casino premises for children and young persons. 

14.8 Casino premises are exempt from the need to have licensed door supervisors by 
virtue of exclusion in the Private Security Industry Act 2001. 

15.0 Bingo premises 

The Act does not give bingo a statutory definition.  It is to have its ordinary and natural 
meaning.  The holder of a bingo operating licence will be able to offer any type of bingo 
game, whether cash or prize.  That means that premises with a bingo premises licence 
will be able to offer bingo in all its forms. 

15.1 Apart from commercial operators, prize bingo is traditionally a game played in 
arcades or travelling fun fairs. For these operators, prize bingo is subsumed 
within the allowances for prize gaming in the Act.   This means adult gaming 
centres, both licensed and unlicensed family entertainment centres, travelling 
fairs (or any premises with prize gaming permit) will be able to offer prize gaming, 
which includes prize bingo. In this form of gaming, the nature of the prize must 
not be determined by reference to the number of people playing the game, and 

20 

 

Agenda Page 145 Agenda Item 3b



the nature or size of the prize must not be determined by reference to the amount 
paid for or raised by the gaming. See the section on prize gaming. 

15.2 It is important that if children are allowed to enter premises licensed for bingo that 
they do not participate in gambling, other than category D machines. Where 
category C machines, or above, are available in the premises to which children 
are admitted, the Authority will ensure that: 

• All such machines are located in an area of the premises separate from the 
remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent 
access other than through a designated entrance. 
 

Only adults are admitted to this area where the machines are located. 

Access to the area where the machines are located is supervised. 

The area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be 
observed by staff of the operator or the licence holder, and 
 

At the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently 
displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons 
under 18. 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

• 

15.3 Under the Act, children and young persons (up to age of 18) cannot be employed 
in providing any facilities for gambling in bingo premises and children (under 16) 
cannot be employed in any capacity, at any time when facilities for playing bingo 
are offered.  The Commission will issue further guidance relating to the suitability 
and  layout  of  bingo  premises. 
information when it is published. 

The  Authority  will  therefore  consider  this 

15.4 The holder of a bingo premises licence may make available for use up to four 
category B machines (B3 & B4), any number of Category C and Category D 
machines. 

16.0 Betting Premises 

The Act contains a single class of licence for betting premises.   However, within this 
class, there will be different types of premises that will require licensing. 

16.1 This section relates to off-course betting, that is betting that takes place other 
than at a track.  Please see Part 17 for track betting. 

16.2 The  Licensing  Authority  is  responsible  for  issuing  and  monitoring  premises 
licences for all betting premises. 

16.3 Children and young persons will not be able to enter premises with a betting 
premises licence. 

16.4 The holder of a betting premises licence may make available for use up to four 
gaming machines of Category B (B2, B3 and B4), Category C and Category D. 
See Part 27 for information on gaming machines. 

21 

 

Agenda Page 146 Agenda Item 3b



16.5 The Act provides that a machine is not a gaming machine if it is designed or 
adapted for use to bet on future real events. Such machines will not count 
towards the maximum permitted number of gaming machines nor have to comply 
with any stake or prize limits.  However, machines that take bets on virtual races 
(re images generated by computer) are classed as gaming machines and do 
count towards the maximum permitted number of gaming machines and must 
meet the relevant category limitations for the premises. 

16.6 The Licensing Authority has the power to restrict the number of betting machines, 
their nature and the circumstances in which they are made available by attaching 
a condition to the betting premises licence. 

16.7 When considering whether to impose a condition to restrict the number of betting 
machines in a particular premises the Authority will take into account any known 
or likely breach of licensing objectives, the size of the premises, the number of 
counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of 
staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an 
offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable persons. 

16.8 Section 183 of the Act attaches a condition to a betting premises licence that 
facilities for gambling must not be provided on Christmas Day (00.01 on 25 
December until 00.00 on 26 December). 

17.0 Tracks 

Tracks are sites where races or other sporting events take place re horse racecourses 
and dog tracks. 

17.1 There is no special class of betting premises licence for a track but the Act 
contains rules which apply specifically to a premises licence granted in respect of 
a track. 

17.2 Betting is often divided into "on-course" and "off-course" in relation to tracks: 

• On-course betting operator - comes onto the track temporarily, while races 
are taking place and operates at the track side. 
 

Off-course betting operators - may, in addition to the premises away from 
the track, operate self-contained betting premises within the track premises 
(See Part 16) 
 

Pool betting - can take place on tracks, but only on certain types of track, 
and the people who run it are limited. 

• 

• 

17.3 Tracks are different from other premises in that they may be subject to one or 
more Premises Licences, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the 
track.   There can be a primary (betting) licence for the track and, in addition, 
subsidiary premises licences for other gambling activities may be issued.   The 
Licensing Authority recognises that this will allow racecourses and other track 
venues to develop leisure facilities which offer a range of gambling facilities 
where this meets the principles for granting premises licences. 

22 

 

Agenda Page 147 Agenda Item 3b



17.4 An applicant for a track premises licence does not need to hold an operating 
licence unless he, as the occupier of the track, wishes to offer pool betting or 
general betting facilities himself. If the betting provided on track is by other 
operators  who  come  on  course,  they  are  required  to  hold  the  necessary 
operating licences.  They in turn will be covered by the track premises licence 
held by the track operator. 

17.5 Occasional use notices, which can only be issued in relation to tracks, may be 
relied upon for the provision of betting facilities for no more than 8 days in any 
calendar year.  Please see Part 26. 

Gaming Machines 

17.6 The  Licensing  Authority  will  have  regard  to  any  guidance,  issued  by  the 
Commission relating to the location of such machines and any special conditions 
relating to them. A betting premises licence does not give automatic entitlement 
to use gaming machines. However if the track operator who holds the premises 
licence also holds a pool betting operators licence then up to 4 gaming machines 
may be sited on the track (Categories B2 to D) 

Betting Machines 

17.7 The Licensing  Authority will take into  account the size of  the premises, the 
number of counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the 
ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons 
(it  is an offence for those under  18 to bet) or  by vulnerable persons when 
considering the number, nature and/or circumstances of betting machines an 
operator wants to offer. The Authority will also consider restricting the number 
and location of such machines in respect of applications for track betting 
Premises Licences. 

17.8 The Licensing Authority, following the Commissions guidance, would require all 
self-contained premises operated by Off-Course betting operators on tracks to be 
the subject of separate premises licence. This would ensure that there was 
clarity between the respective responsibilities of the track operator and the off- 
course betting operator running a self-contained unit on the premises. 

Condition on rules being displayed 

17.9 The  Licensing  Authority  may  attach  a  condition  to  track  Premises  Licences 
requiring the track operator to ensure that the rules are prominently displayed in 
or near the betting areas, or that other measures are taken to ensure that they 
are made available to the public.  For example, the rules could be printed in the 
race card or made available in leaflet form from the track office. 

Applications and Plans 

17.10   The  Licensing  Authority,  subject  to  any  information  being  prescribed  by 
Regulation, will require applicants for premises licence to submit detailed plans 
for the racetrack itself and the area used for temporary on-course betting facilities 
and in case of dog tracks and horse racecourses fixed and mobile pool betting 

23 

 

Agenda Page 148 Agenda Item 3b



facilities operated by the Tote or track operator, as well as any other proposed 
gambling  facilities. Applicants  are  to  ensure  that  plans  submitted  with  the 
application make it clear what is being sought under the track betting premises 
licence and what, if any, other areas are to be subject to a separate application 
for a different type of premises licence.  This is to ensure the appropriate licence 
conditions are applied. 

17.11 There will be mandatory premise licence conditions for horse racecourses and 
dog tracks in relation to access to tracks by holders of general betting operating 
licences. 

17.12 Under the Act, all those under the age of 18 must be excluded from any areas 
where facilities for betting are provided, and any area where Category B or C 
gaming machines are located. This is a condition of all track licences. 

However, children and young persons will be permitted to enter track areas 
where facilities for betting are provided on days when dog-racing and/or horse 
racing takes place, although they are still prevented from entering areas where 
gaming machines (other than category D machines) are provided. 

7.13 The  Authority  will  have  particular  regard  to  the  protection  of  children  and 
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling and the need to 
ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are 
excluded from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter. The 
Authority would expect Premises Licence applicants to demonstrate suitable 
measures to ensure that  children do not  have access to adult  only gaming 
facilities. 

7.14 The Authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet the 
licensing objectives. For example, appropriate licence conditions may cover 
such issues as: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Proof of age schemes; 

CCTV; 

Door supervisors; 

Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 

Physical separation of areas; 

Location of entry; 

Notices / signage; 

Specific opening hours; 

Self barring schemes; 

Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare. 

Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 
With regard to the protection of vulnerable persons, The Authority will consider 
measures such as the use of  self-barring  schemes,  provision of  information 
leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as ‘GamCare’. 

17.15 

24 

 

Agenda Page 149 Agenda Item 3b



Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 

18.0 Travelling Fairs 

The Act defines travelling fairs as "wholly or principally" providing amusements and they 
must be on a site that has been used for fairs for no more than 27 days per calendar 
year 

18.1 The Authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the statutory 
definition of a travelling fair. 

18.2 The 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used as a fair, is per calendar 
year, and it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held, regardless of 
whether it  is the same or  different  travelling fairs occupying the land.  The 
Authority will work with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that land that 
crosses our boundaries is monitored so that the statutory limits are not exceeded. 

18.3 Travelling fairs do not require a permit to provide gaming machines but must 
comply with legal requirements about the way the machine operates.  They may 
provide an unlimited number  of  Category D  gaming machines provided that 
gambling facilities amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair. 

18.4 Travelling fairs must comply with Schedule 14 to lawfully offer prize gaming. 
These are: 

• 

 

• 

The limits on participation fees as prescribed must be complied with. 
 

All chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises 
on which the gaming is taking place and on one day, the game must be 
played and completed on the day the chances are allocated, and the result 
of the game must be made public on the day that it is played. 
 

The prize for which the game is played must not exceed the prescribed 
amount (if a money prize) or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize). 
 

Participation in gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other 
gambling. 

• 

• 

19.0 Provisional Statements 

When considering Provisional Statements, it is a question of fact and degree whether 
premises are finished to a degree that they can be considered for a Premises Licence. 
Similarly, requiring the building to be complete ensures that the Authority can inspect it 
fully. 

19.1 The application must be accompanied by plans and other prescribed information. 

19.2 Responsible authorities and interested parties may make representations and the 
process for considering an application is as for a previous licence. 

25 

 

Agenda Page 150 Agenda Item 3b



19.3 Once the premises have been constructed, altered or acquired the holder of a 
provisional statement may return to the Authority and make application for a 
premises licence. 

In terms of representations about Premises Licence applications, following the 
grant  of  a  provisional  statement,  no  further  representations  from  relevant 
authorities or interested parties can be taken into account unless they concern 
matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional statement stage, 
or  they  reflect  a  change  in  the  applicant’s  circumstances. In  addition,  the 
Authority may refuse the Premises Licence (or grant it on terms different to those 
attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to matters: 

• Which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional licence 
stage; or 

 

• Which  in  the  authority’s  opinion  reflect  a  change  in  the  operator’s 
circumstances. 

19.4 The Authority will not take into account irrelevant matters.  An example of such 
an irrelevant matter would be the likelihood of the applicant obtaining planning 
permission or building regulations approval for the proposal. 

Section  204  of  the  Act  provides for  a  person to  make an  application for  a 
provisional statement in respect of premises that he or she: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

expects to be constructed; 
 

expects to be altered; or 
 

expects to acquire a right to occupy. 

The Licensing Authority, where an applicant has also applied to the Commission 
for an operating licence will not take into account the likelihood of an operating 
licence being  granted in its consideration of  an application for  a provisional 
statement. 

20.0 Reviews 

The Authority, under S200 of the Act may also initiate a review of a premises licence or 
class of premises licence in relation to a particular class of premises, the Authority may 
review the use made of the premises and, in particular the arrangements that premise 
licence holders have made to comply with licence conditions. 

In relation to a particular premises the Licensing Authority may review any matter 
connected to the use made of the premises if it has reason to suspect that 
licence conditions may not be being observed or for any other reason which 
gives cause to believe that a review may be appropriate. 

Decision to grant application for a review 

20.2 The Licensing Authority must grant an application for a review unless, it decides 
to reject the application on one (or more) of the following grounds: 

26 

 

Agenda Page 151 Agenda Item 3b



� not  relevant  to  Commission  guidance/Codes  of  Practice,  Statement  of 
Principles or licensing objectives e.g. issues relating to demand, planning, 
public safety; 

grounds are frivolous; 

grounds are vexatious; 

grounds "will certainly not" cause the Authority to revoke or suspend a 
licence or to remove, amend or attach conditions on the premises licence; 

grounds  are  substantially  the  same  as  grounds  used  on  a  previous 
application relating to the same premises; 

grounds are substantially the same as representations that were made at 
the   time   the   application   for   a   premises   licence   was   considered. 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

The Licensing Authority, if action is justified may; 

� 

� 

� 

� 

add, remove or amend a condition imposed by the Licensing Authority; 

exclude a default condition or remove or amend such an exclusion; 

suspend the premises licence for up to 3 months; 

revoke the premises licence. 

In determining  what  action,  if  any,  should  be  taken  following  a  review  the 
Authority will have regard to the general principles set out in Section 153 of the 
Act as well as any relevant representations. 

The Licensing Authority will hold a hearing unless the applicant and any person 
who has made relevant representations that have not been withdrawn (that are 
not vexatious, frivolous or irrelevant) consent to the review being conducted 
without one. 

20.3 A premises licence may be reviewed by the Authority of  its own volition or 
following receipt of an application for a review by a responsible Authority and 
Interested Party. However, it is for the Authority to determine whether the review 
takes place.  This will be on the basis of whether the request for the review is 
relevant to the matters listed below, as well as consideration as to whether the 
request is frivolous, vexatious, or whether it is substantially the same as previous 
representations or requests for a review. 

• In   accordance   with   any   relevant   code   of   practice   issued   by   the 
Commission. 

In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission. 

Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. 

In accordance with this statement. 

• 

• 

• 

20.4 The Authority can also initiate a review of a licence on the basis of any reason 
that it considers is appropriate. 

27 

 

Agenda Page 152 Agenda Item 3b



PART C: PERMITS / TEMPORARY & OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES 

21.0 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits (Statement of 
Principles on Permits – Schedule 10 paragraph 7) 

21.1 Unlicensed FEC’s will be able to offer only Category D machines.   Where a 
premises does not hold a Premises Licence but wishes to provide gaming 
machines, it may apply to the Authority for this permit. Applicants should note 
that under Section 238 of the Act they must demonstrate that the premises will be 
wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available for use. 
Permits cannot be issued for vessels or vehicles. 

21.2 If  the  operator  of  a  FEC  wants  to  make  Category C  machines  available  in 
addition to Category D machines, the Operator will have to apply for an operating 
licence from the Commission and a premises licence from the Licensing 
Authority.  (See Section 13 above) 

21.3 The Authority in accordance with the Guidance has prepared a statement of 
principles that it proposes to apply when considering applications for permits in 
particular the suitability of an applicant for a permit. In preparing this statement, 
and/or considering applications, it need not (but may) have regard to the 
licensing objectives and shall have regard to any relevant guidance issued by the 
Commission under Section 25. The Licensing Authority will give weight to child 
protection issues when considering these permits. 

2.4 The application for a permit can only be made by the person who occupies or 
plans to occupy the premises as an unlicensed FEC. If the applicant is an 
individual he must be aged 18 or over. 

21.5 Applications for a permit cannot be made if a premises licence is in force for the 
same premises. The application must be made to the Licensing Authority in 
whose area the premises are wholly or partly situated. 

21.6 An application for a permit may be granted only if the Licensing Authority is 
satisfied that the premises will be used as an Unlicensed Family Entertainment 
Centre, and if the Licensing Unit of Lancashire Constabulary has been consulted 
on the application. 

21.7 The Authority cannot attach conditions to this type of permit and the “statement of 
principles” only applies to initial applications and not to renewals. 

21.8 Statement of Principles = This Authority will expect the applicant to show that 
there are policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm. Harm in 
this  context  is  not  limited  to  harm  from  gambling  but  includes  wider  child 
protection considerations. However they my include appropriate measures / 
training for staff as regards suspected truant school children on the premises, 
measures / training covering how staff would deal with unsupervised/ very young 
children being on the premises, or children causing perceived problems on / 
around the premises. This licensing authority will also require following the 
Commission Guidance, that applicants demonstrate a full understanding of the 

28 

  

 

Agenda Page 153 Agenda Item 3b



maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is permissible in Unlicensed 
Family Entertainment Centres; that the applicant has no relevant convictions 
(those that are set out in Schedule 7 of the Act); and that staff are trained to have 
a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes. 

21.9 A permit will have effect for ten years unless it ceases to have effect because it is 
surrendered or lapses or is reviewed. 

21.10 If the person to whom a permit is issued changes their name or wants to be 
known by another name they may send their permit to the Licensing Authority for 
amendment with the appropriate fee. 

21.11 The permit may lapse for a number of reasons: 

� 
 

� 

if the holder ceases to occupy the premises; 
 

if the Licensing Authority notifies the holder of the premises they are not 
being used as an unlicensed FEC; 
 

if the individual permit holder dies, becomes incapable by reason of mental 
or physical incapacity, becomes bankrupt, or sequestration of his estate is 
ordered or; 

if the company holding the permit ceases to exist or goes into liquidation; 

if the permit holder surrenders it to the Licensing Authority. 

� 

� 
 

� 

21.12 If the permit holder is convicted of a relevant offence set out in Schedule 7 of the 
Act, the Court may order forfeiture of the permit. 

Renewals 

21.13   An  application  for  renewal  of  the  permit  must  be  made  during  the  period 
beginning six months before the permit expires and ending two months before it 
expires.  The procedure for renewal is the same as for an application. 

The authority may refuse an application for renewal of a permit only 
grounds that: 

on the 

• an  authorised  local  authority  officer  has  been  refused  access 
premises without reasonable excuse, or 

that  renewal  would  not  be  reasonably  consistent  with  pursuit 

to the 

• of the 
licensing objectives.  The Licensing Authority will consult the Licensing Unit 
of Lancashire Police regarding any concerns that may have arisen about 
the use of the premises during the life of the premises. 

Maintenance 

21.15  The permit must be kept on the premises and be produced when requested to do 
so by a constable, an enforcement officer or an authorised local authority officer. 

29 

 

Agenda Page 154 Agenda Item 3b



22.0 (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits – 
(Schedule 13 Para 4(1)) 

22.1 The Act makes provision for premises that holds a Premises Licence under the 
Licensing Act 2003 for the sale/supply of alcohol on the premises to automatically 
have 2 gaming machines, of categories C and/or D. The person who holds the 
on-premises licence merely needs to notify the Authority. The Licensing 
Authority may remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular 
premises if: 

• Provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of 
the licensing objectives. 
 

Gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of 
Section 282 of the Act. 
 

The premises are mainly used for gaming. 
 

An offence under the Act has been committed on the premises. 
 

The Licensing Authority, before making an order will give the licensee at 
least 21 days notice and consider any representations that they make. 

• 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

22.2 In determining an application the Licensing Authority will have regard to the 
Guidance  and  the  licensing  objectives  and  any  other  matters,  which  are 
considered relevant to the objectives. 

22.3 If a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then it needs to apply for a 
permit and the Authority will consider that application based upon the licensing 
objectives, the Guidance, and “such matters as they think relevant.” This 
Authority considers that “such matters” will be decided on a case-by-case basis, 
but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from harm or being exploited by gambling. The Licensing Authority will 
expect the applicant to satisfy it that there will be sufficient measures to ensure 
that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machines. 
Such measures may include the adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in 
the sight of staff who will monitor that the machines are not being used by those 
under 18. Notices and signage may also be of assistance. With regard to the 
protection of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of 
information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare. 

22.4 It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a Premises 
Licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would need to 
be  applied  for,  and  dealt  with  as  an  Adult  Entertainment  Centre  Premises 
Licence. 
The Authority can decide to grant  the application with a smaller number  of 
machines and/or a different category of machines than that applied for. 
Conditions (other than these) cannot be attached. 

22.5 

22.6 The holder of a permit must comply with any Code of Practice issued by the 
Commission about the location and operation of the machine. 

30 

 

Agenda Page 155 Agenda Item 3b



22.7 The permit holder can apply to the Authority to amend the permit to reflect a 
change in the permit holders name. 

22.8 The permit is indefinite and will remain in effect as long as the premises continue 
to hold an alcohol licence and the permit holder continues to hold that licence. 

22.9 The permit holder may apply to vary the permit by changing the number and/or 
category of machines authorised by it. 

22.10 The Licensing Authority is able to cancel a permit in the following circumstances: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

the premises are used wholly or mainly by children or young persons; 
 

an offence under the Act has been committed; 
 

permit holder fails to pay annual fee (excepting any administrative error). 

Before the Licensing Authority cancels a permit they will give the permit holder at 
least 21 days notice and consider any representations made by the holder. 

22.11 Where a person applies to the Licensing Authority for a transfer of an alcohol 
premises licence they will also need to apply separately for the transfer of the 
licensed premises gaming machine permit. 

23.0 Prize Gaming Permits – (Statement of Principles on Permits - 
Schedule 14 Para 8 (3)) 

23.1 The Act defines gaming as prize gaming if the nature and size of the prize is not 
determined by the number of people playing or the amount paid for or raised by 
the gaming. The prizes will be determined by the operator before play 
commences. 

23.2 A prize gaming permit is a permit issued by the Licensing Authority to authorise 
the provision of facilities for gaming with prizes at specified premises. 

23.3 The Authority in accordance with the Guidance has prepared a Statement of 
Principles that it proposes to apply in exercising their functions in considering 
applicants. In particular, it has specified matters that the Authority propose to 
consider in determining the suitability of the applicant for a permit. 

The Statement of Principles, requires the applicant to set out the types of gaming 
that he or she is intending to offer and requires the applicant to demonstrate: 

• That they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in 
Regulations; and 
 

That the gaming offered is within the law. • 

23.4 Children and young persons may participate in equal chance prize gaming only. 

31 

 

Agenda Page 156 Agenda Item 3b



23.5 An application may only be made by a person who occupies or plans to occupy 
the relevant premises, and if the applicant is an individual, he must be aged 18 or 
over. 

23.6 The application must be made to the Licensing Authority in whose area the 
premises are wholly or partly situated. 

23.7 An application for a permit cannot be made if a premises licence or club gaming 
permit is in effect for the same premises. 

23.8 The Licensing Authority can refuse or grant a permit but cannot attach conditions. 

23.9 The Licensing Authority will consult the Licensing Unit of Lancashire Police and 
will take account of any objections made by Lancashire Police if they are relevant 
to the Licensing Objectives.  Relevant considerations may include the suitability 
of the applicant in the light of any convictions the applicant may have which 
would make them unsuitable to operate prize gaming and the suitability of the 
premises in relation to their location and issues about disorder. 

23.10 The Licensing Authority will give weight to child protection issues in making its 
decision on an application for this permit and the applicant should be able to 
demonstrate that they have considered such issues and offer up appropriate 
measures where relevant. The Licensing Authority does not need to but may 
have regard to the licensing objectives, but must have regard to any guidance 
produced by the Commission. 

23.11 A permit cannot be issued with regard to a vessel or vehicle. 

23.12 There are conditions in the Act to which the permit holder must comply, but that 
the Authority cannot attach conditions. The conditions in the Act are: 

The limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied with; 

• All chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises 
on which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be 
played and completed on the day the chances are allocated; and the result 
of the game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is 
played; 
 

The prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out 
in regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary 
prize); and 
 

Participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any 
other gambling. 
 

The permit will have effect for ten years unless it ceases to have effect and 
is reviewed. 

• 

• 

• 

23.14 The permit may lapse for a number of reasons: 

� if the holder ceases to occupy the premises; 

32 

 

Agenda Page 157 Agenda Item 3b



� if an individual permit holder dies, becomes incapable by reason of mental 
or physical incapacity; becomes bankrupt, or sequestration of the estate is 
ordered; 
 

if the Company holding the permit ceases to exist, or goes into liquidation. � 

23.15 The permit also ceases to have effect if the holder surrenders it to the Licensing 
Authority. 

23.16 If the holder is convicted of a relevant offence as set out in Schedule 7 of the Act 
the Court may order the forfeiture of the licence. 

23.17 An application for renewal of a permit must be made during the period beginning 
with six months before the licence expires and ending two months before it 
expires.  The procedure for renewal is the same as for an application. 

27.18 The permit must be kept on the premises and it is an offence not to produce it 
when requested by a constable, an enforcement officer, or an authorised local 
authority officer. 

24.0 Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 

24.1 Members Clubs and Miners’ welfare institutes (but not Commercial Clubs) may 
apply to this Licensing Authority for a Club Gaming Permit or a Club Gaming 
machines permit.   This is in addition to exempt gaming authorised by the Act. 
The Club Gaming Permit will enable the premises to provide gaming machines, 
equal chance gaming and games of chance as described in the regulations.  A 
Club Gaming Machines Permit may not be issued in respect of a vehicle or 
vessel. 

24.2 Members  clubs  must  have  at  least  25  members  and  be  established  and 
conducted “wholly or mainly” for purposes other than gaming, unless the gaming 
is permitted by separate regulations.  It is anticipated that this will cover bridge 
and whist clubs, which will replicate the position under the Gaming Act 1968.  A 
members’  club  must  be  permanent  in  nature,  not  established  to  make 
commercial profit, and controlled by its members equally. Examples include 
working men’s clubs, branches of Royal British Legion and clubs with political 
affiliations. 

24.3 Commercial clubs have the same characteristics as members clubs, except that 
the key difference is that they are established with a view to making a profit e.g. 
snooker club. 

24.4 The  definition   of   miners'   welfare   institutions   has   changed. These   are 
associations  established  for  recreational  and  social  purposes. They  are 
managed  by  representatives  of  miners  or  uses  premises  regulated  by  a 
charitable  trust  which  has  received  funds  from  one  of  a  number  of  mining 
organisations. 
Club gaming permits allow the provision of no more than 3 gaming machines 
from Categories B4, C or D.  The club is permitted to choose the combination of 
machines on its premises. 

24.5 

33 

 

Agenda Page 158 Agenda Item 3b



24.6 The Club gaming permit also allows the club to provide facilities for gambling, 
providing the gambling meets the following conditions: 

(a) equal chance gaming: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

the club does not deduct money from sums staked or won; 
 

the participation fee does not exceed the prescribed amount; 
 

the game takes place on the premises and is not linked with a game 
on another set of premises. Games are to be considered linked if: 

� the  result  of  one  game  is,  or  may  be,  wholly  or  partly 
determined by reference to the result of the other games; 
 

the amount of winnings is wholly or partly determined by the 
participation of more than one set of players; 
 

the game is split by sites so that part of one game is played on 
one site and another part is played elsewhere. 

� 

� 

(b) Other games of chance: 

� 
 

� 

the games are prescribed by regulations; 
 

that no participation fee is charged otherwise than in accordance 
with the regulations; 
 

that no amount is deducted from sums staked or won otherwise than 
in accordance with the regulations. 

� 

(c) in respect of gaming machines; 

� that no child or young person uses a Category B or C machine on 
the premises; 

 

that the holder complies with any relevant Code of Practice about 
location and operation of gaming machines. 

� 

(d) That the public, children and young persons are excluded from any area 
of the premises when gaming is taking place. 

24.7 A 48 hour rule applies in respect of all three types of gaming, so that the game 
may be played by people who have been members of the club for at least 48 
hours, or have applied or been nominated for membership or are genuine guests 
of a member. 

24.8 There are a number of premises that are not licensed to sell alcohol but have 
been entitled to site gaming machines by virtue of being registered under Part II 
or III of the Gaming Act 1968. These premises may apply for a club machines 
permit. Before granting the permit the Authority will need to satisfy itself that the 
premises meet the requirements of a members’ club and may grant the permit if 
the majority of members are over 18. 

34 

 

Agenda Page 159 Agenda Item 3b



24.9 Applications accompanied by the prescribed fee and documents must be made 
to  the  Licensing  Authority  in  whose  area  the  premises  are  situated. The 
applicant must also copy the application to the Commission and Lancashire 
Police. 

24.10 The Authority may only refuse an application on the grounds that: 

(a) The applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial 
club or miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the 
type of permit for which it has applied; 

(b) The applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or 
young persons; 

(c) An offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by 
the applicant while providing gaming facilities; 

(d) A permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten 
years; or 

(e) An objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police (Gambling 
Commission’s draft Guidance for Local Authorities 25.18). 

If the Licensing Authority is satisfied that (a) or (b) is the case it must refuse the 
application. The Licensing Authority will have regard to the relevant guidance 
issued by the Commission and (subject to that Guidance), the Licensing 
Objectives 

24.11 There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available for premises which holds a Club 
Premises  Certificate  under  the  Licensing  Act  2003. Under  the  fast-track 
procedure there is no opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission 
or Lancashire Police, and the grounds upon which the Authority can refuse a 
permit are reduced. The grounds on which an application under the process may 
be refused are: 

• That  the  club  is  established  primarily  for  gaming,  other  than  gaming 
prescribed under schedule 12; 
 

That in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for 
other gaming; or 
 

That a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in 
the last ten years has been cancelled.” 

• 

• 

24.12 There are  statutory conditions on club gaming  permits that  no child uses  a 
category B or C machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any 
relevant provision of  a code of  practice about the location and operation of 
gaming machines 

24.13 The permit will have effect for ten years unless it ceases to have effect because it 
is surrendered, lapsed or renewed. 

35 

 

Agenda Page 160 Agenda Item 3b



24.14 Permits  may  be  amended  to  meet  changing  circumstances. The  Licensing 
Authority will only refuse a variation if on consideration of a completely new 
application they would refuse the permit. 

24.15 A permit will lapse if the holder of the permit stops being a club or miners' welfare 
institute, or if it no longer qualifies under the fast track permit system for a permit. 
In addition, a permit will cease to have effect upon being surrendered to the 
Licensing Authority. 

24.16 The Licensing Authority may cancel a permit if: 

� 
 

� 

premises are used wholly by children and/or young persons; or 
 

an offence or breach of a permit condition has been committed in the 
course of gaming activities by the permit holder. 

24.17 Application for renewal of a permit must be made during the period beginning 
three months before the licence expires and ending six weeks before it expires. 

25.0 Temporary Use Notices 

25.1 A temporary use notice allows the use of the premises for gambling where there 
is no premises licence, but where a gambling operator wishes to use the 
premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. These may include 
hotels, conference centres and sporting venues. 

25.2 A temporary use notice may only be granted to a person or company holding a 
relevant operating licence. 

25.3 Section  218  of  the  Act  provides  that  a  set  of  premises  is the  subject  of  a 
temporary use notice if any "part" of the premises is the subject of a notice. 

There are a number of statutory limits with regard to Temporary Use Notices.  As 
with the definition of "premises", the definition of "a set of premises" will be a 
question of fact in the particular circumstances of each notice that is given.  In the 
Act "premises" is defined as including "any place". In considering whether a 
place falls within the definition of "a set of premises", the Licensing Authority will 
look  at,  amongst  other  things,  the  ownership/occupation  and  control  of  the 
premises.  The Authority will object to notices where it appears that their effect 
would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set 
of premises. 

25.4 The holder of an operating licence must give notice to the Licensing Authority in 
whose area the premises are situated in the prescribed form. 

25.5 The same set of premises may not be the subject of a temporary use notice for 
more than 21 days in any 12-month period.  The Licensing Authority will issue a 
counter notice if this limit is exceeded. As notices may be given by different 
operators in respect of the same premises the Licensing Authority will check 
whether a counter notice is appropriate. 

36 

 

Agenda Page 161 Agenda Item 3b



25.6 A temporary use notice may not be given in respect of a vehicle.  It may be given 
in respect of a vessel but only if it is a passenger vessel or a vessel that is 
situated at a fixed place. 

25.7 A temporary use notice must be lodged with the Licensing Authority not less than 
three months and one day before the gambling event is to take place in the 
prescribed form and accompanied by the fee. The application must be copied to: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

the Gambling Commission; 
 

Lancashire Police; 
 

HM Commissioners for Revenue & Customs and, if applicable any other 
licensing authority in whose area the premises are situated. 
 

In considering whether they wish to give notice of objection, the Licensing 
Authority will have regard to the licensing objectives and any relevant 
representations and if it considers that gambling should not take place, or 
only with modifications, it will give counter notice to the person who gave 
the Temporary Use Notice. 

� 

25.8 If objections are received, the Licensing Authority will hold a hearing to listen to 
all relevant representations unless all parties agree a hearing is unnecessary. 

Those person/bodies which raise objections may offer modifications to the notice 
that will alleviate their  concerns. If  such modifications are accepted by the 
applicant  a  new  Temporary  Use  Notice  must  be  prepared  and  the  original 
withdrawn.  The three-month time limit and fee will not apply to the new notice. 
The person who made the original objection and proposed the modification may 
not object to the new notice, but others to whom it is copied may object. 

25.9 The Licensing Authority, may, after a hearing has taken place (or has been 
dispensed with) determine that the Temporary Use Notice should not have effect. 
In these circumstances it may issue a counter notice which: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

prevents the temporary use notice from taking effect; 
 

limit the activities that are permitted; 

limit the time period of gambling; or 

allow the activity to take place subject to a specified condition. 

25.10 The Licensing Authority will apply the same principles in issuing a counter notice 
as  those  in  determining  premises  licence  applications. In  particular,  the 
Licensing Authority aims to permit the provision of facilities for gambling under a 
Temporary Use Notice subject to its view as to whether to do so accords with: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

relevant Codes of Practice; 
 

guidance issued by the Commission; 

reasonably consistent with the licensing objections; 

this Statement of Policy. 

37 

 

Agenda Page 162 Agenda Item 3b



25.11   A copy of the Temporary Use Notice must be displayed prominently on the 
premises whilst the gambling is taking place. 

26.0 Occasional Use Notices 

26.1 The Act provides that where there is betting on a track on eight days in a 
calendar year, betting may be permitted by an occasional use notice without the 
need for a full premises licence. 

26.2 The Licensing Authority notes that the meaning of "track" in the Act covers not 
just a horse racecourse or dog track but also any other premises on any part of 
which a race or other sporting event takes place or is intended to take place. 

26.3 This means that land which has a number of uses, or which fulfils the definition of 
track, can qualify for occasional use notice provisions (e.g. agricultural land upon 
which a point to point meeting takes place). 

26.4 The occasional use notice dispenses with the need for a betting licence for the 
track in these circumstances. 

26.5 A notice must be served by a person who is responsible for the administration of 
events on the track or by an occupier of the track. It must be served on the 
Licensing Authority and copied to Lancashire Police.  Notices may be given for 
consecutive days so long as the overall limit of eight days is not exceeded in any 
calendar year. 

26.6 Provided that the notice will not result in betting facilities being provided for more 
than 8 days in a calendar year, there is no provision for counter notices or 
objections to be submitted. 

26.7 The Commissioner may require the Licensing Authority to provide information 
about occasional use notices. Where required to do so the Licensing Authority 
will provide information as requested 

27.0 Gaming Machines 

27.1 The Act defines "gaming machine" as a machine which is designed or adapted 
for  use  by  individuals  to  gamble  (whether  or  not  it  can  be  used  for  other 
purposes).  However, it should be noted: 

� there remains a distinction between skill machines and gaming machines. 
Skill machines are unregulated; and 
 

Section 235 of the Act contains exemptions for equipment that is not to be 
considered a gaming machine even when gambling can be performed on it. 
e.g. home pc. 

� 

27.2 If the Licensing Authority has concerns about the manufacture, supply or repair of 
machines or the manner in which they are operating, it will bring it to the attention 
of the Commission. 

38 

 

Agenda Page 163 Agenda Item 3b



27.3 The Secretary of State has made regulations defining four classes of gaming 
machine, Categories A, B, C & D. These are set out in the table below. 

27.4 There is a minimum age of 18 for all players for all Category A, B and C 
machines. There is no minimum age for Category D machines, though the 
Secretary of State has a reserve power to set a minimum age for Category D 
machines. 

39 

Category of 
Machine 

 

Maximum Stake 
 

Maximum Prize 

A Unlimited Unlimited 

B1 £2.00 £4,000.00 

B2 £100.00 £500.00 

B3 £1.00 £500.00 

B4 £1.00 £250.00 

C £0.50 £25.00 
 

D 
10p or 30p when non – 

monetary prize 
£5.00 cash or £8.00 non – 

monetary prize 

 

Agenda Page 164 Agenda Item 3b



The maximum number of machines permitted is set out by the premise type below – 

27.5 The act does not cover machines that give prizes as a result of the application of 
pure skill by players e.g. trivia game machines. 

40 

 

 

 

TYPE 
 

 

GAMING 
TABLES 

(Minimum) 
 

 

 

 

GAMING MACHINES 
 

 

 

Regional casino 
 

 

 

40 
 

 

25 gaming machines of category A to D for each 
table available for use maximum 

of 1,250 machines 

 

 

Large casino 
 

 

 

1 
 

 

5 gaming machines category B to D for each 
table available for use maximum 

of 150 machines 

 

 

Small casino 
 

 

 

1 
 

 

2 gaming machines of category B to D for each 
table available for use maximum 

of 80 machines 

 

 

Bingo premises 
 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

4 gaming machines of category B3 and B4 
unlimited machines category C unlimited 

category D machines 

 

Betting premises 
 

N/A 
 

4 gaming machines of category B2 to D 

 

Track betting premises 
where pool betting licence 

held 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

 

4 gaming machines of category B2 to D 
 

 

Adult gaming centre 
 

 

N/A 
 

 

4 gaming machines of category B3 or B4 
unlimited category C unlimited category D 

 

Family entertainment 
centre with operating 

licence 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

Unlimited gaming machines of category 

C to D 
 

 

Family entertainment 
centre with gaming permit 

 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

 

Unlimited gaming machines of category D 
 

 

Members club premises 
 

N/A 
 

3 gaming machines of category B4 to D 

 

On sales alcohol licensed 
premises without food 

restriction 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

2 gaming machines of category C to D by 
notification unlimited of category C to D 

with alcohol premises gaming permit 

 

Agenda Page 165 Agenda Item 3b



APPENDIX 1 - Glossary of Terminology 

Licensing Objectives: As defined in paragraph 1.1 

Council: Chorley Council 

District: The area of Lancashire administered by Chorley Council (Map 
appended at Appendix 2) 

Notifications: Means notification of temporary and occasional use notices 

Act: The Gambling Act 2005 

Regulations: Regulations made under the Gambling Act 2005 

Premises: Any place, including a vehicle, vessel or moveable structure 

Code of Practice: Means any relevant code of practice under Section 24 of the 
Gambling Act 2005 

Mandatory Condition: Means a specified condition provided by regulations to be attached to 
a licence. 

Default Condition: Means a specified condition provided by regulations to be attached to 
a licence, unless excluded by Chorley Council. 

Responsible Authority: As detailed in Appendix 4 

Interested Party: For the purposes of this Act, a person is an interested party in relation 
to a premises licence if, in the opinion of the Licensing Authority which 
issues the licence or to which the application is made, the person: 

a) Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be 
affected by the authorised activities; 

Has business interests that might be affected by the 
authorised activities; 

Represents persons who satisfy a) or b) above. 

b) 

c) 

41 

 

Agenda Page 166 Agenda Item 3b



APPENDIX 2 
Map of Chorley Council area 

42 

 

Agenda Page 167 Agenda Item 3b



APPENDIX 3 - SCHEDULE OF CONSULTEES. 

Email 

Email 

B2 4BP 

43 

 

Councillors / MP / Parish Council 

Chorley MP Lindsay 
Hoyle 

 

35-39 Market Street, 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 2SW 

All elected Ward 
Councillors of Chorley 
Council, County 
Councillors (Chorley 
Area) and Parish 
Council Clerks 

   

 

Responsible Authorities 

 

Corporate Director 
Business 

 

Chorley Council, Union 
Street 

 

Chorley 
 

 

Internal 
 

 

Corporate Director 
Governance 

 

Town Hall, Market Street 
 

 

Chorley 
 

 

Internal 
Email 

 

Corporate Director 
People & Places 

 

Chorley Council, 
Union Street 

 

Chorley 
 

 

Internal 
 

 

Gambling Commission 
Policy Section 

 

Victoria Square House 
 

 

Victoria Square 
 

 

Birmingham, 
 

Regional Inspector for 
Lancashire & Cumbria 
Gambling Commission 

 

Victoria Square House 
 

 

Victoria Square 
 

 

Birmingham, 
B2 4BP 

H M Revenue & 
Customs 

Custom House, Custom 
House Quay 

 

Greenock 
 

 

PA15 1EQ 
 

 

Lancashire Constabulary 
 

Chorley Police Station, 
St Thomas’s Road 

 

Chorley 
 

 

PR7 1DR 
 

Lancashire Fire & 
Rescue 

Chorley Fire Station, 
Weldbank Lane 

 

Chorley 
 

 

PR7 6DH 
 

LCC Child Protection 
Service 

 

P.O. Box 78, County Hall 
 

 

Preston 
 

 

PR1 8XJ 
 

 

LCC Trading Standards 
 

 

P.O. Box 78, County Hall 
 

 

Preston 
 

 

PR1 8XJ 
 

 

Agenda Page 168 Agenda Item 3b



44 

 

Trade Associations & Representative Bodies 

The British Casino 
Association 

 

38 Grosvenor Gardens 
 

London 
 

SW1W OEB 

 

BACTA 
 

134-136 Buckingham 
Palace Road 

 

 

London 
 

 

SW1W 9SA 
 

British Holiday & Home 
Parks Association 

6 Pullman Court, Great 
Western Road 

 

Gloucester 
 

GL1 3ND 

 

Association of British 
Bookmakers 

 

Ground Floor 
Warwick House 
25 Buckingham Palace 
Road 

 

 

London 
 

 

 

SW1W 0PP 
 

Working Mens Club 
And Institute Union 

 

253-254 Uppers Street 
 

London 
 

N1 1RY 

Chorley & South Ribble 
Community Safety 
Partnership 

 

Paul Lowe- Internal 
Email 

  

Chorley South Ribble 
Business Club 

C/o Lancashire College, 
Southport Road 

 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1NB 

 

Gaming Machine Suppliers / Manufacturers 

 

Leisure Link Ltd 
3 The Maltings, Wetmore 
Road 

 

Burton-on-Trent 
 

DE14 1SE 

 

Red Rose Leisure 
Fleet House, Fleetwood 
Street 

 

Preston 
 

PR2 2PT 

 

Gamestec Leisure Ltd 
 

Low Lane, Horsforth 
 

Leeds 
 

LS18 4ER 

 

Crown Leisure Ltd 
 

Unit 1 Hillridge Road, 
Martland Mill Industrial 
Estate, Martland Park, 

 

Wigan 
 

 

WN5 0LS 
 

 

Head offices of Gaming Companies 

 

Gala Coral Group Ltd 
Newcastle House, Castle 
Boulevard 

 

Nottingham 
 

NG7 1FT 

 

Ladbrokes PLC 
Imperial House, Imperial 
Drive, Rayners Lane 

 

Harrow 
 

HA2 7JW 

 

Stanley Leisure PLC 
Stanley House, 151 Dale 
Street 

 

Liverpool 
 

L2 2JW 

 

 

 

William Hill PLC 
 

Greenside House 
50 Station Road 
Wood Green 

 

 

 

 

London 
 

 

 

 

N22 7TP 
 

 

Gambling Premises within Chorley Borough 

 

All Gambling Premises 

 

Agenda Page 169 Agenda Item 3b



45 

 

All Alcohol Licensed Premises 

 

Solicitors/Consultants 

 

Hardwicks Solicitors 
 

10 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HR 

Wallwork & Company 
Solicitors 

 

16 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HR 

 

Kevills Solicitors 
 

32 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HZ 

 

Marsdens Solicitors 
 

43 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1JE 

Birchall Blackburn 
Solicitors 

 

24 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HY 

 

Cobbetts Solicitors 
 

58 Mosley Street, 
 

Manchester 
 

M2 3HZ 

Flint, Bishop & Barnett 
Solicitors 

St Michael’s Court, St 
Michael’s Lane 

 

Derby 
 

DE1 3HQ 

Ford & Warren 
Solicitors 

 

Westgate Point, Westgate 
 

Leeds 
 

LS1 2AX 

 

Freemans Solicitors 
 

7 St Mary’s Place 
 

Newcastle 
 

NE1 7PG 

 

Gosschalks Solicitors 
 

Queens Gardens 
 

Hull 
 

HU1 3DZ 

John Gaunt & 
Partners Solicitors 

Omega Court, 372 Cemetery 
Road 

 

Sheffield 
 

S11 8FT 

 

Roscoes Solicitors 
St Andrew’s House, 
Wellington Street St Johns 

 

Blackburn 
 

BB1 8DB 

Ridgeway Licensing 
Services 

Harwell Innovation Centre, 
173 Curie Ave 

 

Didcot 
 

OXII OQG 

 

Other 

Chorley Library Union Street Chorley PR7 1EB 
 

Gam Care 
2-3 Baden Place, Crosby 
Row 

 

London 
 

SE1 1YW 

South Ribble Borough 
Council 

 

 

Licensing, West Paddock 
 

 

Leyland 
 

 

PR25 1DH 
 

 

West Lancashire 
District Council 

Robert Hodge Centre, 
Stanley Way, 
Skelmersdale 

 

Lancashire 
 

 

WN8 8EE 
 

Chorley Magistrates 
Court 

 

St Thomas’s Square 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1RZ 

Preston Magistrates 
Court 

 

P O Box 52 Lawson Street 
 

Preston 
 

PR1 2QT 

 

Agenda Page 170 Agenda Item 3b



APPENDIX 4 - List of Responsible Authorities 

For the purposes of this Act, the following are Responsible Authorities in relation to premises: 

1. The Licensing Authority in whose area the premises are wholly or mainly situated (Chorley 
Council) 

The Gambling Commission 

Lancashire Constabulary 

Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service 

Planning Dept Chorley Council 

Environmental Protection Service, Chorley Council 

Social Services Directorate, Lancashire County Council 

HM Customs and Excise. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

46 

 

Chorley Council 
Civic Offices 
Union Street 
Chorley 
Lancashire PR7 1AL 

 

Telephone: 01257 515163/4 
Fax: 01257 515197 
Email contact@chorley.gov.uk 
Web: www.chorley.gov.uk 

 

Lancashire County Council 
Social Services Directorate 
Quality & Review Manager 
PO Box 162 
East Cliff County Offices 
Preston PR1 3EA 

 

Telephone : 01772 531256 
 

 

Lancashire Constabulary 
Licensing Unit: C Division 
Chorley Police Station 
St Thomas’ Road 
Chorley 
Lancashire     PR7 1DR 

 

Telephone:     01257 246215 
Fax:                01257 246217 
Email:  southern- 
licensing@lancashire.pnn.police.uk 

 

Lancashire Fire & Rescue Services 
Fire Safety 
Fire Station 
Weld Bank Lane 
Chorley 
Lancashire PR7 3NQ 

 

Telephone: 01257 262919 
Fax: 01257 234363 

 

 

Gambling Commission 
4th Floor 
Victoria square House 
Victoria House 
Birmingham 
B2 4BP 

 

 

HM Customs and Excise 
Boundary House 
Cheadle Point 
Cheadle 
Cheshire  SK8 2JZ 

 

Telephone: 0845 010 9000 
Email: mailto:enquiries.nw@hmrc.gsi.gov.uk 

 

Agenda Page 171 Agenda Item 3b



APPENDIX 5 - Useful Contacts 

Further information on Chorley Council’s Statement of Principles or the Gambling Act 2005 can 
be obtained from the Public Protection Co-ordinator using the contact details 
Director People and Places has overall responsibility for the Licensing Service. 

below. The 

Public Protection Co-ordinator 
Chorley Council 
People & Places Directorate 
Civic Offices 
Union Street 
Chorley 
Lancashire 
PR7 1AL 

Telephone: 
Fax: 
Email: 

01257 515151 
01257 515150 
contact@chorley.gov.uk 

Information on the Gambling Act 2005 is also available from: 
 

The Department for Culture, Media and Sport 
2-4 Cockspur Street 
London 
SW1Y 5DH 

Telephone: 
Email: 
Internet: 

020 7211 6200 
enquiries@culture.gov.uk 
www.culture.gov.uk 

47 

 

Agenda Page 172 Agenda Item 3b



 

 

 

 

 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Director of Public 
Protection, Street Scene and 

Community 

 Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee   9 December 2014 

 

 THE GAMBLING ACT 2005; APPLICATION FOR A GAMING 

MACHINE PERMIT FOR MORE THAN 2 GAMING MACHINES. 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To bring to the attention of Members an application received from Poppleston Allen 
Solicitors in respect of an application for a Gaming Machine Permit for more than 2 gaming 
machines for a premise licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 known as The Highfield 
Restaurant Southport Rd Leyland. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. Members are recommended to consider the contents of the report and any representations 
made by the representative of Orchid Pubs & Dining Ltd and determine whether or not to 
grant the application. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. Poppleston Allen Solicitors made application under Schedule 13, of the Gambling Act 2005 
for a Gaming Machine Permit for 2 or more gaming machines on behalf of Orchid Pubs & 
Dining Ltd being the premises licence holder for The Highfield Restaurant.  The application is 
attached as Appendix 1.  The Council’s Statement of Gambling Policy states that each 
application will be determined on a case by case basis, the Council’s scheme of delegation 
does not authorise officers to determine the application where the application is for more 
than 2 gaming machines. 

 

Confidential report 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
4. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Involving residents in improving their local 
area and equality of access for all 

 A strong local economy  

Clean, safe and healthy communities X An ambitious council that does more 
to meet the needs of residents and 
the local area 

 

 

BACKGROUND. 
 
The Council has received an application made under Schedule 13 of the Gambling Act 2005 for 
more than 2 gaming machines for the public house The Highfield Restaurant.  The premises 
benefits from a Premises licence issued under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 authorising 

 

Agenda Page 173 Agenda Item 3c



the sale of alcohol, this authorisation is a pre-requisite to enable the above application.  The 
Premises Licence PLA0138 and Plan are attached as Appendix 2.  
 
 

Where a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then it needs to apply for a Gaming 
Machine permit and the Authority will consider that application based upon the licensing 
objectives, the Guidance, and such matters as they think relevant. Members should be satisfied 
that the granting of the said permit will not undermine the licensing objectives and that the 
applicant is aware of the positive steps required to promote the licensing objectives.  This 
Authority considers that such applications will be decided on a case-by-case basis, but generally 
there will be regard for the need to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being 
exploited by gambling.  The Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to satisfy it that there 
will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult 
only gaming machines. Such measures may include the adult machines being in sight of the 
bar, or in the sight of staff who will monitor that the machines are not being used by those under 
18.  Additionally, Notices and signage may also be of assistance.  With regard to the protection 
of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of information leaflets/helpline 
numbers for organisations such as Gam Care.  It is important that staff are able to see if the 
machines are being played by any adults with a gambling problem. 

 

Officers attended the premises on 28 November 2014 to assess the suitability of the premises to 
accommodate additional gaming machines in line with the application received.  It was noted that 
two existing Category C gaming machines on the premises are positioned in an area of the 
premises reserved for over 18s only.  Other areas of the premises are desighned as family 
friendly and the premises promotes  its self as such offering a childrens ball play area, extensive 
restaurant facilities and a number of skill machines with prises.  There was no evidence that the 
premises promoted any advice or guidance to its staff or public in relation to  the use  or control of 
the machines.  The premises presently benefits from a Gaming Machine Permit for 3 category C 
machines and the application recieved seeks authority to introduce a fourth Category D machine. 
There appears  to be adequate provision for additional gaming machines within the adult area of 
the premises where adequate supervion could be maintained. 
The current Designated Premises Supervisor confirmed that he had not been notified of the 
application made. 
 
 
In determining this matter Members shall have consideration for the following provisions; 
 
Chorley Council’s Statement of Gambling Policy. Attached as Appendix 3. 

 

Members are reminded of the Gambling Act 2005 licensing objectives which are; 
 
(a)  Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime 

or disorder or being used to support crime, 
(b)  Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and 
(c)  Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 

gambling. 
 

The Gambling Commissions published code of practice provides the requirements that must be 
complied with by the Gambling Machine Permit Holder.  The document is attached at Appendix 4. 
The guidance is applicable to all licensed premises in relation to any number of gaming machines 
that are provided.   
 
Member’s attention is drawn to the committee’s discretion in determining this matter which is 
prescribed within Schedule 13 Section 283 of the Gambling Act 2005 which states they may; 
 
a) Grant the application, 
b) Refuse the application, 
c)   Grant it in respect of; 

Agenda Page 174 Agenda Item 3c



1)  A smaller number of machines than that specified in the application, 
2)  A different category of machines from that specified in the application, or  
3)  Both. 
 
d) Members may not attach conditions to a permit. 

 

The applicant in respect of this application has been invited to attend the hearing and make 
representation. 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
5. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are 

included: 
 

Finance  Customer Services   

Human Resources  Equality and Diversity   

Legal X Integrated Impact Assessment 
required? 

 

No significant implications in this 
area 

 Policy and Communications  

 
COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER  
 
Under Schedule 13 of the Gambling Act 2005 members must have regard to the licensing 
objectives contained in the Gambling Act 2005, national guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission and such other matters as they think are relevant.  It would be reasonable for 
members to have regard to the Council’s own statement of gambling policy.  
 
Other relevant considerations would be the location of the proposed machines so that staff could 
clearly see minors or problem gamblers attempting to play the machines and intervene.  Also the 
location is a relevant consideration for fire safety. 
 
Provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 are relevant to the application, including but not limited 
to Article 1, Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of possessions) and Article 6 (right to a fair hearing). 
In the event that the application is granted in whole or in part then under section 282 of the 
Gambling Act 2005 the location and operation of the machines must be in accordance with any 
relevant Code of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission. 
 
The applicant has a right of appeal to the magistrates’ court within 21 days of receiving notice of 
the decision to (i) reject the application or (ii) grant an application for a smaller number of 
machines than that specified in the application or a different category of machines from that 
specified in the application (or both) 
 
 
JAMIE CARSON 
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROTECTION, STREETSCENE AND COMMUNITY 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

S Culleton 5665 26 November  

 

Agenda Page 175 Agenda Item 3c



This page is intentionally left blank



R
E
C
E
I
d
E
D
 
1 
7
 N
OV
 
24
1

oa
ie
: 

1
4
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 2
0
1
4

Li
ce
ns
in
g 
Se

ct
io

n
ou
r 

gar
: 

IM
/I
M/
P4
54
66
-2
63
31

Ch
or
ie
y 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
Co
un
ci
l

D
o
c
 R
ef
: 
2
1
4
4
8
7
9
8
9
7

Ci
vi

c 
Of

fi
ce

s
Un

io
n 
St

re
et

V
o
w
 r
ef

.

Ch
or
le
y

i.
mo

ss
@p

op
al

l.
co

.u
k

La
nc

as
hi

re
E-

ma
gi
c

P
R
7
 1
A
L

0
1
1
5
 9
3
4
9
1
7
3

Di
re

ct
 l
in
e:

D
e
a
r
 S
ir
s

T
h
e
 H
ig
hf
ie
ld
 R
es
ta
ur
an
t,
 S
nu

tf
ip

or
t 
R
o
a
d
,
 U
l
n
e
s
 
W
a
l
t
o
n
,
 
L
e
y
l
a
n
d

L
P
G
M
P
 V
a
r
y

W
e
 e
nc

lo
se

 a
pp
li
ca
ti
on
 f
or
 v
ar

ia
ti

on
 o
f 
a
 L
ic

en
se

d 
P
r
e
m
i
s
e
s
 G
a
m
i
n
g
 M
a
c
h
i
n
e
 P
er

mi
t 

in
re

sp
ec

t 
of

 t
he

 a
b
o
v
e
 p
re
mi
se
s,
 t
og
et
he
r 
wi

th
 o
ur

 c
h
e
q
u
e
 f
or
 £
1
0
0
 b
ei
ng
 t
he
 r
eq

ui
si

te
 f
ee

.

Sh
ou
ld
 y
ou
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
y
 q
ue
ri
es
 i
n 
re
la
ti
on
 t
o 
th

e 
en

cl
os

ed
 w
e
 s
ho

ul
d 
b
e
 g
ra

te
fu

l 
if
 y
ou

 w
ou
ld

ki
nd

ly
 c
on

ta
ct

 t
he

 w
ri
4e
r 
o
n
 t
he

 n
u
m
b
e
r
 a
bo
ve
.

Pl
ea

se
 a
c
k
n
o
w
l
e
d
g
e
 s
af
e 
re
ce
ip
t 
of

 4
hi
s 
le

tt
er

 a
n
d
 t
he

 r
el
ev
an
t 
en

cl
os

ur
es

.

Y
o
u
r
s
 f
ai

th
fu

l)

Po
pp

le
st

on
 A
ll
en

E
N
C

0

Pa
rt
ne
rs
 •
 J
a
m
e
s
 R
 U
 A
nt
le
rs
on
 L

tt
l 
•
N
i
c
k
 A
rr
on
 L
tt

l 
•
 G
r
a
e
m
e
 C
u
s
h
i
o
n
 L
tt

l 
•
C
l
a
r
e
 E
a
m
e
s
 L
tt

l 
•
L
i
s
a
 I
nx

an
l 
Lt

tl
 •
L
i
s
a
 S
h
a
r
k
e
y
 L

tt
l 
•
 J
o
n
a
t
h
a
n
 M
 S
m
i
t
h
 L

tt
l

3
7
 S
t
o
n
e
y
 S
tr
ea
t,
 T
h
e
 L
a
c
e
 M
er

ka
t,

 N
o
t
l
i
n
g
h
a
m
 N
G
l
 t

 L
S
 •
 T
 0
1
1
5
 y
5
3
 8
5
0
0
 •
 F
 0
1
1
5
 9
5
3
 8
5
0
1
 •
 W
 p
op
al
l.
co
.u
k 

~ 
D
X
 1
0
1
0
 
N
o
t
t
i
n
g
h
a
m

Of
fi

ce
 a
ls

o 
In
 L
o
n
d
o
n

Au
th
or
ls
et
l 
x
n
d
 R
eg
ul
at
ed
 b
y
 t
he
 S
ol
ic
it
or
s 
Re
gu
la
fi
on
 A
W
h
o
n
t
y
 (
S
R
A
 n
o.
 7
8
2
x
4
)

APPENDIX 1
Agenda Page 177 Agenda Item 3c



Ch
or
le
y 
Bo
ro
ug
h 
Co
un
ci
l

NO
TI
FI
CA
TI
ON
 O
F
 2
 O
R
 L
E
S
S
 G
A
M
I
N
G
 M
A
C
H
I
N
E
S
 O
R
 G
A
M
I
N
G
 M
A
C
H
I
N
E
 P
E
R
M
I
T

AP
PL
IC
AT
IO
NS
 (i

.e
 f
or
 g
re
at
er
 P
ha
n 
2
 m
ac
hi
ne
s)
 fo
r:
 C
O
N
V
E
R
S
I
O
N
 1
 N
E
W
 !
V
A
R
I
A
T
I
O
N
 1
 T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
 .,

(
F
O
R
 U
S
E
 8
Y
 P
R
E
M
I
S
E
S
 L
I
C
t
N
C
E
S
 T
O
 S
U
P
P
L
Y
 A
L
C
O
H
O
L
 F
O
R
 C
O
N
S
U
M
P
T
I
O
N
 O
N
 T
H
E
 P
R
E
M
I
S
E
S
)

Pl
ea
se
 r
e%
r
 t
o 
gu
id
an
ce
 n
ot
ic
es
 a
t 
th
e 
ba
ck
 o
f 
th
is
 f
or
m 
be
(o
~e
 c
om
pl
et
in
g

S
E
C
T
I
O
N
 C
 —

Ap
pl
ic
at
io
n 
fo
r 
pe
rm
it
 tr

an
sf
er
 (i

e,
 w
he
re
 a

Li
ce
ns
in
y 
A
d
 2
00
3 
pr
em
is
es
 l
ic
en
ce
)

4.
 N
a
m
e
 o
f 
pe
rs
on
 r
eq
ue
st
in
g 
th
e 
tr
an
sf
er

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
...

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
. 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

5.
 C
on
fi
m~
ti
on
 t
ha
t a
n 
ap
pi
ka
ti
on
 t
o 
tr
an
sf
er
 t
he
 r
el
ev
an
t 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
Ac
t 
2
 

re
mi
se
s 
Li
ce
nc
e 
ha
s

be
en
:

Re
qu
es
te
d 

~

Gr
an
te
d 

~

b.
 P
le
as
e 
pr
ov
id
e 
yo
ur
 ex

is
ti
ng
 p
er
m'
 
p
r
~
re
as
on
s 
st
at
in
g 
wh
y 

fl 
ca
nn
ot
 b
e 
pr
ov
id
ed

Ex
is
ti
ng
 P
er
mi
t 
pr
ov
id
ed

Re
as
on
s 
wh
y 
ex
is
 iR

Cf
pe
rm
it
 c
an
no
t 
be
 p
ro
vi
de
d

D
 —

Ge
ne
ra
l

7.
 N
a
m
e
 o
f 
Pr
em
is
es
: 
Th
e 

Hi
gh
fi
ei
d 
Re
st
au
ra
nt

8.
 A
dd
re
ss
 o
(P
re
mi
se
s:
 
So
ut
hp
or
t 
Ro
ad
, 
Uf
ne
s 
Wa
lt
on
, 
Le
yl
an
d,
 P
R
2
6
 9
J
6

9.
 T
el
ep
ho
ne
 n
um
be
r 
of
 P
re
mi
se
s:

10
. 
N
a
m
e
 o
f 
ex
is
ti
ng
 P
re
mi
se
s 
Li
ce
nc
e 
ho
ld
er
: 

Or
ch
id
 P
ub
s 
an
d 
Di
ni
ng
 L
im
it
ed

11
. 
Ad
dr
es
s 
of
 P
re
mi
se
s 
Li
ce
nc
e 
ho
ld
er
 (i

f d
rf
fe
re
nt
 f
ro
m 
8
 a
bo
ve
):
 
Pa
rk
 M
il
l,
 B
ur
yd
el
l 
La
ne
, 
St
 A
lb
an
s,
 A
L2
 2
H
6

12
. T

el
ep
ho
ne
 n
um
be
r 
(d
ay
ti
me
i 
of
 P
re
mi
se
s 
Li
ce
nc
e 
ho
ld
er
:

13
. 
E-

ma
il
 a
dd
re
ss
 o
f 
Pr
em
is
es
 L
ic
en
ce
 h
ol
de
r (
wh
er
e 
av
ai
la
bl
e:

14
. 
Na
me
, 
ad
dr
es
s,
 te

le
ph
on
e 
an
d 
e-

rr
ai
i o

f 
ag
en
t (
eg
 S
ol
ic
it
or
) i

i s
ub
mi
tt
ed
 o
n 
be
ha
lf
 o
f 
th
e 
ap
pl
ic
an
t:

im
a~
en
 A
~o
ss
, 
Po
pp
le
st
on
 A
ii
en
, 3
7
 S
to
re
y 
St
re
et
, T

he
 L
ac
e 
Ma
rk
et
, 
No
tt
in
gh
am
, 
N
G
1
 1
 L
S

Te
l :
01
15
 9
sG
91
 r
3
 E
ma
il
 : 
i.
mo
ss
~p
op
al
l.
co
.u
k

15
. 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
Ac
t 
2U
O3
 P
re
mi
se
s 
Li
c2
,i
ce
 R
ef
er
en
ce
 (i

e 
nu
mb
er
):
 
PL
A0
13
8

Agenda Page 178 Agenda Item 3c



f

Ch
or
le
y 

Co
un

ci
l

Of
fi
ci
al
 R

ec
ei

pt

Da
te

 1
7/

11
/2

41
4 

Ti
me
 1

1:
15
;3
0A
M

Te
rm

 0
7 

Ca
sh
ie
r 
02
5

Ga
mb
li
ng
 P
re

mi
se

s 
Li
ce
nc
e

Re
fe

re
nc

e 
X1

20
/6

02
17

Fu
nd
 

Mi
sc
 I
nc

om
e

Au
di
t 

Nu
m 

CH
CA

07
06

72
72

Am
ou
nt
 

£ 
1 
0.
00

Pa
yt

yp
e 

Po
st

al
 C

he
qu
e

»
>
 T

HA
NK
 Y

OI
J 
FO
R 

YO
UR
 P

AY
ME
NT
 «
<

Pl
ea
se
 c

he
ck

 t
hi
s 

re
~~
ip
t 
an
d 

ke
ep

 i
t 

in
 a

sa
fe
 p
la

ce
. 
Th

is
 i

s 
yo

ur
 p

ro
of

 o
f 

pa
ym
en
t

Th
or
le
y 

Co
un
ci
l

Cu
st
om
er
 S
er

vi
ce

s
PO

 B
ox
 3
52

Ch
o r

 1 e
y

PR
7 

1~
D

ww
w.
ch
or
le
y,
go
v.

uk

Agenda Page 179 Agenda Item 3c



This licensed premises gaming machine permit authorises

Orchid Pubs &Dining Limited.................................... ..................................................................................

to make gaming machines, of the category and number specified below, available for use on the following

premises:

The Highfield Restaurant

..South~ort.Road.. Ulnes Walton Leyland PR26 9JB

Number of Category C gaming machines authorised by this permit:..3 .........................................

Number of Category D gaming machines authorised by this permit:.............................................

Date on which this permit takes effect:

29/04/2013........................................................................................................................

Chorley Council
PO Box 613

Chorleyr~ PR6 6LG

C0 u n C ~ ~ web: www.chorley.gov.uk
tel: 01257 515151

~;

...............................
Director of People and Places: Jamie Carson

Printed on 26 November 2014 at 9:49 AM
www.chorley.gov.uk

Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page 180 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 1 of 12 

 

 

 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 

The Highfield Restaurant 
Southport Road  Ulnes Walton  Leyland  PR26 9JB   

 
 
 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES 

 
Not applicable 

 
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE 

 
- Performance of Live Music 

 
- Performance of Recorded Music 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Dancing 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Similar Description 

 
- Late Night Refreshment 

 
- The sale by Retail of Alcohol 

 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 

Activity (and area if applicable) Days and times 

 

Performance of Live Music (Indoors) 
 
Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Monday to Wednesday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   10:00 - 01:00    
 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 
Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police 
 

 

Performance of Recorded Music (Indoors) 
 
Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Monday to Wednesday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   10:00 - 01:00    
 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 

Agenda Page 181 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 2 of 12 

 

 

 

Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Part 1 - Premises Details 
Printed Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police. 
 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Dancing (Indoors) 
 
Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Monday to Wednesday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   10:00 - 01:00    
 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 
Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police 
 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Similar Description 
 
Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Monday to Wednesday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   10:00 - 01:00    
 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 
Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police 
 

 

Late Night Refreshment (Indoors) 
 
Sunday   23:00 - 01:00    
 
Monday to Wednesday   23:00 - 01:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   23:00 - 02:00    
 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 
Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police. 
 

 

The sale by Retail of Alcohol (On and off the 
 
Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 

Agenda Page 182 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 3 of 12 

 

 

 

premises) Monday to Wednesday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   10:00 - 01:00    
 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 
Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police. 
 

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES 

 

Sunday   09:00-01:00 

Monday to Wednesday   09:00-01:00 

Thursday to Saturday   09:00-02:00 

 

The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 

Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 

notice and agreement from the policeFor statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 

and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 

Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 

On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 

charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 

by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police. 

The premises, in accordance with the converted right, may chose to 

open to the public at any time for non-licensable activities/purposes. 

 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES 

 

The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption both ON and OFF the premises. 

 
 

Part 2 

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE 

  

Orchid Pubs & Dining Limited Park Mill  Burydell Lane  Park Street  St Albans  Herts 
Telephone number: 01727 871100 
Telephone number: 01772 600286 

 

 

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE) 

Agenda Page 183 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 4 of 12 

 

 

 

  
 

 

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES 
THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

  

Mr Simon Hughes The Highfield Restaurant  Southport Road  Ulnes Walton  Leyland  PR26 9JB 
 

 
PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR 
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

 
Licence Number: PA2318 
 

 
Issuing Authority: Bolton Metropolitan Borough 

 

 
ANNEXES 

 
ANNEX 1 – MANDATORY CONDITIONS 

 
 
MANDATORY DRINKS CODE 
Section 19: 
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that no supply of alcohol is made under the premises licence - (a) at a 
time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence; or (b) at a time when 
the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended 
(section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003). 
 
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made 
or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence (section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003). 
 
ALCOHOL PROMOTIONS 
(1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 
 
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and 
disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children - 
 
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to - 
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises 
before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
 
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or 
to a group defined by a particular characteristic (other than any promotion or discount available to an individual 
in respect of alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as defined in Section 159 of the Act); 
 
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and 
consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less; 

Agenda Page 184 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 5 of 12 

 

 

 

 
(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a sporting event, where 
that provision is dependent on - 
(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or 
(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring; 
 
(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the 
premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to 
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner. 
 
DISPENSING ALCOHOL 
The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed 
directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where 
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 
 
FREE TAP WATER 
The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on 
request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
AGE VERIFICATION 
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification policy 
applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or 
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark. 
 
ALCOHOL MEASURES 
The responsible person shall ensure that- 
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than 
alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed 
container) it is available to customers in the following measures- 
(i) beer or cider: 1/2 pint; 
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and 
(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures. 
 
EXHIBITION OF FILMS 
Section 20: 
1a) The Premises licence holder shall ensure that the admission of children to the exhibition of any film shall be 
restricted in accordance with section 20 of the Licensing Act 2003(the Act) 
1b) Unless section 20(3) (b) of the Act applies, admission of children to the exhibition of any film must be 
restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the film classification board specified in this licence 
1c) Where section 20(3) (b) of the Act applies, admission of children to the exhibition of any film must be 
restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the licensing authority 
1d) Where no film classification board is specified in this licence admission of children to the exhibition of any 
film shall be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the licensing authority. 
1e) For the purposes of this condition:- 
"children" means persons aged under 18; and 
"film classification board" means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video 
Recordings Act 1984 

Agenda Page 185 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 6 of 12 

 

 

 

(authority to determine suitability of video works for classification) 
 
DOOR SUPERVISORS 
The Premises licence holder shall ensure that each individual present on the premises to carry out a security 
activity [as defined by paragraph 2(1) (a) of the Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001] must be 
licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 
 
SCHEDULE Mandatory Licensing Condition 
 
1.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a 
price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
2.  For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1- 
 
(a)"duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(1); . 
 
(b)"permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula- . 
 
where- 
  
(i) P is the permitted price,  
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the 
sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged 
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
 
(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence 
 
(i) the holder of the premises licence,  
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence; 
 
(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 
 
(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994(2). 
 
3.  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be a 
whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by 
that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 
 
4.  (1)  Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day 
("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 
 
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place 
before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 
 

 
ANNEX 2 – CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE 

Agenda Page 186 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 7 of 12 

 

 

 

 
 
Note – Some conditions may apply to one or more of the objectives 
 
General 
 

We have applied for an extended period between the cessation of the supply of alcohol and the closure 
of the premises to give us the option to allow for a more gradual dispersal of customers. The style and 
operation of the pub will not differ significantly during the extended hours. Where this is appropriate, nonalcoholic 
refreshment will be available in the extended period. 
The premises will respect Orchid Group's Approach to Responsible Drinking. Our policies change at 
regular intervals to reflect the current trends and it would be inappropriate to standardise them on a 
permanent basis. 

 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 

When door staff are used they will be Security Industry Authority (SIA) approved and operate in 
accordance with the security industry guidelines. 
A zero tolerance towards illegal drugs will be enforced at all times. 
If a disc jockey is used on any night then he/she will ask customers to leave quietly. 
If a CCTV system is installed at this site, it will continue to operate during the additional hours of trading 
and notices will be displayed. 
All instances of crime and disorder will be reported to the police and will be kept in an incident logbook 

 
Public Safety 
 

Public safety is integral to the way that Orchid Group runs its business and is reviewed regularly through 
our health and safety policy. This policy is fully briefed and trained to all management and staff and we 
will continue to train our staff to the standards required by the relevant legislation. 
Free drinking water will be available at all times. 

 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

Additional patrols will take place by members of staff internally and externally, to limit any noise pollution 
when entertainment is being offered within the premises. 
If appropriate, notices will be displayed asking our customers to respect our neighbours when leaving the 
premises. 
Where already used text/radio pagers will continue to be used for the additional hours of trading and will 
be monitored by a responsible member of staff. 
Soft drinks and non-alcoholic refreshment will be available if we decide to use the option to stay open for 
an extended period between the cessation of the supply of alcohol and the closure of the premises (see 
above under general). 

 
Protection of Children From Harm 
 

When children are allowed upon the premises, any entertainment offered within the premises will be 
suitable for young persons. 
Children will be required to be supervised by the accompanying adult at all times. 
A no smoking area will be provided. 
Soft drinks and non-alcoholic drinks will be available. 
A recognised proof of age policy will be enforced. 

Agenda Page 187 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 8 of 12 

 

 

 

 
ANNEX 3 – CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY 

 
 
NONE 

 
 
ANNEX 4 – PLANS 

 
 
Minor Variation - Plan number HF/OG/LIC02 dated Mar 2014 refers. 

 
 

 

Agenda Page 188 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 9 of 12 

 

 

 

Summary of Licence 
 

Premises Details 

POSTAL ADDESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 

The Highfield Restaurant 
Southport Road  Ulnes Walton  Leyland  PR26 9JB   

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMTED THE DATES 

 
Not applicable 

 
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE 

 
- Performance of Live Music 

 
- Performance of Recorded Music 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Dancing 

 
- Entertainment Facilities - Similar Desc 

 
- Late Night Refreshment 

 
- The sale by Retail of Alcohol 

 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 

Activity (and area if applicable) Days and times 

 

Performance of Live Music (Indoors) 
 
Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Monday to Wednesday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   10:00 - 01:00    
 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 
Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police 
 

 

Performance of Recorded Music (Indoors) 
 
Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Monday to Wednesday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   10:00 - 01:00    

Agenda Page 189 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 10 of 12 

 

 

 

 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 
Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Part 1 - Premises Details 
Printed Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police. 
 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Dancing (Indoors) 
 
Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Monday to Wednesday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   10:00 - 01:00    
 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 
Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police 
 

 

Entertainment Facilities - Similar Description 
 
Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Monday to Wednesday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   10:00 - 01:00    
 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 
Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police 
 

 

Late Night Refreshment (Indoors) 
 
Sunday   23:00 - 01:00    
 
Monday to Wednesday   23:00 - 01:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   23:00 - 02:00    
 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 
Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police. 
 

  

Agenda Page 190 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 11 of 12 

 

 

 

The sale by Retail of Alcohol (On and off the 
premises) 

Sunday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Monday to Wednesday   10:00 - 00:00    
 
Thursday to Saturday   10:00 - 01:00    
 
The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 
Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 
notice and agreement from the police. 
For statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 
Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 
On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 
charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 
by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police. 
 

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES 

 

Sunday   09:00-01:00 

Monday to Wednesday   09:00-01:00 

Thursday to Saturday   09:00-02:00 

 

The finish time will be extended by one hour on St David's Day, St 

Patrick's Day, St George's Day and St Andrew's Day with seven days 

notice and agreement from the policeFor statutory bank holiday weekend periods (Friday, Saturday, Sunday 

and Monday) and for Thursday before Good Friday and for Christmas 

Eve, the finish time will be extended by one hour beyond these times. 

On occasions of local, national or international significance or for 

charitable events, limited to 12 per year, the finish time will be extended 

by one hour, with fourteen days notice and agreement with the police. 

The premises, in accordance with the converted right, may chose to 

open to the public at any time for non-licensable activities/purposes. 

 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES 

 

The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption both ON and OFF the premises. 

 

 

Part 2 

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE 

  

Orchid Pubs & Dining Limited 
 

Park Mill  Burydell Lane  Park Street  St Albans  Herts 
 

 

Agenda Page 191 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence PLA0138 
 

 

APPENDIX 2 Chorley Council 
PO Box 13 

Chorley 
PR7 1AR 

www.chorley.gov.uk 
01257 515151 

contact@chorley.gov.uk 
 

 

Printed on 28 November 2014 at 12:56 PM 
www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
Page 12 of 12 

 

 

 

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE) 

  
 

 

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

Mr Simon Hughes  

 
STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED 

 

 

Agenda Page 192 Agenda Item 3c



'
~
'

o
o
 

=,o~
~;, 

u,~
~

ou
v

i 
00

•
 

e
 

~
,~. ,

~
~

i

~
 

~
 ~
 Q
)
~
2

i 
~r
= ~

--
-
-
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
'
 
-

-
-
'
 -
-
-
-
-
~
 

o
 

~,
 
~,

~
,
Q

FA
MI
LY

FA
MI
LY

~.
 

9
.
O
 

~
~'

"°
"s

d.
..

~,
~

l
 

~
-
-
-
-
-
-
'
 

_,

•.
~°

~

L
 
-
-
-
 
~

'
~
-
`
 

~

I~
 
~ 

1_
a
x
 

$
 o

c,
~}
-~
 c
 
o

P
U
B
 
~
,

FL
EX

I

~
r ~
y

~
 

O

$
O

~
'
4
 

A
W
L
T
 

(
~

O
 

~
i

w
~
 

~
L

O
~
 T 

~.
.

~.
 

i
 

~
~
~

~
~
~

~
0
~

~f
ll

~l
l~

l~
 

~I
I~

II
~

i

~~
Il
~l
li
~ 

~
 
i

i
 
~
 

iU
 ~
U 

..
..
..
..
..
.
w

APPENDIX 2
Agenda Page 193 Agenda Item 3c



This page is intentionally left blank



Gaming Machine Permits Code of Practice  
- Club Gaming Permits and Club Machine Permits  
- Alcohol Licensed Premises Permits and Permissions and 
  automatic entitlements 

June 2007 

Introduction 

i. This is the Gambling Commission’s Code of Practice issued under section 24 Gambling
Act 2005 (the Act) relating to provision of facilities for gambling in accordance with club
gaming, club machine and licensed premises gaming machine permits. This includes:

registrations under Parts II and III Gaming Act 1968 which, under transitional 
provisions, are treated as club gaming and club machine permits respectively; and 

alcohol licensed premises gaming machine permits (formerly s34 1968 Act 
permits). 

ii. The Code will come into force on 1 September 2007.

iii. Those items marked in bold and shaded are the provisions which are a condition of the
permit and must be complied with.

Section A: Location and operation of machines 

All permit holders 

Compliance with these provisions is a condition of your permit, and failure to do so 
could result in revocation of the permit.1 

1 All gaming machines situated on the premises must be located in a place within the 
premises so that their use can be supervised, either by staff whose duties include 
such supervision (including bar or floor staff) or by other means. 

Permit holders must have in place arrangements for such supervision. 

2 All gaming machines situated on the premises shall be located in a place that 
requires a customer who wishes to use any ATM made available on the premises to 
cease gambling at the gaming machine in order to do so. ‘ATM’ means a machine 
located on the premises, which enables a person using it to obtain cash by use of a 
credit or debit card. 

1
 Compliance with these provisions is a condition of the relevant permit as a result of the Gambling Act 2005: 

section 271 for Club Gaming Permits, section 273 for Club Machine Permits, section 282 for alcohol licensed 
premises using their automatic machine permissions and section 283 for licensed premises Gaming 
Machine Permits and alcohol licensed premises Gaming Machine Permits. 

APPENDIX 3
Agenda Page 195 Agenda Item 3c



Gaming Machine Permits Code of Practice: Issued June 2007 

 

 2 

 
Section B: Access to gambling by children and young persons 
 

All permit holders 
 

This section sets out the best practice which the Gambling Commission considers 
should be implemented by permit-holders, compliance with this provision is not a 
condition of your permit. 
 
3 Permit holders should put into effect procedures intended to prevent underage gambling. 

This should include procedures for:  

 checking the age of apparently underage customers; and  

 refusing access to anyone who appears to be underage, and who tries to use 
category B or C gaming machines and cannot produce an acceptable form of 
identification.  

 
4 Permit holders should take all reasonable steps to ensure that all relevant employees 

understand their responsibilities for preventing underage gambling.  
 
5 Permit holders should only accept identification which:  

 contains a photograph from which the individual can be identified;  

 is valid; and  

 is legible and has no visible signs of tampering or reproduction.  
 

(The Commission considers acceptable forms of identification to include any identification 
carrying the PASS logo (eg Citizencard, Validate and the Government’s own Connexions 
card); driving licence (including a provisional licence) with photocard; and passport).  

 
6 Procedures should be in place for dealing with cases where a child or young person 

repeatedly attempts to gamble on category B or C machines, including oral warnings, 
reporting the offence to the Gambling Commission and the police, and making available 
information on problem gambling.  
 

Section C: Self exclusion 
 

This section sets out the best practice which the Gambling Commission considers 
should be implemented by permit-holders, compliance with this provision is not a 
condition of your permit. 
 

Club gaming permit and club machine permit holders only   
 
7 Permit holders should put in place procedures for self-exclusion and take all reasonable 

steps to refuse service or to otherwise prevent an individual who has entered a self-
exclusion agreement from participating in gambling. 

 
8 Permit holders should implement procedures designed to ensure that an individual who 

has self-excluded cannot gain access to gambling; this includes:  

 a register of those excluded with appropriate records (name, address, other 
details, and any membership or account details that may be held by the 
operator);  

 photo identification (where available and in particular where enforcement of the 
system may depend on photographic ID), and a signature; 

 staff training to ensure that relevant staff are able to enforce the systems; and  

 the removal of those self-excluded persons found in the gambling area or 

Agenda Page 196 Agenda Item 3c



Gaming Machine Permits Code of Practice: Issued June 2007 

 

 3 

attempting to gamble from the premises.  
 

9 Self-exclusion procedures should require individuals to take positive action in order to self-
exclude. This can be a signature on a self-exclusion form.  

 
10 Before an individual self-excludes, permit holders should provide or make available 

sufficient information about what the consequences of self-exclusion are. Customers 
should be given the opportunity to discuss self-exclusion in private, where possible.  

 
11 Permit holders should take all reasonable steps to ensure that: 

 the self-exclusion period is a minimum of six months and give customers the 
option of extending this to a total of at least five years;  

 a customer who has decided to enter a self-exclusion agreement is given the 
opportunity to so do immediately without any cooling off period. However, if the 
customer wishes to consider the self exclusion further (for example to discuss 
with problem gambling groups) the customer may return at a later date to enter 
into self exclusion;  

 at the end of the period chosen by the customer (and at least six months later), 
maintain the self-exclusion in place, unless the customer takes positive action in 
order to gamble again. No marketing material may be sent to the individual 
unless that has taken positive action in order to gamble again, and has agreed 
to accept such material; and 

 where a customer chooses not to renew, and makes a positive request to begin 
gambling again, give the customer 1 day to cool off before being allowed access 
to the gambling facilities.  

 
12 Please note that the Commission does not require the permit-holder to carry out an 

assessment or make any judgement of whether the individual should have access to 
gambling. The requirement to take positive action in person or over the phone is purely to: 

a)  check that the customer has considered the decision to access gambling again 
and allow them to consider the implications; and  

b) implement the 1 day cooling-off period and explain why this has been put in 
place. 

Gambling Commission June 2007 

GUI 07/07 

 

 

The Gambling Commission regulates gambling in the public interest. It does so by keeping crime 

out of gambling, by ensuring that gambling is conducted fairly and openly, and by protecting 

children and vulnerable people from being harmed or exploited by gambling. The Commission also 

provides independent advice to government on gambling in Britain.  

 

For further information or to register your interest in the Commission please visit our website at: 

www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

 

Gambling Commission 

Victoria Square House   

Victoria Square     

Birmingham B2 4BP     

 

T 0121 230 6500 

F 0121 233 1096 

E info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk 

 

Agenda Page 197 Agenda Item 3c



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 

April 2013 

Gambling Act 2005 

Statement of Licensing Policy 
 

 

APPENDIX 4 

Agenda Page 199 Agenda Item 3c



Contents Page 

Part A: General 

1.0 

2.0 

The Licensing Objectives 

Introduction 

Legal background and rationale 

Development Process and Consultation 

Declaration 

Responsible Authorities 

Interested Parties 

Exchange of Information 

Integration Strategies 

Enforcement 

Licensing Authority functions 

Hearings 

3 

3 

4 

6 

7 

7 

7 

9 

10 

10 

12 

13 
 

14 
 

14 

15 

16 

16 

17 

18 

19 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

26 

27 

27 

27 

27 

29 

30 

31 

31 

2.1 

2.12 

3.0 

4.0 

5.0 

6.0 

7.0 

8.0 

9.0 

10.0 

Part B: Premises Licences 

11.0 General principles 

Definition of “Premises” 

Location 

Duplication with other regulatory regimes 

Licensing objectives 

Conditions 

Default Conditions 

Door Supervisors 

Adult Gaming Centres 

(Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 

Casinos 

Bingo Premises 

Betting premises 

Tracks 

Gaming Machines 

Betting Machines 

Condition on rules being displayed 

Applications and plans 

Travelling Fairs 

Provisional Statements 

Reviews 

Decision to grant application for a review 

11.6 

11.14 

11.15 

11.16 

11.19 

11.21 

11-25 

12.0 

13.0 

14.0 

15.0 

16.0 

17.0 

17.6 

17.7 

17.9 

17.10 

18.0 

19.0 

20.0 

20.2 

1 

 

Agenda Page 200 Agenda Item 3c



Contents Page 

Part C: Permits / Temporary and Occasional Use Notices 32 

21.0 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits 32 

21.13 Renewals 34 

21.15 Maintenance 34 

22.0 (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits 34 

23.0 Prize Gaming Permits 36 

24.0 Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 39 

25.0 Temporary Use Notices 42 

26.0 Occasional Use Notices 44 

27.0 Gaming Machines 45 

Appendix 1 
 

Appendix 2 

Glossary of terminology 47 

Map detailing key locations in the Chorley district 48 

Appendix 3 
Schedule of Consultees 49 

Appendix 4 
List of Responsible Authorities with addresses 54 

Appendix 5 
Useful contacts 55 

2 

 

Agenda Page 201 Agenda Item 3c



PART A:  GENERAL 

1. The Licensing Objectives 

1.1 In exercising most of the functions under the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act), Chorley 
Council is designated the Licensing Authority (the Authority) and must have regard 
to the licensing objectives as set out in Section 1 of the Act. The licensing 
objectives are: 

• Preventing  gambling  from  being  a  source  of  crime  or  disorder,  being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime; 
 

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and 
 

Protecting  children  and  other  vulnerable  persons  from  being  harmed  or 
exploited by gambling. 

• 

 

• 

1.2 The Gambling Commission has specifically stated that the requirement in relation 
to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by gambling, 
to which the Authority will have regard. 

1.3 In accordance with Section 153 of the Act, the Authority shall aim to permit the use 
of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it: 

• In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission under Section 24 of the Act; 
 

In   accordance   with   any   relevant   guidance   issued   by  the   Gambling 
Commission under Section 25 of the Act; 

Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives, and 

In accordance with this Statement of Principles. 

• 

• 

 

• 

1.4 A Glossary of the key terms used in this Statement of Principles is detailed at 
Appendix 1. 

2. Introduction 

Chorley Council is situated in the County of Lancashire, which contains 12 District Councils 
and 2 unitary authorities. The Borough has 23 Parish councils and a population of 
100,449 (National Census 2001), covering an area of 80 square miles. 

The Borough is set in attractive countryside between the West Pennine Moors and the 
Lancashire Plain. 

A map of the Borough is in Appendix 2 

3 

 

Agenda Page 202 Agenda Item 3c



Legal background and rationale 

2.1 This Statement of Principles (the Statement) sets out the manner in which the 
Authority will generally apply to promote the licensing objectives when considering 
and making decisions on applications made under the Act. This Statement has 
been prepared under Section 349 of the Act and in accordance with the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance (the Guidance) for Licensing Authorities issued under 
Section 25 of the Act. The Authority is therefore constrained by the provisions of 
the Act, the Guidance and any Regulations made under the Act. However, the 
Authority may depart from the Guidance if it has reason to do so, but will give full 
justification for such departure. 

The Authority is required by Section 349 of the Act to publish this Statement, which 
it  proposes  to  apply  when  exercising  its  functions. This  Statement  shall  be 
effective  from  the April  2013,  and  shall  remain  in  effect  for  three  years; 
therefore this Statement will be reviewed in January 2016. Following this full 
review of its Statement, and prior to its publication, the Authority will consult fully 
those groups and individuals consulted on this version. 

1st 

2.2 This Statement will also be kept under review during this three year period, and 
accordingly, the Director People and Places will maintain an ‘Issues Log’ in which 
all issues pertaining to this Statement will be recorded.  Therefore the Authority will 
make revisions to the Statement from “time to time” as it considers appropriate. 
For example, where relevant issues have arisen, or where matters recorded in the 
‘Issues Log’ indicate that such a review is required.  A further consultation will be 
carried out on any amendments made to the Statement, and the Statement will be 
re-published. 

2.3 Nothing in this Statement will override the right of any person to apply under the 
Act for a variety of permissions and have that considered on its own merits and 
according to the statutory requirements of the Act. 

2.4 Nothing  in  this  Statement  will  override  the  right  of  any  person  to  make 
representations on any application or seek a review of a licence or certificate 
where they are permitted to do so under the Act. 

2.5 The Council also has a responsibility under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998 to do all that it reasonably can to reduce crime and disorder in its area. 
Accordingly, it is recognised that prevention of crime and disorder is a vital element 
of  ensuring  the  quality  of  life  in  a  community  and  an  important  aspect  of  a 
successful and vibrant economy. 

2.6 Chorley  Council  recognises  that  in  considering  applications  and  taking  of 
enforcement action under the Act, it is subject to the Human Rights Act 1998 and 
in particular: 

� 

� 

� 

� 

Part 1 of the First Protocol - peaceful enjoyment of possessions. 
Part 6 right to a fair hearing. 
Part 8 respect for private and family life. 
Part 10 right to freedom of expression. 

4 

 

Agenda Page 203 Agenda Item 3c



Chorley Council also  acknowledges the rights of businesses in its area to operate, 
but this must be balanced against the rights of residents not to be disturbed by 
unreasonable nuisance caused by licensed premises/activities. Full consideration 
has been given to these issues in formulating this Statement. 

2.7 This Statement recognises the Race Relations Act 1976, as amended by the Race 
Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, which places a legal obligation on public 
authorities to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination and 
to promote equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different 
racial groups. This Statement also recognises that the Council is required to 
produce a race equality scheme assessing the impact of proposed policies on race 
equality and to monitor polices for only adverse impact on the promotion of race 
equality, and this Statement is referenced in this race equality scheme. The 
Authority, in determining applications, will have regard to this legislation so as to 
avoid any possible indirect discriminatory impact on particular ethnic groups. 

2.8 This Statement recognises the Disability Discrimination Act 1995, however no 
condition will be attached to a licence or certificate that conflicts or duplicates this 
requirement. 

2.9 Chorley Council will steer to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes as far 
as   possible   e.g.   health   &   safety   at   work   and   fire   safety   requirements. 

2.10 Unmet demand is not a criteria for the Authority in considering an application for a 
premises licence. 

Development process and consultation. 

2.11 The Council consulted widely upon this Statement before finalising and publishing 
the document.  A list of the persons consulted can be provided on request. 

2.12 The Act requires the Authority to consult the following parties: 

Chief Officer of Police 

One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests 
of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area. 

One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 
persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions 
under the Gambling Act 2005. 

Consultation for this review period takes place between 3rd December 2012 and 1st 

March 2013 and follows the Revised Code of Practice for public consultations 
2.15 

2.16 The full list of comments made, and the consideration by the Council of 
comments, will be available from the Council using the contact details 
below . 

those 
given 

5 

 

Agenda Page 204 Agenda Item 3c



2.17 The  original  Statement  was  approved  at  a  meeting  of  the Council  19 
December  2006  on  and  was  published  on  the  Council’s  website  thereafter. 

2.18 If  you  have  any comments  as  regards  this  Statement,  please  send  them  via 
e-mail or letter to: 
 

Director People and Places 

Email: contact@chorley.gov.uk 

Mail to: Chorley Council 
Civic Offices 
Union Street 
Chorley PR7 1AL 

3.0 Declaration 

In producing the final statement, this Licensing Authority declares that it has had regard to 
the licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission, and any responses from those consulted on the Statement. 

4.0 Responsible Authorities 

These are specified in Section 157 of the Act and are set out in appendix 4. 

4.1 When exercising its powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, 
a body that is competent to advise the Authority about the protection of children 
from harm, the Authority is required to state the principles it will apply. These 
principles are: 

The need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the 
licensing authority’s area; 

The need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, rather 
than any particular vested interest group etc. 

4.2 Therefore, in accordance with the Guidance, the Authority designates Lancashire 
County Council  Child  Services  Directorate  (or  equivalent)  as the  body that  is 
competent to advise the Council about the protection of children from harm. 

4.3 Responsible authorities are public bodies that must be notified of applications and 
are  entitled  to  make  representations  to  the  Authority  for  and,  in  relation  to, 
premises licences. 

5.0 Interested Parties 

Section 158 of the Act defines an Interested Party. An Interested Party can make 
representations about licence applications, or apply for a review of an existing licence. 

5.1 Section 158 of the Act defines an interested party: as any person who: 

6 

 

Agenda Page 205 Agenda Item 3c



• Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 
authorised activities; or 

Has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; or 

Acts as a representative of those persons who satisfy either of the above 
points. 

• 

 

• 

5.2 The Authority will consider whether a person is an interested party with regard to 
particular premises on a case-by-case basis and make a decision upon its merits. 
However, the Authority may have regard to a number of factors when making its 
decision e.g. the size of the premises and the nature of the activities taking place. 

Larger premises may be considered to affect people over a broader geographical 
area compared to smaller premises offering similar facilities. 

The factors that the Licensing Authorities may take into account when determining 
'what sufficiently close to the premises' means, may include: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

size of the premises; 
 

nature of the premises; 
 

distance of premises from the location of the person making the 
representation; 
 

potential impact of the premises (number of customers, routes likely to be 
taken by customers) and; 
 

circumstances of the complainant. The Licensing Authority will not take into 
account the personal characteristics of the complainant but the interests of 
the complainant which may be relevant to the distance from the premises eg 
the Licensing Authority would reasonably conclude that "sufficiently close to 
be likely to be affected" could have a different meaning for a private resident 
or a residential hostel for vulnerable adults. 

� 

� 

5.3 The  Authority  will  consider  the  examples  of  considerations  provided  in  the 
Guidance when making a decision as to whether or not a person is an interested 
party.  If the Authority does not wish to follow the Guidance in any respect, it will 
provide  written reasons as to why this deviation has taken place,  noting  that 
decisions on Premises Licences must be “in accordance” with the Guidance. 
Interested parties may include trade associations,  trade unions,  residents  and 
tenants associations.  However, it will not generally view these bodies as interested 
persons unless they represent a person or body who comes within the definition as 
set out in paragraph 5.2 

5.4 

5.5 Persons  representing  these  interested  parties  may  also  be  persons  who  are 
democratically  elected  such  as  ward  Councillors,  Members  of  Parliament  and 
Parish Councillors. Other than these persons, the Authority will require written 
evidence that a person ‘represents’ someone who either lives sufficiently close to 
the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities and/or business 
interests that might be affected by the authorised activities.  A letter from one of 
these persons, requesting the representation will be deemed as sufficient.   The 

7 

 

Agenda Page 206 Agenda Item 3c



Licensing Authority will have regard to anything an interested party says about his 
status to make representation. 

5.6 Persons with business interests that could be affected: 

The Licensing Authority will have to be satisfied that a relevant business is likely to 
be affected. 

The Licensing Authority is aware that the "demand tests” in previous legislation has 
not been preserved in the 2005 Act. 

The Licensing Authority consider factors likely to be relevant to include: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

size of the premises; 
 

'catchment' area of the premises and; 
 

whether the person making the representation has business interests in the 
area that may be affected. 

5.7 If individuals wish to approach ward Councillors to ask them to represent their 
views, then care should be taken that the Councillors are not part of the Statutory 
Committee that will deal with the licence application. If there are any doubts, 
please contact the Councils Head of Legal Services using the contact details given 
at Appendix 5. 

6.0 Exchange of Information 

Sections 29 and 30 of the Act require the Authority to state the principles to be applied by 
the  Authority  with  respect  to  the  exchange  of  information  between  it  and  the 
Commission.  In addition, Section 350 of the Act also requires the Authority to state the 
principles to be applied with respect to the exchange of information between it and the 
other persons listed in Schedule 6 to the Act. 

6.1 In this regard, the Authority will act in accordance with the provisions of the Act in 
its exchange of information, which includes the provision that the Data Protection 
Act 1998 will not be contravened and conform to the requirements of the Freedom 
of Information Act 2000. The Authority will also have regard to any Guidance 
issued by the Commission to Local Authorities on this matter, as well as any 
relevant regulations, codes of practice etc. 

6.2 Where any protocols are established to facilitate such exchange of information, 
these will be made available. 

6.3 Details  of  those  persons  making  representations  will  be  made  available  to 
applicants to allow for negotiation and, in the event of a hearing being required, will 
form part of a public document. Any person making a representation, or applying 
for review of a premises licence, will be informed that their details will be disclosed. 

8 

 

Agenda Page 207 Agenda Item 3c



7.0 Integration Strategies 

General 

7.1 There are many stakeholders in the gambling industry, covering a wide range of 
disciplines. Many are  involved,  directly or  indirectly,  in the promotion of  the 
licensing  objectives. The  Authority,  therefore,  recognises  that  as  part  of 
implementing local authority cultural strategies, proper account should be taken of 
the  need  to  encourage  such  activities  for  the  wider  cultural  benefit  of  the 
community.  The Authority will aim to monitor the impact of its decisions to ensure 
that this principle is being upheld. 

7.2 Many of these strategies deal in part with the licensing function, and the Authority 
will establish appropriate liaison arrangements to ensure proper integration of local 
crime prevention, planning, local transport, tourism and cultural strategies. 

7.3 Coordination of duties will involve close, and regular, liaison with Responsible 
Authorities.   This shall be carried out through regular local meetings, regarding 
strategic and operational issues raised by the Act. 

7.4 The Authority recognises the need to avoid so far as possible duplication with any 
other regulatory regimes. However, some regulatory regimes do not cover the 
unique circumstances of some entertainment and, where relevant representations 
have been received, the Authority will consider attaching conditions to a licences 
or permission where these are necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and are not already provided for in any other legislation. 

8.0 Enforcement 

The Authority is required by regulation to state the principles to be applied by the 
Authority  in  exercising  the  functions  under  Part  15  of  the  Act  with  respect  to  the 
inspection of premises; and the powers under section 346 of the Act to institute criminal 
proceedings in respect of the offences specified. 

8.1 The Authority’s principles for enforcement are that: 

It will be guided by the Guidance and any code of best practice and aim to be: 

• Proportionate: the Authority will only intervene when necessary:   remedies 
will be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised. 
 

Accountable:  decisions will be justified, and be subject to public scrutiny. 

Consistent: rules and standards will be joined up and implemented fairly. 

Transparent:  regulators should be open, and keep regulations made simple 
and user friendly wherever possible; and 
 

Targeted:   regulation will be focused on the problem, and aim to minimise 
side effects. 

• 
 

• 

 

• 

• 

8.2 In accordance with the Guidance, the Authority will endeavour to avoid duplication 
with  other  regulatory regimes so far  as  possible. The  Authority will  also,  as 

9 

 

Agenda Page 208 Agenda Item 3c



recommended  by  the  Guidance,  adopt  a  risk-based  inspection  programme  of 
premises. This  involves  targeting  high-risk  premises  which  require  greater 
attention whilst operating a lighter touch in respect of low risk premises.   In this 
way,  resources  are  more  effectively concentrated  on  problem  premises. The 
criteria and programme that the Authority is to use to determine the level of risk in 
respect of risk will be made available separately from this statement. 

8.3 The main enforcement and compliance role for the Authority will be to ensure 
compliance with the Premises Licences and other permissions that it authorises. 
The Commission will be the enforcement body for Operator and Personal Licences. 
Any concerns about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be 
dealt with by the Authority, but will be notified to the Commission.  The Commission 
will also be responsible for compliance as regards unlicensed premises. 

8.4 The Authority will also keep itself informed of developments as regards the work of 
the Better Regulation Executive in its consideration of the regulatory functions of 
local authorities and will adopt the principles of better regulation. 

8.5 To ensure transparency in its enforcement action, the Authority maintains an 
enforcement policy to which all staff must comply.  A copy of the enforcement policy 
is  available  upon  request  to  the  Licensing  Service,  using  the  contact  details 
provided at Appendix 5. 

9.0 Licensing Authority functions 

The Act requires the Authority to: 

• Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to 
take place by issuing Premises Licences. 

Issue Provisional Statements. 

• Regulate  members’  clubs  and  miners’  welfare  institutes  who  wish  to 
undertake certain gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or 
Club Machine Permits. 
 

Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs. 
 

Grant  permits  for  the  use  of  certain  lower  stake  gaming  machines  at 
unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres. 
 

Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing Act 
2003) of the use of two or fewer gaming machine. 
 

Grant Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to 
sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises, under  the 
Licensing Act 2003, where more than two machines are required. 
 

Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds. 

Issue Prize Gaming Permits. 

Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices. 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

10 

 

Agenda Page 209 Agenda Item 3c



• 

 

• 

Receive Occasional Use Notices. 
 

Provide  information  to  the  Gambling  Commission  regarding  details  of 
licences issued (see section above on ‘information exchange). 
 

Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these 
functions. 

• 

9.1 It should be noted that the Authority is not involved in licensing remote gambling at 
all.  This is the responsibility of the Commission, which is controlled via Operator 
Licences. 

The Licensing Authority will determine the delegated functions under the Act. 

9.2 The Licensing Authority is aware that the Code of Conduct will apply in their 
decision making and that public confidence in their decision making is paramount. 
The general principles that apply in decision making to underpin the Code of 
Conduct are that members of licensing authorities should: 

9.3 

� serve  only  the  public  interest  and  should  never  improperly  confer  an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person; 
 

not place themselves in situations where their honesty and integrity may be 
questioned and make decisions on merit; 
 

be accountable to the public for their actions; 
 

reach their own conclusions on the issues before them and act in accordance 
with those conclusions; and 
 

uphold the law and, on all occasions, act in accordance with the trust that 
the public is entitled to place in them. 

� 

� 
 

� 

10.0 Hearings 

A hearing will be arranged to deal with any applications, which cannot be dealt with 
under delegated powers or resolved by agreement between applicants and interested 
parties and/or Responsible Authorities. 

10.1 Each case will be determined on its individual merits. 

10.2 Hearings will be held at the earliest possible date having regard to the regulations 
published under the Act and the laws of natural justice. The Licensing Sub- 
Committee   will   conduct   a   quasi-judicial   consideration   of   the  application, 
objections and representations. Members will carefully consider their position 
should they be requested to hear a matter which occurs in their own ward. 

10.3 A legal advisor, advocate or a friend may represent applicants where they do not 
choose  to  represent  themselves. The  Authority  will  endeavour  to  assist 
applicants in preparing for and participating in a hearing. 

10.4 Whilst the Committee and Sub-Committees will usually meet in public they do 
have the power to hear certain applications in private.  A public announcement of 

11 

 

Agenda Page 210 Agenda Item 3c



the decision will be made at the end of the hearing.  The decision determined by 
the Committee or Sub-Committee will be accompanied with clear reasons for the 
decisions, having regard to the Human Rights Act 1998, the three Licensing 
Objectives and all other relevant legislation. 

10.5 Conditions  may  be  attached  to  licences  where  relevant  representations  are 
received.  Any condition attached to a licence will be related to one or more of the 
Licensing Objectives, and conditions will not relate to matters, which are the 
subject of other legislation. 

PART B: PREMISES LICENCES 

11.0 General Principles 

Where an individual or company proposes to offer gambling for which an operating 
licence is required, and which is premises based, that individual or company will also 
need to apply for a premises licence. 

11.1 Premises licences are issued by the Licensing Authority with responsibility for the 
area  in  which  the  premises  are  situated. In  the  Borough  of  Chorley,  the 
Licensing Authority is Chorley Council. 

11.2 Premises licences, under Section 150 of the Act, can authorise the provision of 
facilities on: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

casino premises; 
 

bingo premises; 
 

betting premises; including tracks and premises used by betting 
intermediaries; 

adult gaming centres (for Category B3, C and D machines); and 

family entertainment centres (for Category C and D machines only). 

� 
 

� 

11.3 Premises Licences will be subject to the permissions/restrictions set out in the 
Act  and  associated  regulations,  as  well  as  specific  mandatory  and  default 
conditions.  The Authority is able to exclude default conditions and also attach 
others, where it is believed to be appropriate. 

11.4 The Authority is aware that in making decisions about Premises Licences it 
should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it is: 

• In   accordance   with   any   relevant   code   of   practice   issued   by   the 
Commission. 
 

In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission. 

Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. 

In accordance with this Statement. 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

12 

 

Agenda Page 211 Agenda Item 3c



11.5 The Authority is aware that as per the Gambling Commissions Guidance, moral 
objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications, and also that 
unmet demand is not criterion for a Licensing Authority 

 Def init ion of “ prem 
ises”  
11.6 Premises is defined in the Act as “any place” Section 152 of the Act prevents 

more than one Premises Licence applying to any place. However, it is possible 
for a single building to be subject to more than one Premises Licence, provided 
they are for different parts of the building and the different parts of the building 
can be reasonably regarded as being different premises. Whether different parts 
of a building can be properly regarded as being separate premises will always be 
a question of fact in the circumstances. However, the Authority follows the 
Commission guidance and does not consider that areas of a building that are 
artificially or temporarily separate can be properly regarded as different premises. 

11.7 The Authority will pay particular attention to applications where access to the 
licensed premises is through other premises (which themselves may be licensed 
or unlicensed).   The sort of issues that the Authority will consider before granting 
such applications e.g. whether children can gain access, compatibility of the two 
establishments  and  ability to  comply  with  the  Act. However,  the  overriding 
consideration will be, whether taken as a whole, the co-location of the premises 
with other facilities, has the effect of creating an arrangement that otherwise 
would or should, be prohibited under the Act. 

11.8 When  considering  applications  for  multiple  licences  for  a  building  or  those 
relating to a specific part of a building used for other (non-gambling purposes) the 
Authority will generally require entrances and exits from parts of a building 
covered by one or more licences to be separate and identifiable so that the 
separation of different premises is not compromised and that people do not ‘drift’ 
into a gambling area. 

11.9 With certain exceptions, children will not be permitted to enter licensed gambling 
premises. Therefore  applicants  should  consider  carefully  how  they  wish  to 
configure   their   buildings   if   they   are   seeking   to   develop   multi   purpose 
establishments. 

11.10 The Authority may, where reasonable, require persons operating premises in 
which gambling takes place to take measures such as the supervision of 
entrances,  segregation  of  gambling  from  non-gambling  areas  frequented  by 
children (if their non-gambling areas are compatible with the requirements of the 
Act) and the supervision of gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific 
premises in order to provide the licensing objectives. This will be done by 
attaching licence conditions where appropriate. 

11.11 The Act permits premises licences to be granted for passenger vessels.  A vessel 
is defined by the Act ( Section 353(1) as: 

• Anything  (other  than  a  sea  plane  or  amphibious  vehicle)  designed  or 
adapted for use on water. 
 

A hovercraft; or • 

13 

 

Agenda Page 212 Agenda Item 3c



• Anything, or part of any place, situated on or in water. 

11.12 Structures which are an extension of land are not vessels.  The Act applies in 
relation to a vessel which is not permanently moored or berthed as if it were 
premises situated in a place where it is usually moored or berthed.  The relevant 
Licensing Authority will be the Licensing Authority for the area in which it is 
usually moored or berthed. 

11.13 Where a premises licence is sought for a vessel which will be navigated whilst 
licensable activities take place the Authority will be concerned with the promotion 
of the Licensing Objectives on-board the vessel. The Licensing Authority will not 
focus on matters relating to safe navigation, operation of the vessel, general 
safety or emergency provision. 

Location 

11.14 Demand issues cannot be considered with regard to the location of premises but 
considerations in terms of the licensing objectives can.   The Authority will pay 
particular attention to the protection of children and vulnerable persons from 
being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder. 
For example, the Authority would have regard to the proximity of the premises to 
schools, vulnerable adult centres or residential areas where there may be a high 
concentration of families and children.   If the Authority is mindful to make any 
specific decision that states any area(s) where gambling premises should not be 
located,  this  Statement  will  be  updated. It  should  be  noted  that  any  such 
decision would not preclude any application being made and each application will 
be decided on its merits, with the onus upon the applicant showing how such 
concerns can be overcome. 

Duplication with other regulatory regimes 

11.15   The Authority will not take into account irrelevant matters i.e. those not related to 
gambling and the Licensing Objectives and will seek to avoid any duplication with 
other statutory / regulatory systems.  The Authority will not consider whether a 
licence application is likely to be awarded planning or building consent, in its 
consideration of it.  However, the Authority will listen to, and consider carefully, 
any  concerns  about  conditions,  which  cannot  be  met  by  licensees  due  to 
planning restrictions, should such a situation arise. 

Licensing objectives 

11.16   All Premises Licences granted by the Authority must be reasonably consistent 
with the licensing objectives.  With regard to these objectives, the Authority has 
considered the Guidance and offers the following comments: 

Preventing  gambling  from  being  a  source  of  crime  or  disorder,  being 
associated  with  crime  or  disorder  or  being  used  to  support  crime  - 
Notwithstanding the above paragraphs, the Authority will pay attention to the 
proposed  location  of  any  gambling  premises  in  relation  to  this  objective. 
Therefore, if an area has known high levels of organised crime, the Authority will 
consider whether gambling premises are suitable for that location. 

14 

 

Agenda Page 213 Agenda Item 3c



The Authority is also aware of the distinction between disorder and nuisance and 
will consider factors such as whether police assistance was required and how 
threatening the behaviour was to those who could see it. Issues of nuisance 
cannot be addressed under the Act. 

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way – The Authority 
will not concern itself with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open 
way, as this will be addressed via operating and personal licences. 

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling – The Authority will take the approach that in practice 
this would often mean preventing children from taking part in gambling, and 
therefore when determining a relevant application, the Authority will consider 
whether specific measures are required at the premises. 

At present no definition is offered with regard to the term “vulnerable persons”, 
therefore the Authority will consider this objective on a case-by-case basis. 
However the Guidance does state that “it will for regulatory purposes assume 
that this group includes people who gamble more than they want to; people who 
gamble beyond their means; and people who may not be able to make informed 
or balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or 
drugs.” Where a practical definition is made available in the future, this Statement 
will be updated. 

11.17 Section 183 applies to all premises licences.  It attaches a mandatory condition 
that facilities for gambling must not be provided on Xmas Day (i.e. 00.01 hrs on 
25 December until 00.00 hrs on 26 December). 

11.18 Secretary of State to set out in Regulations, conditions that must be attached to 
premises licences. 

The Authority shall only consider imposing individual conditions when imposing a 
more restrictive regime in respect of matters dealt with by mandatory conditions 
where there are regulatory concerns of an exceptional nature and any additional 
licence conditions will relate to the licensing objective. 

Conditions 

11.19   Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate to the areas they are 
trying to address and will be: 

• Relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling 
facility; 
 

Directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for; 

Fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and 

Reasonable in all other respects. 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

15 

 

Agenda Page 214 Agenda Item 3c



11.20 Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis. 
However, there are a number of control measures that the Authority will consider 
utilising should there be a perceived need, such as the use of door supervisors, 
supervision of adult gaming machines, appropriate signage for adult only areas 
etc. Specific comments made in this regard under each of the licence types 
below. The Authority will also expect the licence applicant to offer his/her own 
suggestions as to the way in which the licensing objectives can be met 
effectively. 

The Licensing Authority recognises that the Act specifies certain conditions which 
cannot be attached to premises licences namely; 

• any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible to comply 
with an operating licence condition; 
 

conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of 
operation; 
 

conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required 
(the Gambling Act 2005 specifically removes the membership requirement 
for casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated; 
and 
 

conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winnings or prizes. 
 

These considerations will apply to premises including buildings where 
multiple premises licences are applicable. 

• 

• 

• 
 

• 

Default Conditions 

11.21 These may be imposed by the Secretary of State under Section 168 of the Act. 

The  Licensing  Authority  has  the  power  to  exclude  a  default  condition  and 
substitute it with one that is either more or less restrictive. 

11.22 Section 169 of the Act gives the Authority power to: 

� exclude from premises licence any default conditions imposed under S168; 
and 
 

power to impose conditions on the premises licences it issues. � 

The Licensing Authority recognises that default conditions are intended to be the 
basic industry norm and where it excludes default conditions and replaces them 
with more restrictive areas it will ensure that it has clear regulatory reasons for 
doing so. 

11.23 Where there are specific risks or problems associated with a particular locality or 
specific  premises  or  class  of  premises  the  Licensing  Authority  may  attach 
individual conditions to address this. 

11.24 This licensing authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than 
one premises licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the 

16 

 

Agenda Page 215 Agenda Item 3c



track.  As per the Gambling Commission's Guidance, this licensing authority will 
consider the impact upon the third licensing objective and the need to ensure that 
entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are excluded 
from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter. 

Door Supervisors 

11.25 The Authority may consider whether there is a need for door supervisors in terms 
of the licensing objectives of protection of children and vulnerable persons from 
being harmed or exploited by gambling, and also in terms of preventing premises 
becoming a source of crime. 
Where conditions requiring the presence of door supervisors may be attached to 
premise licences or other permissions, the authority will take account of available 
evidence, trading history and whether the presence of door supervisors is both 
necessary and proportionate. 

11.26 

11.27 It is noted that the Security Industry Authority cannot licence door supervisors at 
casinos or bingo premises. 

11.28 Section 178 of the Act provides that if a condition is attached which requires 
someone to be  responsible for "guarding  the premises against  unauthorised 
access or occupation, against outbreaks of disorder or against damage", such a 
person  would  normally  need  to  hold  a  licence  from  the  Security  Industry 
Authority, the requirement for a SIA licence becomes a condition of the premises 
licence.  Bingo premises and Casino premises are exempt from the need to have 
licensed door supervisors. 

The Authority can specify specific requirements for door supervisors, who are 
non-SIA registered.  This could include training from a recognised provider which 
could cover: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

Licensing Law. 
 

Civil and Criminal Law. 

Drug Awareness. 

Equal Opportunities and Customer Service. 

Children and Vulnerable Adults. 

Eviction/Arrest and searching people. 

First Aid. 
 

Door Supervisor Roles/Procedures and Standards. 

12.0 Adult Gaming Centres 

Persons operating Adult Gaming centres (AGC's) must hold a gaming machines general 
operating licence from the Commission and must seek a premises licence from the 
Licensing Authority. 

17 

 

Agenda Page 216 Agenda Item 3c



12.1 Section 172(1)  of the Act  provides that  a holder  of  a Adult Gaming Centre 
premises licence may make available for use up to four category B Machines; 
any number of category C or D machines.  The Secretary of State will specify 
that the Category B machines will be  restricted to sub-category B3 and B4 
machines. 

12.2 No one under the age of 18 is permitted to enter an Adult Gaming Centre. 

12.3 The Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures in place to 
minimise the opportunities for children to gain access to the premises. 

12.4 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to offer their own 
measures/licensing conditions which may cover issues such as: 

• 
 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

Proof of age schemes; 
 

CCTV; 
 

Door supervisors; 
 

Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 

Physical separation of areas; 

Location of entry; 

Notices / signage; 

Specific opening hours; 

Self barring schemes; 

Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare. 

Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 

13.0 (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 

The Act creates two classes of family entertainment centres (FECs) 

Licensed family entertainment centres - category C & D machines and which require a 
premises licence and: 
 

Unlicensed family entertainment centres - category D machines only and require a FEC 
gaming machine permit (see Section 21 below). 

13.1 Children and young persons are permitted to enter a FEC and may play on 
Category D machines only and there must be a clear segregation between the 
two  types  of  machine  so  that  children  do  not  have  access  to  Category  C 
machines. 

18 

 

Agenda Page 217 Agenda Item 3c



13.2 The Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure 
that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machine 
areas. 

13.3 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to offer their own 
measures/licensing conditions which may cover issues such as: 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

Proof of age schemes; 
 

CCTV; 
 

Door supervisors; 
 

Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 

Physical separation of areas; 

Location of entry; 

Notices / signage; 

Specific opening hours; 

Self barring schemes; 

Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
‘GamCare.’ 

Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 

13.4 The Authority will refer to the Commission’s website to see any conditions that 
apply to operator licences covering the way in which the area containing the 
category C machines should be delineated.  The Authority will also ensure that 
any  mandatory  or  default  conditions  on  these  Premises  Licences  are  used 
accordingly. 

14.0 Casinos 

Section 7(1) of the Act states that "a casino is an arrangement whereby people are 
given the opportunity to participate in one or more casino games".  Casino games are, in 
turn, defined by the Act to mean a game of Chance which is not equal chance gaming. 

14.1 Licensing Authorities have been given the role of issuing premises licences for 
casinos and monitoring those licences. 

14.2 Section 174 of the Act sets out three categories of casino premises licences. 
These are: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

one regional casino premises licence, 

eight large casino premises licence and 

eight small casino premises licence. 

19 

 

Agenda Page 218 Agenda Item 3c



The Secretary of State, after consultation with the Independent Casino Advisory 
Panel, will specify the areas for the 17 new casinos. 

14.3 The Licensing Authority recognises that unmet demand is not to be a criterion for 
a Licensing Authority in considering an application for a premises licence.  Each 
application will be on its merits. 

14.4 Section 166(1) of the Act provides that a Licensing Authority may resolve not to 
issue a casino premises licence. 

Chorley Council has yet to pass a resolution on a Casino premises. 

When the Council makes such a resolution, it will be a resolution passed by Full 
Council following considered debate and full reasons for the decision will be 
given. 

14.5 Notwithstanding  the  above  paragraph,  where  a  licensing  authority  area  is 
enabled to grant a Premises Licence for a new style casino (ie the Secretary of 
State has made such regulations under Section 175 of the Act) there are likely to 
be a number of operators which will want to run the casino. 

The Licensing Authority will follow the Commissions guidance for considering 
applications in these circumstances.  In particular, the Licensing Authority will not 
confuse planning or building regulation considerations with the matter before it. 
The Licensing Authority will comply with Schedule 9 of the Act and any relevant 
Codes of Practice in making its determination and in considering the matters to 
be taken into account when making any such determinations. 

14.6 The Act authorises the holder of a casino premises licence to make facilities 
available for betting on virtual events. 

14.7 The casino premises licence holder  must  comply with the Code of  Practice 
issued in relation to access to casino premises for children and young persons. 

14.8 Casino premises are exempt from the need to have licensed door supervisors by 
virtue of exclusion in the Private Security Industry Act 2001. 

15.0 Bingo premises 

The Act does not give bingo a statutory definition.  It is to have its ordinary and natural 
meaning.  The holder of a bingo operating licence will be able to offer any type of bingo 
game, whether cash or prize.  That means that premises with a bingo premises licence 
will be able to offer bingo in all its forms. 

15.1 Apart from commercial operators, prize bingo is traditionally a game played in 
arcades or travelling fun fairs. For these operators, prize bingo is subsumed 
within the allowances for prize gaming in the Act.   This means adult gaming 
centres, both licensed and unlicensed family entertainment centres, travelling 
fairs (or any premises with prize gaming permit) will be able to offer prize gaming, 
which includes prize bingo. In this form of gaming, the nature of the prize must 
not be determined by reference to the number of people playing the game, and 

20 

 

Agenda Page 219 Agenda Item 3c



the nature or size of the prize must not be determined by reference to the amount 
paid for or raised by the gaming. See the section on prize gaming. 

15.2 It is important that if children are allowed to enter premises licensed for bingo that 
they do not participate in gambling, other than category D machines. Where 
category C machines, or above, are available in the premises to which children 
are admitted, the Authority will ensure that: 

• All such machines are located in an area of the premises separate from the 
remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent 
access other than through a designated entrance. 
 

Only adults are admitted to this area where the machines are located. 

Access to the area where the machines are located is supervised. 

The area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be 
observed by staff of the operator or the licence holder, and 
 

At the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently 
displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons 
under 18. 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

• 

15.3 Under the Act, children and young persons (up to age of 18) cannot be employed 
in providing any facilities for gambling in bingo premises and children (under 16) 
cannot be employed in any capacity, at any time when facilities for playing bingo 
are offered.  The Commission will issue further guidance relating to the suitability 
and  layout  of  bingo  premises. 
information when it is published. 

The  Authority  will  therefore  consider  this 

15.4 The holder of a bingo premises licence may make available for use up to four 
category B machines (B3 & B4), any number of Category C and Category D 
machines. 

16.0 Betting Premises 

The Act contains a single class of licence for betting premises.   However, within this 
class, there will be different types of premises that will require licensing. 

16.1 This section relates to off-course betting, that is betting that takes place other 
than at a track.  Please see Part 17 for track betting. 

16.2 The  Licensing  Authority  is  responsible  for  issuing  and  monitoring  premises 
licences for all betting premises. 

16.3 Children and young persons will not be able to enter premises with a betting 
premises licence. 

16.4 The holder of a betting premises licence may make available for use up to four 
gaming machines of Category B (B2, B3 and B4), Category C and Category D. 
See Part 27 for information on gaming machines. 

21 

 

Agenda Page 220 Agenda Item 3c



16.5 The Act provides that a machine is not a gaming machine if it is designed or 
adapted for use to bet on future real events. Such machines will not count 
towards the maximum permitted number of gaming machines nor have to comply 
with any stake or prize limits.  However, machines that take bets on virtual races 
(re images generated by computer) are classed as gaming machines and do 
count towards the maximum permitted number of gaming machines and must 
meet the relevant category limitations for the premises. 

16.6 The Licensing Authority has the power to restrict the number of betting machines, 
their nature and the circumstances in which they are made available by attaching 
a condition to the betting premises licence. 

16.7 When considering whether to impose a condition to restrict the number of betting 
machines in a particular premises the Authority will take into account any known 
or likely breach of licensing objectives, the size of the premises, the number of 
counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of 
staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an 
offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable persons. 

16.8 Section 183 of the Act attaches a condition to a betting premises licence that 
facilities for gambling must not be provided on Christmas Day (00.01 on 25 
December until 00.00 on 26 December). 

17.0 Tracks 

Tracks are sites where races or other sporting events take place re horse racecourses 
and dog tracks. 

17.1 There is no special class of betting premises licence for a track but the Act 
contains rules which apply specifically to a premises licence granted in respect of 
a track. 

17.2 Betting is often divided into "on-course" and "off-course" in relation to tracks: 

• On-course betting operator - comes onto the track temporarily, while races 
are taking place and operates at the track side. 
 

Off-course betting operators - may, in addition to the premises away from 
the track, operate self-contained betting premises within the track premises 
(See Part 16) 
 

Pool betting - can take place on tracks, but only on certain types of track, 
and the people who run it are limited. 

• 

• 

17.3 Tracks are different from other premises in that they may be subject to one or 
more Premises Licences, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the 
track.   There can be a primary (betting) licence for the track and, in addition, 
subsidiary premises licences for other gambling activities may be issued.   The 
Licensing Authority recognises that this will allow racecourses and other track 
venues to develop leisure facilities which offer a range of gambling facilities 
where this meets the principles for granting premises licences. 

22 

 

Agenda Page 221 Agenda Item 3c



17.4 An applicant for a track premises licence does not need to hold an operating 
licence unless he, as the occupier of the track, wishes to offer pool betting or 
general betting facilities himself. If the betting provided on track is by other 
operators  who  come  on  course,  they  are  required  to  hold  the  necessary 
operating licences.  They in turn will be covered by the track premises licence 
held by the track operator. 

17.5 Occasional use notices, which can only be issued in relation to tracks, may be 
relied upon for the provision of betting facilities for no more than 8 days in any 
calendar year.  Please see Part 26. 

Gaming Machines 

17.6 The  Licensing  Authority  will  have  regard  to  any  guidance,  issued  by  the 
Commission relating to the location of such machines and any special conditions 
relating to them. A betting premises licence does not give automatic entitlement 
to use gaming machines. However if the track operator who holds the premises 
licence also holds a pool betting operators licence then up to 4 gaming machines 
may be sited on the track (Categories B2 to D) 

Betting Machines 

17.7 The Licensing  Authority will take into  account the size of  the premises, the 
number of counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the 
ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons 
(it  is an offence for those under  18 to bet) or  by vulnerable persons when 
considering the number, nature and/or circumstances of betting machines an 
operator wants to offer. The Authority will also consider restricting the number 
and location of such machines in respect of applications for track betting 
Premises Licences. 

17.8 The Licensing Authority, following the Commissions guidance, would require all 
self-contained premises operated by Off-Course betting operators on tracks to be 
the subject of separate premises licence. This would ensure that there was 
clarity between the respective responsibilities of the track operator and the off- 
course betting operator running a self-contained unit on the premises. 

Condition on rules being displayed 

17.9 The  Licensing  Authority  may  attach  a  condition  to  track  Premises  Licences 
requiring the track operator to ensure that the rules are prominently displayed in 
or near the betting areas, or that other measures are taken to ensure that they 
are made available to the public.  For example, the rules could be printed in the 
race card or made available in leaflet form from the track office. 

Applications and Plans 

17.10   The  Licensing  Authority,  subject  to  any  information  being  prescribed  by 
Regulation, will require applicants for premises licence to submit detailed plans 
for the racetrack itself and the area used for temporary on-course betting facilities 
and in case of dog tracks and horse racecourses fixed and mobile pool betting 

23 

 

Agenda Page 222 Agenda Item 3c



facilities operated by the Tote or track operator, as well as any other proposed 
gambling  facilities. Applicants  are  to  ensure  that  plans  submitted  with  the 
application make it clear what is being sought under the track betting premises 
licence and what, if any, other areas are to be subject to a separate application 
for a different type of premises licence.  This is to ensure the appropriate licence 
conditions are applied. 

17.11 There will be mandatory premise licence conditions for horse racecourses and 
dog tracks in relation to access to tracks by holders of general betting operating 
licences. 

17.12 Under the Act, all those under the age of 18 must be excluded from any areas 
where facilities for betting are provided, and any area where Category B or C 
gaming machines are located. This is a condition of all track licences. 

However, children and young persons will be permitted to enter track areas 
where facilities for betting are provided on days when dog-racing and/or horse 
racing takes place, although they are still prevented from entering areas where 
gaming machines (other than category D machines) are provided. 

7.13 The  Authority  will  have  particular  regard  to  the  protection  of  children  and 
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling and the need to 
ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are 
excluded from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter. The 
Authority would expect Premises Licence applicants to demonstrate suitable 
measures to ensure that  children do not  have access to adult  only gaming 
facilities. 

7.14 The Authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet the 
licensing objectives. For example, appropriate licence conditions may cover 
such issues as: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Proof of age schemes; 

CCTV; 

Door supervisors; 

Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 

Physical separation of areas; 

Location of entry; 

Notices / signage; 

Specific opening hours; 

Self barring schemes; 

Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare. 

Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 
With regard to the protection of vulnerable persons, The Authority will consider 
measures such as the use of  self-barring  schemes,  provision of  information 
leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as ‘GamCare’. 

17.15 

24 

 

Agenda Page 223 Agenda Item 3c



Please note that this list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive. 

18.0 Travelling Fairs 

The Act defines travelling fairs as "wholly or principally" providing amusements and they 
must be on a site that has been used for fairs for no more than 27 days per calendar 
year 

18.1 The Authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the statutory 
definition of a travelling fair. 

18.2 The 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used as a fair, is per calendar 
year, and it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held, regardless of 
whether it  is the same or  different  travelling fairs occupying the land.  The 
Authority will work with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that land that 
crosses our boundaries is monitored so that the statutory limits are not exceeded. 

18.3 Travelling fairs do not require a permit to provide gaming machines but must 
comply with legal requirements about the way the machine operates.  They may 
provide an unlimited number  of  Category D  gaming machines provided that 
gambling facilities amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair. 

18.4 Travelling fairs must comply with Schedule 14 to lawfully offer prize gaming. 
These are: 

• 

 

• 

The limits on participation fees as prescribed must be complied with. 
 

All chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises 
on which the gaming is taking place and on one day, the game must be 
played and completed on the day the chances are allocated, and the result 
of the game must be made public on the day that it is played. 
 

The prize for which the game is played must not exceed the prescribed 
amount (if a money prize) or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize). 
 

Participation in gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other 
gambling. 

• 

• 

19.0 Provisional Statements 

When considering Provisional Statements, it is a question of fact and degree whether 
premises are finished to a degree that they can be considered for a Premises Licence. 
Similarly, requiring the building to be complete ensures that the Authority can inspect it 
fully. 

19.1 The application must be accompanied by plans and other prescribed information. 

19.2 Responsible authorities and interested parties may make representations and the 
process for considering an application is as for a previous licence. 

25 

 

Agenda Page 224 Agenda Item 3c



19.3 Once the premises have been constructed, altered or acquired the holder of a 
provisional statement may return to the Authority and make application for a 
premises licence. 

In terms of representations about Premises Licence applications, following the 
grant  of  a  provisional  statement,  no  further  representations  from  relevant 
authorities or interested parties can be taken into account unless they concern 
matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional statement stage, 
or  they  reflect  a  change  in  the  applicant’s  circumstances. In  addition,  the 
Authority may refuse the Premises Licence (or grant it on terms different to those 
attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to matters: 

• Which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional licence 
stage; or 

 

• Which  in  the  authority’s  opinion  reflect  a  change  in  the  operator’s 
circumstances. 

19.4 The Authority will not take into account irrelevant matters.  An example of such 
an irrelevant matter would be the likelihood of the applicant obtaining planning 
permission or building regulations approval for the proposal. 

Section  204  of  the  Act  provides for  a  person to  make an  application for  a 
provisional statement in respect of premises that he or she: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

expects to be constructed; 
 

expects to be altered; or 
 

expects to acquire a right to occupy. 

The Licensing Authority, where an applicant has also applied to the Commission 
for an operating licence will not take into account the likelihood of an operating 
licence being  granted in its consideration of  an application for  a provisional 
statement. 

20.0 Reviews 

The Authority, under S200 of the Act may also initiate a review of a premises licence or 
class of premises licence in relation to a particular class of premises, the Authority may 
review the use made of the premises and, in particular the arrangements that premise 
licence holders have made to comply with licence conditions. 

In relation to a particular premises the Licensing Authority may review any matter 
connected to the use made of the premises if it has reason to suspect that 
licence conditions may not be being observed or for any other reason which 
gives cause to believe that a review may be appropriate. 

Decision to grant application for a review 

20.2 The Licensing Authority must grant an application for a review unless, it decides 
to reject the application on one (or more) of the following grounds: 

26 

 

Agenda Page 225 Agenda Item 3c



� not  relevant  to  Commission  guidance/Codes  of  Practice,  Statement  of 
Principles or licensing objectives e.g. issues relating to demand, planning, 
public safety; 

grounds are frivolous; 

grounds are vexatious; 

grounds "will certainly not" cause the Authority to revoke or suspend a 
licence or to remove, amend or attach conditions on the premises licence; 

grounds  are  substantially  the  same  as  grounds  used  on  a  previous 
application relating to the same premises; 

grounds are substantially the same as representations that were made at 
the   time   the   application   for   a   premises   licence   was   considered. 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

The Licensing Authority, if action is justified may; 

� 

� 

� 

� 

add, remove or amend a condition imposed by the Licensing Authority; 

exclude a default condition or remove or amend such an exclusion; 

suspend the premises licence for up to 3 months; 

revoke the premises licence. 

In determining  what  action,  if  any,  should  be  taken  following  a  review  the 
Authority will have regard to the general principles set out in Section 153 of the 
Act as well as any relevant representations. 

The Licensing Authority will hold a hearing unless the applicant and any person 
who has made relevant representations that have not been withdrawn (that are 
not vexatious, frivolous or irrelevant) consent to the review being conducted 
without one. 

20.3 A premises licence may be reviewed by the Authority of  its own volition or 
following receipt of an application for a review by a responsible Authority and 
Interested Party. However, it is for the Authority to determine whether the review 
takes place.  This will be on the basis of whether the request for the review is 
relevant to the matters listed below, as well as consideration as to whether the 
request is frivolous, vexatious, or whether it is substantially the same as previous 
representations or requests for a review. 

• In   accordance   with   any   relevant   code   of   practice   issued   by   the 
Commission. 

In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission. 

Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. 

In accordance with this statement. 

• 

• 

• 

20.4 The Authority can also initiate a review of a licence on the basis of any reason 
that it considers is appropriate. 

27 

 

Agenda Page 226 Agenda Item 3c



PART C: PERMITS / TEMPORARY & OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES 

21.0 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits (Statement of 
Principles on Permits – Schedule 10 paragraph 7) 

21.1 Unlicensed FEC’s will be able to offer only Category D machines.   Where a 
premises does not hold a Premises Licence but wishes to provide gaming 
machines, it may apply to the Authority for this permit. Applicants should note 
that under Section 238 of the Act they must demonstrate that the premises will be 
wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available for use. 
Permits cannot be issued for vessels or vehicles. 

21.2 If  the  operator  of  a  FEC  wants  to  make  Category C  machines  available  in 
addition to Category D machines, the Operator will have to apply for an operating 
licence from the Commission and a premises licence from the Licensing 
Authority.  (See Section 13 above) 

21.3 The Authority in accordance with the Guidance has prepared a statement of 
principles that it proposes to apply when considering applications for permits in 
particular the suitability of an applicant for a permit. In preparing this statement, 
and/or considering applications, it need not (but may) have regard to the 
licensing objectives and shall have regard to any relevant guidance issued by the 
Commission under Section 25. The Licensing Authority will give weight to child 
protection issues when considering these permits. 

2.4 The application for a permit can only be made by the person who occupies or 
plans to occupy the premises as an unlicensed FEC. If the applicant is an 
individual he must be aged 18 or over. 

21.5 Applications for a permit cannot be made if a premises licence is in force for the 
same premises. The application must be made to the Licensing Authority in 
whose area the premises are wholly or partly situated. 

21.6 An application for a permit may be granted only if the Licensing Authority is 
satisfied that the premises will be used as an Unlicensed Family Entertainment 
Centre, and if the Licensing Unit of Lancashire Constabulary has been consulted 
on the application. 

21.7 The Authority cannot attach conditions to this type of permit and the “statement of 
principles” only applies to initial applications and not to renewals. 

21.8 Statement of Principles = This Authority will expect the applicant to show that 
there are policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm. Harm in 
this  context  is  not  limited  to  harm  from  gambling  but  includes  wider  child 
protection considerations. However they my include appropriate measures / 
training for staff as regards suspected truant school children on the premises, 
measures / training covering how staff would deal with unsupervised/ very young 
children being on the premises, or children causing perceived problems on / 
around the premises. This licensing authority will also require following the 
Commission Guidance, that applicants demonstrate a full understanding of the 

28 

  

 

Agenda Page 227 Agenda Item 3c



maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is permissible in Unlicensed 
Family Entertainment Centres; that the applicant has no relevant convictions 
(those that are set out in Schedule 7 of the Act); and that staff are trained to have 
a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes. 

21.9 A permit will have effect for ten years unless it ceases to have effect because it is 
surrendered or lapses or is reviewed. 

21.10 If the person to whom a permit is issued changes their name or wants to be 
known by another name they may send their permit to the Licensing Authority for 
amendment with the appropriate fee. 

21.11 The permit may lapse for a number of reasons: 

� 
 

� 

if the holder ceases to occupy the premises; 
 

if the Licensing Authority notifies the holder of the premises they are not 
being used as an unlicensed FEC; 
 

if the individual permit holder dies, becomes incapable by reason of mental 
or physical incapacity, becomes bankrupt, or sequestration of his estate is 
ordered or; 

if the company holding the permit ceases to exist or goes into liquidation; 

if the permit holder surrenders it to the Licensing Authority. 

� 

� 
 

� 

21.12 If the permit holder is convicted of a relevant offence set out in Schedule 7 of the 
Act, the Court may order forfeiture of the permit. 

Renewals 

21.13   An  application  for  renewal  of  the  permit  must  be  made  during  the  period 
beginning six months before the permit expires and ending two months before it 
expires.  The procedure for renewal is the same as for an application. 

The authority may refuse an application for renewal of a permit only 
grounds that: 

on the 

• an  authorised  local  authority  officer  has  been  refused  access 
premises without reasonable excuse, or 

that  renewal  would  not  be  reasonably  consistent  with  pursuit 

to the 

• of the 
licensing objectives.  The Licensing Authority will consult the Licensing Unit 
of Lancashire Police regarding any concerns that may have arisen about 
the use of the premises during the life of the premises. 

Maintenance 

21.15  The permit must be kept on the premises and be produced when requested to do 
so by a constable, an enforcement officer or an authorised local authority officer. 

29 

 

Agenda Page 228 Agenda Item 3c



22.0 (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits – 
(Schedule 13 Para 4(1)) 

22.1 The Act makes provision for premises that holds a Premises Licence under the 
Licensing Act 2003 for the sale/supply of alcohol on the premises to automatically 
have 2 gaming machines, of categories C and/or D. The person who holds the 
on-premises licence merely needs to notify the Authority. The Licensing 
Authority may remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular 
premises if: 

• Provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of 
the licensing objectives. 
 

Gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of 
Section 282 of the Act. 
 

The premises are mainly used for gaming. 
 

An offence under the Act has been committed on the premises. 
 

The Licensing Authority, before making an order will give the licensee at 
least 21 days notice and consider any representations that they make. 

• 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

22.2 In determining an application the Licensing Authority will have regard to the 
Guidance  and  the  licensing  objectives  and  any  other  matters,  which  are 
considered relevant to the objectives. 

22.3 If a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then it needs to apply for a 
permit and the Authority will consider that application based upon the licensing 
objectives, the Guidance, and “such matters as they think relevant.” This 
Authority considers that “such matters” will be decided on a case-by-case basis, 
but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from harm or being exploited by gambling. The Licensing Authority will 
expect the applicant to satisfy it that there will be sufficient measures to ensure 
that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machines. 
Such measures may include the adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in 
the sight of staff who will monitor that the machines are not being used by those 
under 18. Notices and signage may also be of assistance. With regard to the 
protection of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of 
information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare. 

22.4 It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a Premises 
Licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would need to 
be  applied  for,  and  dealt  with  as  an  Adult  Entertainment  Centre  Premises 
Licence. 
The Authority can decide to grant  the application with a smaller number  of 
machines and/or a different category of machines than that applied for. 
Conditions (other than these) cannot be attached. 

22.5 

22.6 The holder of a permit must comply with any Code of Practice issued by the 
Commission about the location and operation of the machine. 

30 

 

Agenda Page 229 Agenda Item 3c



22.7 The permit holder can apply to the Authority to amend the permit to reflect a 
change in the permit holders name. 

22.8 The permit is indefinite and will remain in effect as long as the premises continue 
to hold an alcohol licence and the permit holder continues to hold that licence. 

22.9 The permit holder may apply to vary the permit by changing the number and/or 
category of machines authorised by it. 

22.10 The Licensing Authority is able to cancel a permit in the following circumstances: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

the premises are used wholly or mainly by children or young persons; 
 

an offence under the Act has been committed; 
 

permit holder fails to pay annual fee (excepting any administrative error). 

Before the Licensing Authority cancels a permit they will give the permit holder at 
least 21 days notice and consider any representations made by the holder. 

22.11 Where a person applies to the Licensing Authority for a transfer of an alcohol 
premises licence they will also need to apply separately for the transfer of the 
licensed premises gaming machine permit. 

23.0 Prize Gaming Permits – (Statement of Principles on Permits - 
Schedule 14 Para 8 (3)) 

23.1 The Act defines gaming as prize gaming if the nature and size of the prize is not 
determined by the number of people playing or the amount paid for or raised by 
the gaming. The prizes will be determined by the operator before play 
commences. 

23.2 A prize gaming permit is a permit issued by the Licensing Authority to authorise 
the provision of facilities for gaming with prizes at specified premises. 

23.3 The Authority in accordance with the Guidance has prepared a Statement of 
Principles that it proposes to apply in exercising their functions in considering 
applicants. In particular, it has specified matters that the Authority propose to 
consider in determining the suitability of the applicant for a permit. 

The Statement of Principles, requires the applicant to set out the types of gaming 
that he or she is intending to offer and requires the applicant to demonstrate: 

• That they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in 
Regulations; and 
 

That the gaming offered is within the law. • 

23.4 Children and young persons may participate in equal chance prize gaming only. 

31 

 

Agenda Page 230 Agenda Item 3c



23.5 An application may only be made by a person who occupies or plans to occupy 
the relevant premises, and if the applicant is an individual, he must be aged 18 or 
over. 

23.6 The application must be made to the Licensing Authority in whose area the 
premises are wholly or partly situated. 

23.7 An application for a permit cannot be made if a premises licence or club gaming 
permit is in effect for the same premises. 

23.8 The Licensing Authority can refuse or grant a permit but cannot attach conditions. 

23.9 The Licensing Authority will consult the Licensing Unit of Lancashire Police and 
will take account of any objections made by Lancashire Police if they are relevant 
to the Licensing Objectives.  Relevant considerations may include the suitability 
of the applicant in the light of any convictions the applicant may have which 
would make them unsuitable to operate prize gaming and the suitability of the 
premises in relation to their location and issues about disorder. 

23.10 The Licensing Authority will give weight to child protection issues in making its 
decision on an application for this permit and the applicant should be able to 
demonstrate that they have considered such issues and offer up appropriate 
measures where relevant. The Licensing Authority does not need to but may 
have regard to the licensing objectives, but must have regard to any guidance 
produced by the Commission. 

23.11 A permit cannot be issued with regard to a vessel or vehicle. 

23.12 There are conditions in the Act to which the permit holder must comply, but that 
the Authority cannot attach conditions. The conditions in the Act are: 

The limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied with; 

• All chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises 
on which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be 
played and completed on the day the chances are allocated; and the result 
of the game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is 
played; 
 

The prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out 
in regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary 
prize); and 
 

Participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any 
other gambling. 
 

The permit will have effect for ten years unless it ceases to have effect and 
is reviewed. 

• 

• 

• 

23.14 The permit may lapse for a number of reasons: 

� if the holder ceases to occupy the premises; 

32 

 

Agenda Page 231 Agenda Item 3c



� if an individual permit holder dies, becomes incapable by reason of mental 
or physical incapacity; becomes bankrupt, or sequestration of the estate is 
ordered; 
 

if the Company holding the permit ceases to exist, or goes into liquidation. � 

23.15 The permit also ceases to have effect if the holder surrenders it to the Licensing 
Authority. 

23.16 If the holder is convicted of a relevant offence as set out in Schedule 7 of the Act 
the Court may order the forfeiture of the licence. 

23.17 An application for renewal of a permit must be made during the period beginning 
with six months before the licence expires and ending two months before it 
expires.  The procedure for renewal is the same as for an application. 

27.18 The permit must be kept on the premises and it is an offence not to produce it 
when requested by a constable, an enforcement officer, or an authorised local 
authority officer. 

24.0 Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 

24.1 Members Clubs and Miners’ welfare institutes (but not Commercial Clubs) may 
apply to this Licensing Authority for a Club Gaming Permit or a Club Gaming 
machines permit.   This is in addition to exempt gaming authorised by the Act. 
The Club Gaming Permit will enable the premises to provide gaming machines, 
equal chance gaming and games of chance as described in the regulations.  A 
Club Gaming Machines Permit may not be issued in respect of a vehicle or 
vessel. 

24.2 Members  clubs  must  have  at  least  25  members  and  be  established  and 
conducted “wholly or mainly” for purposes other than gaming, unless the gaming 
is permitted by separate regulations.  It is anticipated that this will cover bridge 
and whist clubs, which will replicate the position under the Gaming Act 1968.  A 
members’  club  must  be  permanent  in  nature,  not  established  to  make 
commercial profit, and controlled by its members equally. Examples include 
working men’s clubs, branches of Royal British Legion and clubs with political 
affiliations. 

24.3 Commercial clubs have the same characteristics as members clubs, except that 
the key difference is that they are established with a view to making a profit e.g. 
snooker club. 

24.4 The  definition   of   miners'   welfare   institutions   has   changed. These   are 
associations  established  for  recreational  and  social  purposes. They  are 
managed  by  representatives  of  miners  or  uses  premises  regulated  by  a 
charitable  trust  which  has  received  funds  from  one  of  a  number  of  mining 
organisations. 
Club gaming permits allow the provision of no more than 3 gaming machines 
from Categories B4, C or D.  The club is permitted to choose the combination of 
machines on its premises. 

24.5 

33 

 

Agenda Page 232 Agenda Item 3c



24.6 The Club gaming permit also allows the club to provide facilities for gambling, 
providing the gambling meets the following conditions: 

(a) equal chance gaming: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

the club does not deduct money from sums staked or won; 
 

the participation fee does not exceed the prescribed amount; 
 

the game takes place on the premises and is not linked with a game 
on another set of premises. Games are to be considered linked if: 

� the  result  of  one  game  is,  or  may  be,  wholly  or  partly 
determined by reference to the result of the other games; 
 

the amount of winnings is wholly or partly determined by the 
participation of more than one set of players; 
 

the game is split by sites so that part of one game is played on 
one site and another part is played elsewhere. 

� 

� 

(b) Other games of chance: 

� 
 

� 

the games are prescribed by regulations; 
 

that no participation fee is charged otherwise than in accordance 
with the regulations; 
 

that no amount is deducted from sums staked or won otherwise than 
in accordance with the regulations. 

� 

(c) in respect of gaming machines; 

� that no child or young person uses a Category B or C machine on 
the premises; 

 

that the holder complies with any relevant Code of Practice about 
location and operation of gaming machines. 

� 

(d) That the public, children and young persons are excluded from any area 
of the premises when gaming is taking place. 

24.7 A 48 hour rule applies in respect of all three types of gaming, so that the game 
may be played by people who have been members of the club for at least 48 
hours, or have applied or been nominated for membership or are genuine guests 
of a member. 

24.8 There are a number of premises that are not licensed to sell alcohol but have 
been entitled to site gaming machines by virtue of being registered under Part II 
or III of the Gaming Act 1968. These premises may apply for a club machines 
permit. Before granting the permit the Authority will need to satisfy itself that the 
premises meet the requirements of a members’ club and may grant the permit if 
the majority of members are over 18. 

34 

 

Agenda Page 233 Agenda Item 3c



24.9 Applications accompanied by the prescribed fee and documents must be made 
to  the  Licensing  Authority  in  whose  area  the  premises  are  situated. The 
applicant must also copy the application to the Commission and Lancashire 
Police. 

24.10 The Authority may only refuse an application on the grounds that: 

(a) The applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial 
club or miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the 
type of permit for which it has applied; 

(b) The applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or 
young persons; 

(c) An offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by 
the applicant while providing gaming facilities; 

(d) A permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten 
years; or 

(e) An objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police (Gambling 
Commission’s draft Guidance for Local Authorities 25.18). 

If the Licensing Authority is satisfied that (a) or (b) is the case it must refuse the 
application. The Licensing Authority will have regard to the relevant guidance 
issued by the Commission and (subject to that Guidance), the Licensing 
Objectives 

24.11 There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available for premises which holds a Club 
Premises  Certificate  under  the  Licensing  Act  2003. Under  the  fast-track 
procedure there is no opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission 
or Lancashire Police, and the grounds upon which the Authority can refuse a 
permit are reduced. The grounds on which an application under the process may 
be refused are: 

• That  the  club  is  established  primarily  for  gaming,  other  than  gaming 
prescribed under schedule 12; 
 

That in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for 
other gaming; or 
 

That a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in 
the last ten years has been cancelled.” 

• 

• 

24.12 There are  statutory conditions on club gaming  permits that  no child uses  a 
category B or C machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any 
relevant provision of  a code of  practice about the location and operation of 
gaming machines 

24.13 The permit will have effect for ten years unless it ceases to have effect because it 
is surrendered, lapsed or renewed. 

35 

 

Agenda Page 234 Agenda Item 3c



24.14 Permits  may  be  amended  to  meet  changing  circumstances. The  Licensing 
Authority will only refuse a variation if on consideration of a completely new 
application they would refuse the permit. 

24.15 A permit will lapse if the holder of the permit stops being a club or miners' welfare 
institute, or if it no longer qualifies under the fast track permit system for a permit. 
In addition, a permit will cease to have effect upon being surrendered to the 
Licensing Authority. 

24.16 The Licensing Authority may cancel a permit if: 

� 
 

� 

premises are used wholly by children and/or young persons; or 
 

an offence or breach of a permit condition has been committed in the 
course of gaming activities by the permit holder. 

24.17 Application for renewal of a permit must be made during the period beginning 
three months before the licence expires and ending six weeks before it expires. 

25.0 Temporary Use Notices 

25.1 A temporary use notice allows the use of the premises for gambling where there 
is no premises licence, but where a gambling operator wishes to use the 
premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. These may include 
hotels, conference centres and sporting venues. 

25.2 A temporary use notice may only be granted to a person or company holding a 
relevant operating licence. 

25.3 Section  218  of  the  Act  provides  that  a  set  of  premises  is the  subject  of  a 
temporary use notice if any "part" of the premises is the subject of a notice. 

There are a number of statutory limits with regard to Temporary Use Notices.  As 
with the definition of "premises", the definition of "a set of premises" will be a 
question of fact in the particular circumstances of each notice that is given.  In the 
Act "premises" is defined as including "any place". In considering whether a 
place falls within the definition of "a set of premises", the Licensing Authority will 
look  at,  amongst  other  things,  the  ownership/occupation  and  control  of  the 
premises.  The Authority will object to notices where it appears that their effect 
would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set 
of premises. 

25.4 The holder of an operating licence must give notice to the Licensing Authority in 
whose area the premises are situated in the prescribed form. 

25.5 The same set of premises may not be the subject of a temporary use notice for 
more than 21 days in any 12-month period.  The Licensing Authority will issue a 
counter notice if this limit is exceeded. As notices may be given by different 
operators in respect of the same premises the Licensing Authority will check 
whether a counter notice is appropriate. 

36 

 

Agenda Page 235 Agenda Item 3c



25.6 A temporary use notice may not be given in respect of a vehicle.  It may be given 
in respect of a vessel but only if it is a passenger vessel or a vessel that is 
situated at a fixed place. 

25.7 A temporary use notice must be lodged with the Licensing Authority not less than 
three months and one day before the gambling event is to take place in the 
prescribed form and accompanied by the fee. The application must be copied to: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

the Gambling Commission; 
 

Lancashire Police; 
 

HM Commissioners for Revenue & Customs and, if applicable any other 
licensing authority in whose area the premises are situated. 
 

In considering whether they wish to give notice of objection, the Licensing 
Authority will have regard to the licensing objectives and any relevant 
representations and if it considers that gambling should not take place, or 
only with modifications, it will give counter notice to the person who gave 
the Temporary Use Notice. 

� 

25.8 If objections are received, the Licensing Authority will hold a hearing to listen to 
all relevant representations unless all parties agree a hearing is unnecessary. 

Those person/bodies which raise objections may offer modifications to the notice 
that will alleviate their  concerns. If  such modifications are accepted by the 
applicant  a  new  Temporary  Use  Notice  must  be  prepared  and  the  original 
withdrawn.  The three-month time limit and fee will not apply to the new notice. 
The person who made the original objection and proposed the modification may 
not object to the new notice, but others to whom it is copied may object. 

25.9 The Licensing Authority, may, after a hearing has taken place (or has been 
dispensed with) determine that the Temporary Use Notice should not have effect. 
In these circumstances it may issue a counter notice which: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

prevents the temporary use notice from taking effect; 
 

limit the activities that are permitted; 

limit the time period of gambling; or 

allow the activity to take place subject to a specified condition. 

25.10 The Licensing Authority will apply the same principles in issuing a counter notice 
as  those  in  determining  premises  licence  applications. In  particular,  the 
Licensing Authority aims to permit the provision of facilities for gambling under a 
Temporary Use Notice subject to its view as to whether to do so accords with: 

� 
 

� 
 

� 
 

� 

relevant Codes of Practice; 
 

guidance issued by the Commission; 

reasonably consistent with the licensing objections; 

this Statement of Policy. 

37 

 

Agenda Page 236 Agenda Item 3c



25.11   A copy of the Temporary Use Notice must be displayed prominently on the 
premises whilst the gambling is taking place. 

26.0 Occasional Use Notices 

26.1 The Act provides that where there is betting on a track on eight days in a 
calendar year, betting may be permitted by an occasional use notice without the 
need for a full premises licence. 

26.2 The Licensing Authority notes that the meaning of "track" in the Act covers not 
just a horse racecourse or dog track but also any other premises on any part of 
which a race or other sporting event takes place or is intended to take place. 

26.3 This means that land which has a number of uses, or which fulfils the definition of 
track, can qualify for occasional use notice provisions (e.g. agricultural land upon 
which a point to point meeting takes place). 

26.4 The occasional use notice dispenses with the need for a betting licence for the 
track in these circumstances. 

26.5 A notice must be served by a person who is responsible for the administration of 
events on the track or by an occupier of the track. It must be served on the 
Licensing Authority and copied to Lancashire Police.  Notices may be given for 
consecutive days so long as the overall limit of eight days is not exceeded in any 
calendar year. 

26.6 Provided that the notice will not result in betting facilities being provided for more 
than 8 days in a calendar year, there is no provision for counter notices or 
objections to be submitted. 

26.7 The Commissioner may require the Licensing Authority to provide information 
about occasional use notices. Where required to do so the Licensing Authority 
will provide information as requested 

27.0 Gaming Machines 

27.1 The Act defines "gaming machine" as a machine which is designed or adapted 
for  use  by  individuals  to  gamble  (whether  or  not  it  can  be  used  for  other 
purposes).  However, it should be noted: 

� there remains a distinction between skill machines and gaming machines. 
Skill machines are unregulated; and 
 

Section 235 of the Act contains exemptions for equipment that is not to be 
considered a gaming machine even when gambling can be performed on it. 
e.g. home pc. 

� 

27.2 If the Licensing Authority has concerns about the manufacture, supply or repair of 
machines or the manner in which they are operating, it will bring it to the attention 
of the Commission. 

38 

 

Agenda Page 237 Agenda Item 3c



27.3 The Secretary of State has made regulations defining four classes of gaming 
machine, Categories A, B, C & D. These are set out in the table below. 

27.4 There is a minimum age of 18 for all players for all Category A, B and C 
machines. There is no minimum age for Category D machines, though the 
Secretary of State has a reserve power to set a minimum age for Category D 
machines. 

39 

Category of 
Machine 

 

Maximum Stake 
 

Maximum Prize 

A Unlimited Unlimited 

B1 £2.00 £4,000.00 

B2 £100.00 £500.00 

B3 £1.00 £500.00 

B4 £1.00 £250.00 

C £0.50 £25.00 
 

D 
10p or 30p when non – 

monetary prize 
£5.00 cash or £8.00 non – 

monetary prize 

 

Agenda Page 238 Agenda Item 3c



The maximum number of machines permitted is set out by the premise type below – 

27.5 The act does not cover machines that give prizes as a result of the application of 
pure skill by players e.g. trivia game machines. 

40 

 

 

 

TYPE 
 

 

GAMING 
TABLES 

(Minimum) 
 

 

 

 

GAMING MACHINES 
 

 

 

Regional casino 
 

 

 

40 
 

 

25 gaming machines of category A to D for each 
table available for use maximum 

of 1,250 machines 

 

 

Large casino 
 

 

 

1 
 

 

5 gaming machines category B to D for each 
table available for use maximum 

of 150 machines 

 

 

Small casino 
 

 

 

1 
 

 

2 gaming machines of category B to D for each 
table available for use maximum 

of 80 machines 

 

 

Bingo premises 
 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

4 gaming machines of category B3 and B4 
unlimited machines category C unlimited 

category D machines 

 

Betting premises 
 

N/A 
 

4 gaming machines of category B2 to D 

 

Track betting premises 
where pool betting licence 

held 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

 

4 gaming machines of category B2 to D 
 

 

Adult gaming centre 
 

 

N/A 
 

 

4 gaming machines of category B3 or B4 
unlimited category C unlimited category D 

 

Family entertainment 
centre with operating 

licence 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

Unlimited gaming machines of category 

C to D 
 

 

Family entertainment 
centre with gaming permit 

 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

 

Unlimited gaming machines of category D 
 

 

Members club premises 
 

N/A 
 

3 gaming machines of category B4 to D 

 

On sales alcohol licensed 
premises without food 

restriction 

 

 

N/A 
 

 

2 gaming machines of category C to D by 
notification unlimited of category C to D 

with alcohol premises gaming permit 

 

Agenda Page 239 Agenda Item 3c



APPENDIX 1 - Glossary of Terminology 

Licensing Objectives: As defined in paragraph 1.1 

Council: Chorley Council 

District: The area of Lancashire administered by Chorley Council (Map 
appended at Appendix 2) 

Notifications: Means notification of temporary and occasional use notices 

Act: The Gambling Act 2005 

Regulations: Regulations made under the Gambling Act 2005 

Premises: Any place, including a vehicle, vessel or moveable structure 

Code of Practice: Means any relevant code of practice under Section 24 of the 
Gambling Act 2005 

Mandatory Condition: Means a specified condition provided by regulations to be attached to 
a licence. 

Default Condition: Means a specified condition provided by regulations to be attached to 
a licence, unless excluded by Chorley Council. 

Responsible Authority: As detailed in Appendix 4 

Interested Party: For the purposes of this Act, a person is an interested party in relation 
to a premises licence if, in the opinion of the Licensing Authority which 
issues the licence or to which the application is made, the person: 

a) Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be 
affected by the authorised activities; 

Has business interests that might be affected by the 
authorised activities; 

Represents persons who satisfy a) or b) above. 

b) 

c) 

41 

 

Agenda Page 240 Agenda Item 3c



APPENDIX 2 
Map of Chorley Council area 

42 

 

Agenda Page 241 Agenda Item 3c



APPENDIX 3 - SCHEDULE OF CONSULTEES. 

Email 

Email 

B2 4BP 

43 

 

Councillors / MP / Parish Council 

Chorley MP Lindsay 
Hoyle 

 

35-39 Market Street, 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 2SW 

All elected Ward 
Councillors of Chorley 
Council, County 
Councillors (Chorley 
Area) and Parish 
Council Clerks 

   

 

Responsible Authorities 

 

Corporate Director 
Business 

 

Chorley Council, Union 
Street 

 

Chorley 
 

 

Internal 
 

 

Corporate Director 
Governance 

 

Town Hall, Market Street 
 

 

Chorley 
 

 

Internal 
Email 

 

Corporate Director 
People & Places 

 

Chorley Council, 
Union Street 

 

Chorley 
 

 

Internal 
 

 

Gambling Commission 
Policy Section 

 

Victoria Square House 
 

 

Victoria Square 
 

 

Birmingham, 
 

Regional Inspector for 
Lancashire & Cumbria 
Gambling Commission 

 

Victoria Square House 
 

 

Victoria Square 
 

 

Birmingham, 
B2 4BP 

H M Revenue & 
Customs 

Custom House, Custom 
House Quay 

 

Greenock 
 

 

PA15 1EQ 
 

 

Lancashire Constabulary 
 

Chorley Police Station, 
St Thomas’s Road 

 

Chorley 
 

 

PR7 1DR 
 

Lancashire Fire & 
Rescue 

Chorley Fire Station, 
Weldbank Lane 

 

Chorley 
 

 

PR7 6DH 
 

LCC Child Protection 
Service 

 

P.O. Box 78, County Hall 
 

 

Preston 
 

 

PR1 8XJ 
 

 

LCC Trading Standards 
 

 

P.O. Box 78, County Hall 
 

 

Preston 
 

 

PR1 8XJ 
 

 

Agenda Page 242 Agenda Item 3c



44 

 

Trade Associations & Representative Bodies 

The British Casino 
Association 

 

38 Grosvenor Gardens 
 

London 
 

SW1W OEB 

 

BACTA 
 

134-136 Buckingham 
Palace Road 

 

 

London 
 

 

SW1W 9SA 
 

British Holiday & Home 
Parks Association 

6 Pullman Court, Great 
Western Road 

 

Gloucester 
 

GL1 3ND 

 

Association of British 
Bookmakers 

 

Ground Floor 
Warwick House 
25 Buckingham Palace 
Road 

 

 

London 
 

 

 

SW1W 0PP 
 

Working Mens Club 
And Institute Union 

 

253-254 Uppers Street 
 

London 
 

N1 1RY 

Chorley & South Ribble 
Community Safety 
Partnership 

 

Paul Lowe- Internal 
Email 

  

Chorley South Ribble 
Business Club 

C/o Lancashire College, 
Southport Road 

 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1NB 

 

Gaming Machine Suppliers / Manufacturers 

 

Leisure Link Ltd 
3 The Maltings, Wetmore 
Road 

 

Burton-on-Trent 
 

DE14 1SE 

 

Red Rose Leisure 
Fleet House, Fleetwood 
Street 

 

Preston 
 

PR2 2PT 

 

Gamestec Leisure Ltd 
 

Low Lane, Horsforth 
 

Leeds 
 

LS18 4ER 

 

Crown Leisure Ltd 
 

Unit 1 Hillridge Road, 
Martland Mill Industrial 
Estate, Martland Park, 

 

Wigan 
 

 

WN5 0LS 
 

 

Head offices of Gaming Companies 

 

Gala Coral Group Ltd 
Newcastle House, Castle 
Boulevard 

 

Nottingham 
 

NG7 1FT 

 

Ladbrokes PLC 
Imperial House, Imperial 
Drive, Rayners Lane 

 

Harrow 
 

HA2 7JW 

 

Stanley Leisure PLC 
Stanley House, 151 Dale 
Street 

 

Liverpool 
 

L2 2JW 

 

 

 

William Hill PLC 
 

Greenside House 
50 Station Road 
Wood Green 

 

 

 

 

London 
 

 

 

 

N22 7TP 
 

 

Gambling Premises within Chorley Borough 

 

All Gambling Premises 

 

Agenda Page 243 Agenda Item 3c



45 

 

All Alcohol Licensed Premises 

 

Solicitors/Consultants 

 

Hardwicks Solicitors 
 

10 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HR 

Wallwork & Company 
Solicitors 

 

16 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HR 

 

Kevills Solicitors 
 

32 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HZ 

 

Marsdens Solicitors 
 

43 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1JE 

Birchall Blackburn 
Solicitors 

 

24 St Thomas’s Rd 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1HY 

 

Cobbetts Solicitors 
 

58 Mosley Street, 
 

Manchester 
 

M2 3HZ 

Flint, Bishop & Barnett 
Solicitors 

St Michael’s Court, St 
Michael’s Lane 

 

Derby 
 

DE1 3HQ 

Ford & Warren 
Solicitors 

 

Westgate Point, Westgate 
 

Leeds 
 

LS1 2AX 

 

Freemans Solicitors 
 

7 St Mary’s Place 
 

Newcastle 
 

NE1 7PG 

 

Gosschalks Solicitors 
 

Queens Gardens 
 

Hull 
 

HU1 3DZ 

John Gaunt & 
Partners Solicitors 

Omega Court, 372 Cemetery 
Road 

 

Sheffield 
 

S11 8FT 

 

Roscoes Solicitors 
St Andrew’s House, 
Wellington Street St Johns 

 

Blackburn 
 

BB1 8DB 

Ridgeway Licensing 
Services 

Harwell Innovation Centre, 
173 Curie Ave 

 

Didcot 
 

OXII OQG 

 

Other 

Chorley Library Union Street Chorley PR7 1EB 
 

Gam Care 
2-3 Baden Place, Crosby 
Row 

 

London 
 

SE1 1YW 

South Ribble Borough 
Council 

 

 

Licensing, West Paddock 
 

 

Leyland 
 

 

PR25 1DH 
 

 

West Lancashire 
District Council 

Robert Hodge Centre, 
Stanley Way, 
Skelmersdale 

 

Lancashire 
 

 

WN8 8EE 
 

Chorley Magistrates 
Court 

 

St Thomas’s Square 
 

Chorley 
 

PR7 1RZ 

Preston Magistrates 
Court 

 

P O Box 52 Lawson Street 
 

Preston 
 

PR1 2QT 

 

Agenda Page 244 Agenda Item 3c



APPENDIX 4 - List of Responsible Authorities 

For the purposes of this Act, the following are Responsible Authorities in relation to premises: 

1. The Licensing Authority in whose area the premises are wholly or mainly situated (Chorley 
Council) 

The Gambling Commission 

Lancashire Constabulary 

Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service 

Planning Dept Chorley Council 

Environmental Protection Service, Chorley Council 

Social Services Directorate, Lancashire County Council 

HM Customs and Excise. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

46 

 

Chorley Council 
Civic Offices 
Union Street 
Chorley 
Lancashire PR7 1AL 

 

Telephone: 01257 515163/4 
Fax: 01257 515197 
Email contact@chorley.gov.uk 
Web: www.chorley.gov.uk 

 

Lancashire County Council 
Social Services Directorate 
Quality & Review Manager 
PO Box 162 
East Cliff County Offices 
Preston PR1 3EA 

 

Telephone : 01772 531256 
 

 

Lancashire Constabulary 
Licensing Unit: C Division 
Chorley Police Station 
St Thomas’ Road 
Chorley 
Lancashire     PR7 1DR 

 

Telephone:     01257 246215 
Fax:                01257 246217 
Email:  southern- 
licensing@lancashire.pnn.police.uk 

 

Lancashire Fire & Rescue Services 
Fire Safety 
Fire Station 
Weld Bank Lane 
Chorley 
Lancashire PR7 3NQ 

 

Telephone: 01257 262919 
Fax: 01257 234363 

 

 

Gambling Commission 
4th Floor 
Victoria square House 
Victoria House 
Birmingham 
B2 4BP 

 

 

HM Customs and Excise 
Boundary House 
Cheadle Point 
Cheadle 
Cheshire  SK8 2JZ 

 

Telephone: 0845 010 9000 
Email: mailto:enquiries.nw@hmrc.gsi.gov.uk 

 

Agenda Page 245 Agenda Item 3c



APPENDIX 5 - Useful Contacts 

Further information on Chorley Council’s Statement of Principles or the Gambling Act 2005 can 
be obtained from the Public Protection Co-ordinator using the contact details 
Director People and Places has overall responsibility for the Licensing Service. 

below. The 

Public Protection Co-ordinator 
Chorley Council 
People & Places Directorate 
Civic Offices 
Union Street 
Chorley 
Lancashire 
PR7 1AL 

Telephone: 
Fax: 
Email: 

01257 515151 
01257 515150 
contact@chorley.gov.uk 

Information on the Gambling Act 2005 is also available from: 
 

The Department for Culture, Media and Sport 
2-4 Cockspur Street 
London 
SW1Y 5DH 

Telephone: 
Email: 
Internet: 

020 7211 6200 
enquiries@culture.gov.uk 
www.culture.gov.uk 

47 

 

Agenda Page 246 Agenda Item 3c


	Agenda
	3a Hungry Horse, Buckshaw Village, Chorley
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 2
	APPENDIX 2a

	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	3b Trader Jacks, Hollinshead Street, Chorley
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 2a

	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	3c The Highfield Restaurant, Southport Road, Leyland
	Appendix 1
	Appendix  2
	Appendix 2.pdf
	Appendix 2a

	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4


